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Audio Visual Means (VC)/(OA VM) pursuant to regulation 34 (1) of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015

Dear Sir/Madam,

Pursuant to regulation 34 (I) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, we are pleased to submit the
37™ Annual Report for the financial year 2021-22 of the Company containing the Standalone
Financial Statements i.e. Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022, Statement of Changes in
Equity, the statement of the Profit and Loss, Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March, 2022
and the Boards' Report along with Corporate Governance Report and the Auditors' Report on
that date and its annexures.

Kindly Note that the 37™ Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled to be held on
Friday, 30t September, 2022 at 11.00 A.M... through Video Conferencing / Other Audio
Visual Means (VC)/(OA VM).

You are requested to please take on record the above said document of the Company for
your reference and further needful

Thanking You,
Yours faithfully,
For Signet Industries Limited

G
Preeti Singh

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
M.no. 26118

AR s e e e = ez = N o



SIGNET

INDUSTRIES LTD.

37/th

Annual Report 2021-2022




Board of Directors

Mr. Mukesh Sangla
Mr. Saurabh Sangla
Ms. Reshma Lalwani
Mr. Mayank Shrivas
Ms. Palak Malviya
Mr. Sanjay Chourey

Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary

Statutory Auditors

Secretarial Auditors

Registered Office

Corporate Office

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

Factory L ocation

SIGNET INDUSTRIES LIMITED

COMPANY INFORMATION

Signet Industries Limited

CIN : L51900M H1985PL C035202

& ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

(Tel No: 0731-4217800) (Fax No: 0731-4217867)
(E-Mail: info@groupsignet.com) (Website: www.groupsignet.com)

Chairman & Managing Director

Director

Independent Women Director

Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

Mr. Jagdish Chandra Paliwal

Mrs. Preeti Singh

SMAK & Co. (Chartered Accountants)
702, Shekhar Central, South Tukoganj, Indore-452001, M.P, India

M. Maheshwari & Associates Company Secretaries
301, Shalimar Corporate Centre, South Tukoganj, Indore

1003, Meadows Building Sahar Plaza Complex, J. B. Nagar,
Andheri KurlaRoad, Andheri (East), Mumbai-400059, Maharashtra, India

Survey no. 314/3, SDA Compound, Lasudia Mori, Dewas Naka,

Indore-452010, M.P, India

Ankit Consultancy Private Limited

Plot no. 60, Electronic Complex, Pardeshipura, Indore-452010

Phone No. : 0731-2557146

Plot no. 462-465, Industrial Area Sector-3,
Pithampur, Dist. Dhar, Madhya Pradesh

Contents Page No.
Corporate Information

Notice 1
Director's Report & Annexures 12
Auditor's Report 45
Balance Sheet 56
Statement of Profit & Loss 57
Notes Forming Part to Balance Sheet 60




SIGNET INDUSTRIES LIMITED

& ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

37" Annual General Meeting

NOTICE

NOTICE ishereby given that the 37th Annual
General Meeting (AGM) of the members of
Signet Industries Limited will be held on
Friday, September 30th, 2022 at 11:00 AM
(I1ST) through Video Conferencing (VC) /Other
Audio Visual Means (OAVM) for which
purposes the Registered Office of the company
Situated at 1003, Meadows Building, Sahar Plaza
Complex, J. B. Nagar, Mumbai400059,
Maharashtra, Indiashall be deemed asthevenue, for
the Meeting and the proceedings of the Annual
Genera Meeting to transact the following
businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the
Financial Year ended 31st March 2022,
together with the reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon, and in this
regard, to consider and if thought fit , to pass,
with or without modification (s) the following
resolution asan Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT the audited financial
statement of the Company for thefinancial year
ended March 31, 2022 and the reports of the
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon laid
before this meeting, be and are hereby
considered and adopted.”

To declare dividend on equity shares for the
financial year ended March 31, 2022 and, in
this regard,, to consider and if thought fit, to
pass, with or without modification(s), pass the
following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT dividend at the rate of
Rs. 0.5 per equity share of Rs. 10/- (Ten rupee)
each fully paid-up of the Company as
recommended by the Board of Directorsbeand

is hereby declared for the financial year ended
March 31, 2022 and the same be paid, out of the
profits of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2022."

To re-appoint Mr. Saurabh Sangla (DIN:
00206069), who retires by rotation as a
Director and in this regard, to consider and if
thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the
provisions of Section 152 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr.
Saurabh Sangla (DIN: 00206069), who retires
by rotation at this meeting be and is hereby re-
appointed as a Director of the Company, liable
toretireby rotation.”

To re-appoint M/ SMAK & CO., Chartered
Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the
Company in this regard,, to consider and if
thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), pass the following resolution
asan Ordinary Resol ution:

"RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions
of Sections 139, 142 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the CompaniesAct, 2013,
and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended from time to time, M/s
SMAK & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration No. 020120C) beand ishereby re-
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the
Company to hold office from the conclusion of
thisAnnual General Meeting ("AGM") till the
conclusion of the Forty-second AGM tobeheld
intheyear 2027, at such remuneration, as may
be mutually agreed between the Board of
Directors of the Company and the Statutory
Auditors."




SIGNET INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5.

Appointment and Ratification of remuneration
of Cost Auditorsfor financial year 2022-23.

To consider and to pass the following
Resolutionasan Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the
provisions of Section 148 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the CompaniesAct, 2013
read with Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, and the Companies (Cost Records
andAudit) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the
time being in force) the Cost Auditors
appointed by the Board of Directors of the
Company, to conduct the audit of the cost
records of the Company for the Financia Year
ending 31st March 2023, be paid the
remuneration amounting to Rs.60,000/- (Sixty
thousand only) & Taxes as applicable
(Including out of pocket expenses if any) &
Rs.10,000/- (Ten thousand Only) for XBRL
Conversion charges incurred in connection
withtheaforesaid audit.

& ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT theBoard of
Directors of the Company be and are hereby
authorized to settle any question, difficulty or
doubt that may arise in giving effect to this
Resolution and to do all acts and take all such
steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient
togiveeffecttothisResolution."

By Order of Board

For Signet Industries Limited

Sd/-

Preeti Singh

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
M.No. 26118

Place: Indore
Date: 10th August, 2022

Registered Office:
1003, M eadowsBuilding, Sahar PlazaComplex
J.B.Nagar Andheri KurlaRoad,Andheri (E)
Mumbai - 400059

CIN: L51900M H1985PL C035202

E-mail: info@groupsignet.com
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Notes:
1.

Asyou areaware, inview of thesituation arising due
to COVID-19global pandemic, thegeneral meetings
of the companies shall be conducted as per the
guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated
April 8, 2020, Circular N0.17/2020 dated April 13,
2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020.
The forthcoming AGM/EGM will thus be held
through through video conferencing (VC) or other
audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can
attend and participate in the ensuing AGM/EGM
throughVVC/OAV M.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and
MCA Circularsdated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020
and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility
of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the
businessto be transacted at the AGM/EGM. For this
purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement
with Central Depository Services (India) Limited
(CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic
means, as the authorized e-Voting's agency. The
facility of casting votesby amember using remote e-
voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of
theEGM/AGM will beprovidedby CDSL.

The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the
VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the
scheduled time of the commencement of theMeeting
by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice.
The facility of participation a the EGM/AGM
through V C/OAVM will be made availableto atleast
1000 members on first come first served basis. This
will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders
holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters,
Ingtitutiona Investors, Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel, the Chairpersonsof the Audit Committee,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc.
who are allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without
restriction onaccount of first comefirst servedbasis.

The attendance of the Members attending the
AGM/EGM through V C/OAVM will be counted for
the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under
Section 103 of the CompaniesAct, 2013.

Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April
08, 2020, , the facility to appoint proxy to attend and
cast vote for the members is not available for this
AGM/EGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112
and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013,
representatives of the members such asthe President
of Indiaor the Governor of a State or body corporate
can attend the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM and
cast their votesthrough e-voting.

Inlinewiththe Ministry of CorporateAffairs(MCA)
Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the

10.

& ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

Notice calling the AGM/EGM has been uploaded on
the website of the Company at
www.groupsignet.com. The Notice can aso be
accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges
i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of
India Limited at www.bseindia.com and
www.nseindia.com respectively. The AGM/EGM
Noticeis a so disseminated on the website of CDSL
(agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility
and e-voting system during the AGM/EGM) i.e.
www.evotingindia.com.

The AGM/EGM has been convened through
VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and
MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13,2020 and
MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020.

In continuation of thisMinistry's General Circular
No. 20/2020, dated 05th May, 2020, general circular
No 02/2021 Dt. 13th Jan 2021, General Circular No
19/2021 Dt. 8th Dec 2021 & 21/2021 dated 14th Dec
2021 and after due examination, it has been decided
to alow companies whose AGMs were due to be
held in the year 2022, or become due in the year
2022, to conduct their AGMs on or before
31.12.2022, in accordance with the requirements
provided in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the General
Circular No. 20/2020 dated 05.05.2020.

Members may note that the Notice and Annua
Report 2021-22 will also be available on the
Company's website - www.groupsignet.com,
websites of the Stock Exchangesi.e. BSE Limited at
www. bseindia.com and NSE on
www.nseindia.com, and on the website of CDSL
https://www.evotingindia.com. However, if any
specific request received from the members for
demanding of the physical copy of the Annual
Report will be provided by the company but subject
to time taken by the courier and Postal Department
lookingtotheprevailing Covid-19 situation.

Pursuant to Finance Act, 2020, dividend income if
any declared by the Company will be taxable in the
hands of shareholders w.e.f. April 1, 2020 and the
Company shall be required to deduct tax at source
from dividend paid to shareholders at the prescribed
rates. For the prescribed ratesfor various categories,
the shareholders are requested to refer to the Finance
Act, 2020 and amendments thereof. The
shareholders are requested to update their PAN with
the Ankit Consultancy Private Limited, the Share
Transfer Agent (in case of shares held in physica
mode) and to the concerned depositories (in case of
shares held in demat mode). A Resident individual
shareholder with PAN and who is not liable to pay
income tax can submit ayearly declaration in Form
No. 15G/15H, to avail the benefit of non-deduction
of tax at source by email to
cspreeti @groupsignet.com by 05:00 PM IST on
23rd September, 2022. Shareholders are requested
tonotethat in casetheir PAN isnot registered, thetax
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12.

13.

14.

will be deducted at a higher rate of 20%. Non-
resident shareholderscan avail beneficial ratesunder
tax treaty between India and their country of
residence, subject to providing necessary documents
i.e. No Permanent Establishment and Beneficid
Ownership Declaration, Tax Residency Certificate,
Form 10F, any other document which may be
requiredto avail thetax treaty benefitsby sending an
email to cspreeti@groupsignet.com. The aforesaid
declarations and documents need to be submitted by
the shareholders by 05:00 PM IST on 23rd
September, 2022.

Members holding shares in electronic form are
hereby informed that bank particulars registered
against their respective depository accounts will be
used by the Company for payment of dividend.

SEBI vide their Circular No.
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/DOPL/ CIR/2018/73 dated 20th
April, 2018 has mandated all listed Companies to
make payment of dividend to the shareholders
through approved el ectronic mode and also directed
that updated bank details and PAN of the
Shareholders be obtained and maintained by the
Companies. You are requested to update your PAN
and Bank detailsby writing to the Company'sRTA.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102
of the Companies Act, 2013, which sets out details
relating to specia businessat the meeting isannexed
andformspart of theNotice.

Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of
the Company will remain closed from Saturday 24th
September, 2022 to Friday 30th September, 2022
(both days inclusive) for the Annua Generd
Meeting and ascertainment for entitlement of
payment of dividend to the members whose names
appear in the Register of members and the records of
the beneficiaries of the CDSL and NSDL on the date
of theAnnual General Meeting. The voting rights of
members shall be in proportion to their shares of the
paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on
thecut-off date23rd September, 2022.

The Company's Statutory Auditors, M/s. SMAK &
Co. Chartered Accountants, registered with the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India vide
registration number 020120C, were appointed as
Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of
five consecutive years at the Annual Genera
Meeting ("AGM") of the Members held on 30th
September, 2022 for a period of five years on a
remuneration mutually agreed upon by the Board of
Directors and the Statutory Auditors. Their
appointment was subject to ratification by the
members at every subsequent AGM held after the
AGM held on 30th September, 2022. Pursuant to the
amendments made to Section 139 of the Companies
Act, 2013 by the Companies (Amendment) Act,
2017 effectivefrom May 7, 2018, the requirement of
seeking ratification of the members for the
appointment of the Statutory Auditors has been
withdrawn from the Statute. In view of the above,

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.
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ratification by the members for continuance of their
appointment at this AGM is not being sought. The
Statutory Auditors have given a confirmation to the
effect that they are digible to continue with their
appointment and that they have not been disqualified
in any manner from continuing as Statutory
Auditors. The remuneration payable to the Statutory
Auditors shall be determined by the Board of
Directors based on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee.

Membersholding sharesin single nameand physical
form are advised to make nomination in respect of
their shareholding inthe Company.

The Company or its Registrars cannot act on any
reguest received directly from the Members holding
shares in electronic form for any change of bank
particulars or bank mandates. Such changesareto be
advised only to the Depository Participant of the
Members. Members holding sharesin physical form
and desirous of either registering bank particulars or
changing bank particulars already registered against
their respective folios for payment of dividend are
requested towriteto the Company.

To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are
advised to exercise due diligence and notify the
Company of any changein address or demise of any
member as soon as possible. Members are aso
advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant
for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be
obtained from the Concerned Depository Participant
and holdingsshould beverified.

SEBI vide amendment in the Regul ation 40 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, dated June 8, 2018, hasmandated
that the transfer of securitieswould be carried out in
dematerialized form only w.e.f. December 5, 2018.
You are accordingly advised to dematerialize your
physical shareholding at earliest. After December 5,
2018, no request for transfer of shares in physical
form can be processed by the Company/RTA.

Members who are holding physical shares in
identical order of names in more than one folio are
reguested to send to the Company's Share Transfer
Agent the details of such folios together with the
share certificates for consolidating their holding in
onefalio.

Members desirous of obtaining any information
concerning Accounts and Operations of the
Company or any agendaitem proposed in the notice
of AGM are requested to address their questionsin
writing to the Company at least 7 days before the
date of the Meeting at its email ID:
cspreeti @groupsignet.com to enable the Company
to collect the relevant information and redress the
queries.

Non-Resident Indian members are requested to
inform RTA/respective DPs, immediately of :

a) Changein their residential status on return to
Indiafor permanent settlement.
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b)  Particularsof their bank account maintainedin
India with complete name, branch, account
type, account number and address of the bank
with pincodenumber, if not furnished earlier.
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entitiesarerequired to provideremotee-voting
facility to its shareholders, in respect of al
sharehol ders resolutions. However, it hasbeen
observed that the participation by the public

M anagement Discussion and Analysisal soform part shareholdersisat anegligiblelevel.
tothereport of theBoard Report. Curr_ently, there are m_ul_tiple ev_oti ng s_e_rvice
23, The Register of Directors and Key Manageria prOV|ders(ESPs) prov@ ng e-voting faal.lty to
Personnel and their sharehol ding, and the Register of listed entities in India This necessitates
Contractsor Arrangementsinwhich thedirectorsare registration on various ESPs and maintenance
interested, maintained under the Companies Act, of multiple user IDs and passwords by the
2013 will beavailablefor inspection by theMembers shareholders.
electronically during theAGM. Members seeking to In order toincreasetheefficiency of thevoting
inspect such documents can send an email to process, pursuant to a public consultation, it
cspreeti @groupsignet.com. has been decided to enable e-voting to al.l the
24.  THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS demat account holders, by way of a single
FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL login credential, through their demat
MEETINGSAREASUNDER: ?)CCOU.TtS/ vaebt.SIFeS tOf [I;)epa(isnorles{
. o epository Participants. Demat accoun
Step 1: Access t.hrough Depositories CDSL/NSDL holderswould beableto cast their votewithout
qutlngsystemlncaseof individual shareholders having to register againwith the ESPs, thereby
holding sharesin demat mode. . . not only facilitating seamless authentication
Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in but also enhancing ease and convenience of
caseof shareholdersholding sharesin physical mode participatingin e-voting process.
gnd non-lndl\(ldual s.harehol.dersmdemat mode. Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL
(i)  Thevoting period begins on 27.09.2022 at 9:00 e-Voting systemin caseof individual  shareholders
During this period shareholders of the . .
! oL . iv) In terms of SEBI circular no.
Company, holding shareseither inphysical form O RN OICe Dier DICI Wb i2as0i943
or in demateridized form, ason thecut-o]‘f date dated December 9. 2020 on e-Voting fadility
(record date) of 23,09.2022 may cast their vote provided by Listed Companies, Individud
32&% gal lgD;[' ?Oﬁ/\g%t:]n%hgggflig shall be shareholders holding securitiesin demat mode
3 Y 9 o are alowed to vote through their demat
the meeti ng da[e WOUId not be entlt|ed to vote Depositorv Part|c| Dants_ Shareho'ders are
at themeeting venue. advised to update their mobile number and
(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. email Id in their demat accounts in order to
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 accesse-Voting facility.
dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method
Securities and Exchange Board of India for e-Voting and joining virtua meetings for
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Individual shareholders holding securities in
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed Demat mode CDSL/NSDL isgivenbelow:
Type of shareholders Login Method
Individual Shareholders | 1) Userswho have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id

holding securitiesin
Demat mode with CDSL
Depository

2)

and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit www.cdslindia.com and click on Login
iconand select New SystemMyeasi.

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible
companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On
clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting. Additionally, thereisa so links provided to accessthe system of all e-
Voting Service Providersi.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit
thee-Voting serviceproviders websitedirectly.
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3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Regi stration/Easi Regi stration
4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number
and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on  www.cdslindia.com home page or click on
https://evoting.cddlindia.com/Evoting/EvotingL ogin The system will authenticate the user by
sending OTP onregistered Mobile & Email asrecorded in the Demat Account. After successful
authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting isin progress and
asoabletodirectly accessthe system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders
holding securitiesin
demat mode with NSDL
Depository

1) If you are dready registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of
NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https.//eservices.nsdl.com either on a
Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Servicesislaunched, click on the
"Beneficial Owner" icon under "Login" whichisavailable under 'IDeAS section. A new screen
will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication,
you will be ableto see e-Voting services. Click on"Accessto e-Voting" under e-Voting services
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company hame or e-Voting service provider
name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote
during theremote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during themeeting.

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select "Register Online for IDeAS "Portal or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/| deasDirectReg.jsp

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home
page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login" which is available under
'Sharehol der/Member' section. A new screen will open. You will haveto enter your User ID (i.e.
your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL ), Password/OTP and a Verification
Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your
voteduring theremote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during themeeting

Individual Shareholders
(holding securitiesin
demat mode) login
through their Depository
Participants (DP)

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository
Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be
able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature.
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting
service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during themesting.

Important note: Memberswho areunableto retrieve User | D/ Password are advised to use Forget User | D and Forget Password

option avail able at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholder sholding securitiesin demat modefor any technical issuesrelated tologin through

Depositoryi.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type

Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
Demat modewith CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
hel pdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at toll freeno. 180022 5533

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
Demat modewithNSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.inor call at toll freeno.: 1800 1020 990 and 180022 44 30
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Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-individual
shareholdersin demat mode.

(v) Loginmethod for e-Voting andjoining virtual meetingsfor Physical sharehol dersand shareholdersother thanindividual
holdingin Demat form.

1) Theshareholdersshouldlog ontothe e-voting websitewww.evotingindia.com.
2)  Clickon"Shareholders' module.
3) Now enteryour User ID
a. ForCDSL: 16digitsbeneficiary ID,
b. ForNSDL: 8Character DPID followed by 8 DigitsClient 1D,
¢. Shareholdersholding sharesin Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.
4)  Nextenterthelmage Verification asdisplayed and Click on Login.

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-
voting of any company, then your existing password isto beused.

6) Ifyouareafirst-timeuserfollow thestepsgivenbelow:

For Physical shareholder sand other than individual shareholdersholding sharesin Demat.

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric * PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both
demat shareholdersaswell asphysical shareholders)

e Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are
requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) asrecorded in your demat
account or inthecompany recordsinorder tologin.

Dividend Bank Details
OR Dateof Birth(DOB) |*

If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the member id /
folionumber inthe Dividend Bank detailsfield.

(vi)  After entering these details appropriately, click on (xii)  After selecting the resolution, you have decided to
"SUBMIT" tab. vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A confirmation box
(vii)  Shareholders holding shares in physical form will will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote,
then directly reach the Company selection screen. click on "OK", else to change your vote, click on
However, sharehol ders holding sharesin demat form CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote.
will now reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein (xiii)  Onceyou "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution,
they are required to mandatorily enter their login youwill not beallowed tomodify your vote.
passwordinthenew passwordfield. Kindly notethat (xiv)  Youcanalsotakeaprint of thevotescast by clicking
;hls pafs/vc;rd isto lbet?|50 u:fsed by ttf;]e demat holders on"Click hereto print" option onthe Voting page.
or voting for resolutions of any other company on .
which tr?ey are eligible to yote provid%d X[hat (xv) Ifa derr:jat r?ccoEnt holrt]jeruhas flcl):;gottgn rt]he_logln
company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. password then Enter the User and the image
It isp st)r/on%Iy recomme%ded r?ot to shgre your verification code and click on Forgot Password &
password with any other person and take utmost care ) enter thgdetallsasprompted by the.w.stem.
tokeepyour password confidential. (xvi) There is .also an optiona provision to upload
(viii)  For shareholdersholding sharesin physical form, the BR/EObIA it any ‘.Jp'ofded' .\?.’h'ch will be made
details can be used only for e-voting on the avallabletoscrutinizer for verification.
resol utionscontainedin thisNotice. (xvii) Additional Facility fpr Non - Individgal
(ix)  Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company islar eholders and Custodians -For Remote Voting
Name> onwhichyou choosetovote. Y- Non-Individual sharehold X "
. ; . on-Individual shareholders (i.e. other
x) On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION L
DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option g‘l?gtoé?gr']\s”d;ael s,r HuliJer '\:EI Ioetc.zmartlg
"YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO WWW.evolin ind(ieg com and ?e ister
asdesired. Theoption Y ESimpliesthat you assent to themsélvesintt?e"Cor 'orat%" module 9
the Resolution and option NO implies that you P T
dissent tothe Resol ution. . A scanned copy of the Registration
(xi)  Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you Form bearing the stamp and sign of the

wishtoview theentireResolution details.

entity should be emailed to
hel pdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.
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After receiving the login details a Compliance
User should be created using the admin login
and password. The Compliance User would be
ableto link the account(s) for which they wish
tovoteon.

The list of accounts linked in the login will be
mapped automatically & can be delink in case
of any wrong mapping.

It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the
Board Resolution and Power of Attorney
(POA) which they haveissued infavour of the
Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF
format in the system for the scrutinizer to
verify thesame.

Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are
required mandatory to send the relevant Board
Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with
attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory who are authorized to
vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at
the email addressviz; cspreeti @groupsignet.com
(designated email address by company) , if
they have voted from individual tab & not
uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system
for thescrutinizer toverify thesame.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS
ATTENDING THE AGM/EGM THROUGH
VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING
AREASUNDER:

1

The procedure for attending meeting & e
\oting ontheday of theAGM/EGM issameas
theinstructionsmentioned abovefor e-voting.

Thelink for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will
beavailablewherethe EV SN of Company will
be displayed after successful login as per the
instructionsmentioned abovefor e-voting.

Shareholders who have voted through Remote
e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting.
However, they will not beeligibletovoteat the
AGM/EGM.

Shareholders are encouraged to join the
Meeting through Laptops / |Pads for better
experience.

Further shareholders will be required to allow
Camera and use Internet with a good speed to
avoid any disturbance during themeeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from
Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may
experience Audio/Video loss due to
Fluctuation in their respective network. It is
therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or
LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of
aforesaidglitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their
views/ask questions during the meeting may
register themselves as a speaker by sending
their request in advance atleast 7 daysprior to

26.
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meeting mentioning their name, demat
account number/folio number, email id, mobile
number at (company email id). The
shareholders who do not wish to speak during
the AGM but have queries may send their
gueries in advance 7 days prior to meeting
mentioning their name, demat account
number/folio number, email id, mobile number
at (company email id). These queries will be
replied to by thecompany suitably by email.
Those shareholders who have registered
themselvesasaspeaker will only beallowed to
express their views/ask questions during the
meeting.

Only those shareholders, who are presentinthe
AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM facility and
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions
through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not
barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote
through e-Voting system available during the
EGM/AGM.

If any Votes are cast by the shareholdersthrough
the e-voting available during the EGM/AGM
and if the same shareholders have not
participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM
facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders
may be considered invaid as the facility of e-
voting during themeetingisavailableonly tothe
sharehol dersattending themeeting.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS
WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT
REGISTERED WITH THE
COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1

For Physical shareholders- please provide
necessary details like Folio No., Name of
shareholder, scanned copy of the share
certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by
email to Company/RTA email id.

For Demat shareholders -, Please update your
email id & mobile no. with your respective
Depository Participant (DP)

For Individual Demat shareholders - Please
update your email id & mobile no. with your
respective Depository Participant (DP) which
is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtua
meetingsthrough Depository.

If you haveany queriesor issuesregarding attendingAGM &
e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an
email to helpdesk.evoting@cddindia.com or contact at toll

freeno. 1800225533
All grievances connected with the facility for voting by

electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr.
Manager, (CDSL, ) Centra Depository Services (India)
Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatla Mill
Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai -
400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
orcal toll freeno. 1800225533.
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Other Instructions-

In case you have any queries or issues
regarding e-voting, you may refer the
Frequently Asked Questions ("FAQs") and E-
voting manual available at
www.evotingindia.com under help section or
write an email to
hel pdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

The voting rights of shareholders shall be in
proportion to their shares of the paid up equity
share capital of the company as on the cut-off
date (record date) of 23rd September, 2022.

Mr. Manish Maheshwari, Proprietor M/s M.
Maheshwari & Associates, Company
Secretaries (Membership No. FCS: 5174, CP
No. 3860) has been appointed as the
Scrutinizer to scrutinize the E-voting process
inafair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer, after scrutinizing the votes
cast at themeeting (Poll) and through remote e-
voting, will not later than forty eight (48) hours
of conclusion of the meeting, make a
consolidated scrutinizer'sreport and submit the
sametotheChairman.

Place: Indore
Date: 10th August, 2022

Registered Office:

1003, M eadows Building, Sahar Plaza Complex
J. B. Nagar Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri (E)
Mumbai — 400 059

CIN: L51900M H1985PL C035202
E-mail: info@groupsignet.com

28.
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. The Results shall be declared on or after the
AGM of the Company. The Results declared
aong-with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be
placed on the Company's website
www.groupsignet.com and on the website of
CDSL within two (2) days of passing of the
resolutions at the AGM of the Company and
communicated tothe Exchanges.

Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 extends the
nomination facility to individual shareholders of the
Company. Therefore, the shareholders willing to
avail thisfacility may make nominationin Form SH-
13.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (vide circular
N0s.17/2011 and 18/2011 dated April 21 and April
29, 2011 respectively, has undertaken a Green
initiative in 'Corporate Governance' and alowed
companies to share documents with its shareholders
through an electronic mode. Members are requested
to support this green initiative by representing /
updating their e-mail addresses, in respect of shares
held in dematerialized form with their respective
Depository Participantsand in respect of sharesheld
inphysical formwith Transfer Agent.

By Order of Board

For Signet Industries Limited

Sd/-

Preeti Singh

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
ACS 26118
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF
SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102
OFTHE COMPANIESACT, 2013

Item No.5

TheBoard of Directorsof the Company, on recommendation
of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment of
M/sA.K. Jain & Associates, Cost Accountants (Registration
N0.101472) as Cost Auditorsto conduct the audit of the cost
records of the Company for the financial year ending 31st
March, 2023.

M/s A.K. Jain & Associates, Cost Accountants
(Registration N0.101472) have confirmed that they hold a
valid certificate of practice under Sub-section (1) of Section
6 of the Cost and Work A ccountantsAct, 1959.

Place: Indore
Date: 10th August, 2022

Registered Office:

1003, M eadows Building, Sahar Plaza Complex
J. B. Nagar Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri (E)
Mumbai — 400 059

CIN: L51900M H1985PL C035202
E-mail: info@groupsignet.com

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost
Auditors has to be ratified by the Member of the Company.
Accordingly consent of the Membersis sought by way of an
Ordinary Resolution as set at Item no. 5 of the Notice for
ratification of the remuneration amounting to
Rs.60,000/(Sixty thousand only)& Taxes as applicable(
(Including out of pocket expenses if any) & Rs.10,000/(Ten
thousand Only)for XBRL Conversion charges.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (or
their relatives) areinterested inthe said resolution.

TheBoard recommendstheresol utionfor your approval.

By Order of Board

For Signet Industries Limited

Sd/-

Preeti Singh

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
ACS 26118

10
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DETAILSOFDIRECTOR SEEKINGAPPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT

Name of Director

Mr. Saurabh Sangla

Date of Birth 01.07.1981
Age 41

Date of Appointment 07.07.2003
Experiencein specific functional area 15 years

Qualification

Bachelor degreein Industrial Engineering and Operations Research

No & % of Equity share held in the Company

97103 shares 0.33%

List of outside company'sdirectorship held in Public Limited
Company

Adroit Industries (India) Limited

Chairman / Member of the Committees of the/ Board of
Directors of the Company

Chairman in CSR Committee and member in Nomination and
Remuneration Committee,

Chairman/Member of the Committees of the Board Directors of
other Companiesin which he/sheisdirector

Member in Audit Committee and Chairman in CSR committee

Relation between director inter -se

Son of Mukesh Sangla, Managing Director

11
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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Members,

TheBoard of Directorsare pleased to present the Company's Thirty Seventh Annual Report and the Company'saudited financial

statementsfor thefinancia year ended March 31, 2022.
1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The audited financial statements of the Company as on March 31, 2022 are prepared in accordance with the relevant
applicableInd AS and Regulation 33 of the Securitiesand Exchange Board of India(Listing Obligationsand Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (" SEBI Listing Regulations") and provisions of theCompaniesAct, 2013 ("Act").

Thesummarized financial highlightisdepicted below:

(Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Sales& Other Income 87866.85 82881.23
Total Expenditureexcluding finance cost & depreciation 81554.94 76459.01
EarningbeforeFinanceCost, Depreciation & Tax 6311.91 6422.22
Less: Finance Cost 4280.41 4623.81
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 861.34 793.43
Profit beforeTax and extraordinary items 1170.16 1004.98
Exceptional & Extraordinary items - 164.02
Profit beforeTax 1170.16 1169.00
Current Tax (424.00) (268.00)
Deferred Tax 78.28 427.79
Tax Relatingto Earlier Year Tax - 65.97
Profit (L oss) for theYear 824.45 1394.77
Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Equity Sharesof FaceValueof Rs. 10/- each. (InRs.) 2.68 4.61

2. PERFORMANCEHIGHLIGHTS

The Company during the year under review has
registered Total Incomeof Rs. 87866.85 lacsasagainst
Rs. 82881.23 lacs in the previous year. The Company
hasearned Profit Before Tax amountingto Rs. 1170.16
lacs during the year under review as against Rs.
1004.98 lacs in the previous year. Net profit after tax
for the current year is Rs. 824.45 |acs as compared to
Rs. 1394.77lacsinthepreviousyear.

The company continues to retain and reinforce its
market |leadership in theallocated segmentsinwhichit
operates. There are no material changes or
commitments affecting the financial position of the
company which have occurred between the end of the
financial year and the date of this report other than the
impact of Covid-19 on business operations of the
company detailed in this report. The demand was
affected dueto COVID-19 Pandemic.

3. DIVIDEND

The Board considering the Company's performance
and financial position for the year under review,
recommended adividend pay-out of Rs. 0.5 per equity
shares for the year ended 2021-2022 subject to
approval from the shareholder at the ensuing AGM.
The payment of final dividend is subject to the

approva of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual
Genera Meeting (AGM) of theCompany.

Thetotal outflow on account of equity dividend will be
Rs.147.185lacs.

Inview of thechangesmadeunder thelncome-tax Act,
1961, by the Finance Act, 2020, dividends paid or
distributed by the Company shall be taxable in the
hands of the Shareholders. The Company shall,
accordingly, make the payment of the final dividend
after deduction of tax at source.

UNPAID/UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND

In terms of the provisions of Investor Education and
Protection Fund (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and
Refund) Rules, 2016/Investor Education and
Protection Fund (Awareness and Protection of
Investors) Rules, 2001, amount of Rs. 158165.00
unpaid/unclaimed dividends were transferred during
theyear tothelnvestor Education and Protection Fund.

BOARD OFDIRECTORS
a Directors& Key Managerial Personnel

Re-appointments : In accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company and
Section 152 of The Companies Act,2013, Mr.
Saurabh Sangla (DIN: 00206069), Non-Executive

12
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Director is dueto retire by rotation at the ensuing
Annua General Meeting and being eligible, offer
himself for re-appointment.

Declaration from Directors: The Company has
received the following declarations from all the
Independent Directorsconfirming that:

. They meet the criteria of independence as

prescribed under the provisions of the Act, read
with the Schedule and Rules issued thereunder,
and the Listing Regulations. There has been no
change in the circumstances affecting their status
as|ndependent Directorsof the Company; and

. They have registered themselves with the

Independent Director's Database maintained by
thel ICA.

None of the Directors of the Company are
disqualified for being appointed as Directors as
specified in Section 164(2) of the Act and Rule
14(1) of the Companies (Appointment and
Quialification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

Number of meetingof Board of Directors

During the year under review, 11 (Eleven)
meetings of the Board of Directorswere held. The
details of the meetings of the Board of Directors of
the Company held and attended by the Directors
during the financial year 2021-22 are given in the
Corporate Governance Report which forms part of
this Annual Report. The maximum interval
between any two meetings did not exceed 120
days, asprescribed by theAct.

Familiarization programme for Independent
Directors

The Company conducts Familiarization
Programme for the Independent Directors to
enable them to familiarize with the Company, its
Management and itsoperationsso astogain aclear
understanding of their roles, rights and
responsibilities for the purpose of contributing
significantly towards the growth of the Company.
They are given full opportunity to interact with
Senior Management Personnel and are provided
with all the documents required and/or sought by
them to have a good understanding of the
Company, its business model and various
operationsandtheindustry of whichitisapart.

Performance Evaluation of Board, Committee
and Directors

In accordance with applicable provisions of The
CompaniesAct, 2013 and Listing Regulations, the
evaluation of the Board as a whole, committees
and all the Directors was conducted, as per the
internally designed evaluation process approved
by the Board. The evaluation process inter alia
considers attendance of Directors at Board and
committee meetings, acquaintance with business,
communicating inter se board members, effective
participation, domain knowledge, compliance

& ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

with code of conduct, vision and strategy. The
evaluation tested key areas of the Board's work
including strategy, business performance, risk and
governance processes. The evaluation considers
the balance of skills, experience, independence
and knowledge of the management and the Board,
itsoveral diversity, and analysis of the Board and
itsDirectors functioning.

The report on performance evauation of the
Individual Directors was reviewed by the
Chairman of the Board and feedback was given to
Directors.

Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial
Per sonnel and Senior M anagement

The remuneration paid to the Directors, Key
Manageria Personnel and Senior Management is
in accordance with the Nomination and
Remuneration Policy formulated in accordance
with Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 read
with Schedule Il of the Listing Regulations.
Further details on the same are given in the
Corporate Governance Report which forms part of
thisAnnual Report.

Theinformation required under Section 197 of the
Act read with Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 in respect of Directors employees of the
Company is set out in the Annexure 1X to this
report.

Committeesof theboard

In accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 the Board has the following
four (4) committees:

i). AuditCommittee

ii). Nominationand Remuneration Committee
iii). Stakeholders Relationship Committee

iv). Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Company has also constituted Internal
Complain Committee (ICC) under the Sexud
Harassment of Women at the Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013.
A detailed note on the Committeesis provided in
the Corporate Governance Report.

Director Responsibility Statement
Your Directorsstatethat:

a) inthe preparation of the annual accounts for
theyear ended March 31, 2022, the applicable
accounting standards read with requirements
set out under Schedule |1l to the Act, have
been followed and there are no material
departuresfromthesame;

b) the Directors had selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are

13
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reasonableand prudent so asto giveatrueand
fair view of the state of affairsof the Company
as at March 31, 2022 and of the profit of the
Company for theyear ended on that date;

¢) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient
care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregul arities;

d) the Directors had prepared the annual
accountsona'going concern' basis;

€) theDirectorshad laid down internal financial
controls to be followed by the Company and
that such internal financia controls are
adequate and are operating effectively; and

f) TheDirectors have devised proper systemsto
ensure compliance with the provisions of al
applicable laws and that such systems are
adequate and operating effectively.

FINANCE

a. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or
Investments:

The Particulars of loans, guarantees and
investment made by the Company pursuant to
Section 186 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 aregiven
inthe NotestotheFinancial Statements..

b. Related Party Transactions

In line with the requirements of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, your Company
has formulated a Policy on Related Party
Transactions which is also available on
http://www.groupsignet.com/investors/policy. All
Related Party Transactions are placed before the
Audit Committee for review and approval of the
Committeeon aquarterly basis. Also the Company
has obtained prior omnibus approval for Related
Party Transactions occurred during the year, for
transactions which are of repetitive natureand/ or
entered in the ordinary course of business and are
at arm'slength.

All the related party transactions entered into
during the financia year were on an arm's length
basis and were in the ordinary course of business.
Your Company had not entered into any
transactions with related parties which could be
considered material in terms of Section 188 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013. Accordingly, thedisclosure
of related party transactions as required under
Section134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in
FormAOC 2isnot applicable.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION
AND REDRESSAL)ACT, 2013

The Company has complied with the provisions
relating to the constitution of the Internal Complaint
Committee in compliance with Sexual Harassment of

10.
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Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 to consider and resolve all sexual
harassment complaintsreported by women. During the
year there is no complain regarding the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workpl ace.

EXTRACTSOFANNUAL RETURN

TheAnnua Return of the Company ason 31st March,
2022 in Form MGT - 9 in accordance with Section
92(3) of the Act read with the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, is
available on the website of the Company at
https://www.groupsignet.com.com/ investors/Annual
Return.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER
POLICY

The Company has a whistle blower mechanism
wherein the empl oyees can approach the M anagement
of the Company (Audit Committee in case where the
concern involves the Senior Management) and make
protective disclosures to the Management about
unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or
violation of the Company's Code of Conduct and
Insider Trading Code.

TheWhistleBlower Policy requiresevery employeeto
promptly report to the Management any actua or
possibleviolation of the Code or an event an employee
becomes aware of that could affect the business or
reputation of the Company. The disclosures reported
areaddressed in the manner and within thetimeframes
prescribed in the policy. A mechanism is in place
whereby any employee of the Company has access to
the Chairman of the Audit Committee to report any
concern. No person has been denied access to the
Chairmanto report any concern.

Further, the said policy has been disseminated within
the organisation and has aso been posted on the
Company's website
athttp://www.groupsignet.com/investors/policies

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS
REPORT

The Management Discussion and Analysis forms an
integral part of this Report and gives detail of the
overal industry structure, developments, performance
and state of affairs of the Company's various
businesses viz., the decorative business international
operations, industrial and home improvement
business, internal controls and their adequacy, risk
management systemsand other material developments
duringthefinancial year (Annexurel).

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGSAND OUTGO:

The information on conservation of energy,
technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings
and outgo stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the
Companies (Accounts)Rules, 2014, as amended from
time to timeis annexed to this Report as (Annexure -
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13.

Vil).
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

SIL has established CSR Committee as per the
provision of the Companies Act, 2013. CSR
Committee recommends CSR activities to be
undertaken by the Company, to the Board as specified
in Schedule V11 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 ( herein
after referred to as"the Schedule VII™). SIL will spend,
in every Financia Year, at least 2 per cent of the
average net profits of the Company made during the 3
immediately preceding Financia Years, in pursuance
of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there
under for the purposes specified in Schedule V11 and
asoin pursuance of thisCSR Policy. The detailsof the
sameareattached as(AnnexureV1) inthereport.

AUDITORS& THEIRREPORT
A. StatutoryAuditors:

M/s. SMAK & Co., Chartered Accountants,
Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (ICAl Firm
Registration No. 020120C), were appointed as
Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 33rd
Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on
September 26, 2017, for a period of five (5)
consecutive years from the conclusion of the 33rd
AGM till theconclusion of the37th AGM.

The Board of Directors of the Company at their
meeting held on August 10, 2022 appointed
SMAK & Co., Chartered Accountants, Chartered
Accountants, Mumbai (ICAI Firm Registration
No. 020120C) as Statutory Auditors of the
Company for asecond term of five (5) consecutive
years from the conclusion of 37th AGM till the
conclusion of 42nd AGM, subject to the approval
of the shareholders at the ensuing AGM of the
Company.

The Audit report for the financial year 2021-22
does not contain any qualification, reservation or
adverseremarks. Further, during thefinancial year
2021-22, the Statutory Auditors have not reported
any instances of fraud to the Audit Committee or
Board as per Section 143(12) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

B. CostAuditors:

Pursuant to provisions of Section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, amended
from time to time, the Company has appointed
Cost Auditor M/sA. K. Jain & Associates, for the
year 2022-23 on the total remuneration of Rs.
60,000/- and Rs. 10,000/- for XBRL conversation
charges incurred in connection with the aforesaid
audit and has filed the Form CRA-2 to the
Registrar. Your directors propose to approve their
remuneration at the forthcoming Annua General
Meeting.

C. Secretarial Auditors:

14.
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has
appointed M/s M. Maheshwari & Associates,
Company Secretaries to undertake the Secretaria
Audit of the Company. The Secretarial Auditorsin
their report for the year 2021-22 has confirmed the
compliances made by the Company except the
mattersstated below:

Form CRA-4 for filing of Cost Audit Report not
filed during the audit period

The Report of the Secretarial Audit for the year
2021-22 inthe Form MR-3isannexed herewith as
(AnnexureV).

d. Internal Auditors

In compliance with the provisions of Section 138
of Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, your Company has
appointed Mr. Pramod Dewada as Interna
Auditorsfor theFinancial Year 2022-23.

e. Reportingof Fraud by auditors

During the year under review neither the statutory
auditor nor the secretarial auditor has reported to
the audit committee, under Section 143 (12) of the
Companies Act, 2013, any instances of fraud
committed against the Company by its officers or
employees, the details of which would need to be
mentionedintheBoard'sreport.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The report on Corporate Governance as stipulated
under Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 along with the
requisite certificate from the Practicing Company
Secretary of the Company confirming compliance
with the conditions of the corporate governance is
appended and forms a part of thisreport alongwith the
certificate of Disgqualification of Directors received
from Practicing Company Secretary as the Annexure
X1 and Certificate of the Corporate Governance
Report fromMD & CFO of the company asAnnexure
Vil andIX.

The Company has also obtained the Certificate on
Corporate Governance from the Statutory Auditor as
AnnexureVI.

DISCLOSURES
a. Material ChangesAnd Commitments

There have been no material changes and
commitments for the likely impact affecting
financial position between end of the financial
year and the date of thereport except for theimpact
arising out of the continuance of the COVID-19
pandemic which has risen exponentialy in the
second wavetill thedate of signing of thisReport.

Please refer Note 53 of Notes to the standalone

15




SIGNET INDUSTRIES LIMITED

16.

financial statementsfor further detailsinrespect of
impact of COVID-19 on the financia statements
of theComp

b. ChangeintheNatureof Business, If Any

There was no change in the nature of business of
the Company during the Financial Year ended 31st
March2022.

c. Secretarial Standards

The Directors state that applicable Secretarial
Standards, i.e. SS-1and SS-2, relating to'Meetings
of the Board of Directors and 'General Meetings,
respectively, have been duly followed by the
Company.

d. Significant and Material orders passed by the
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting
thegoing concer n statusof the Company:

Therearenosignificant and material orderspassed
by the Regulators / Courts / Tribunals, which
would impact the going concern status of the
Company anditsfutureoperation

e. Detailsof Fixed Deposits

During the year under review, the Company has
not accepted any Deposit under Section 73 of The
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. It isfurther
stated that the Company does not have any
deposits which are not in compliance with the
requirements of Chapter VV of The CompaniesAct,
2013.

PARTICULARSOFEMPLOYEES

The relation between the employees and the
management has been cordial throughout the year
under review and the Directors place on record their
appreciation for the efficient services rendered by the
employeesat al levels.

The information required under Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are provided in
separate annexure forming part of this Report, as
(Annexure-11).

The statement containing particulars of employees as

Place: Indore
Date: 10th August, 2022
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required under Section 197 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with rule 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Manageria
Personnel) Rules, 2014, will be provided upon request.
In terms of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Report and Accountsare being sent tothe Members
and others entitled thereto, excluding the information
on employees particulars which is available for
inspection by the members at the Registered Office of
the Company during business hours on working days
of the Company. If any member is interested in
obtaining a copy thereof, such Member may write to
the Company Secretary inthisregard.

17. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

According to Section 134(5) (e) of the CompaniesAct,
2013 theterm Internal Financial Control (IFC) means
the policies and procedures adopted by the company
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company's policies,
safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and timely preparation of reliable
financial information.

The Company hasadequate system of internal controls
to ensure that al the assets are safeguarded and are
productive. Necessary checksand controlsarein place
to ensure that transactions are properly verified,
adequately authorized, correctly recorded and
properly reported. The Internal Auditors of the
Company conducts Audit of various departments to
ensurethat internal controlsarein place

18. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

We would like to thank all our Stakeholders viz.
Shareholders, Investors Bankers, Customers,
Suppliers, Government agencies, Stock exchangesand
Depositories, Auditors, legal advisors, consultants,
business associates, service providers for their
continued commitment, and invincible enthusiasm
whichmadethisyear productiveand pleasurable.

The Board also places on record, their deep sense of
appreciationtowards al its Employeesat all levelsfor
adopting the values of the Company and their hard
work duringtheyear.

By Order of Board
For Signet Industries Limited

Mukesh Sangla
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN : 00189676
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Annexure- |

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SISREPORT

Indian Economy Overview

The Financial Year 2021-22 started with a Nation-wide
lockdown in India athough India emerged as the
fastestgrowing major economy in theworld and is expected
to be one of thetop three economic powersin theworld over
the next 10-15 years, backed by its robust democracy and
strong partnerships. The Economic Survey has proj ected that
the economy will grow at 11%, up from an estimated historic
decline of 7.7% in 2021-22, on account of the COVID-19
pandemic. Also, thevaccination driveis expected to provide
an impetus for the restoration of contact-intensive sectors
and aleading edgeto the Indian pharmaindustry in the global
market. The Government of India, under its Make in India
initiative, is trying to boost the contribution made by the
manufacturing sector with an aim to take it to 25% of the
GDPfromthecurrent 17%.

With the shift in sentiment to reduce dependence on asingle
country i.e. China, we are seeing increasing interest from
international companieswantingtoinvestinindia. Interestis
largely fromAsialed by Japan, Koreaand Thailand although
we are also seeing interest from Europe. Some of these
enquiries are in sectors such as agrochemicals, building
products, logistics, packaging, and new-age technology
including electronics,

Indian Piping|ndustry

Thelndian Pipelndustry hasexperienced rapid growthinthe
last several years. The major reasons for the growth of this
industry is increasing demand for pipes in the irrigation
sector, oil and gas sector and a so thereal estateindustry. The
demand for plastic pipes such as PVC and CPVC is aso
increasing as these pipes are better in quality and durability.
Infrastructure devel opment, urbani zati on and the subsequent
development of residential and industrial construction are
facilitatingthegrowth of thepipeindustry inIndia.

Plastic pipes and fitting market is segmented into UPVC,
CPVC, HDPE, LDPE, PPE and others. Of these, UPVC has
accounted for the highest revenue share, following by HDPE
pipesand fittings. PV C includes both UPV C (Un plasticized
polyvinyl chloride) and CPVC (chlorinated polyvinyl
chloride) pipes and fittings. UPVC pipes and fittings have
major demand in the market dueto itsfair pricing and wider
range of applications into sector like irrigation, sewerage,
water supply, plumbing and bore-well system. CPV C pipes
are used for hot and cold water distribution systems and are
significant addition to the bathroom fittings. PE (poly
ethylene) includes HDPE and LDPE pipes and fittings.
UPV C plumbing systemisan easy & economical product for
distribution of water in residential, commercial & Industrial
buildings with many advantages over the conventional

piping system

Key Government measures such asdoubling farmincome by
2020, the Pradhan Mantri Krishi Sinchai Yojana, the Swachh
Bharat Mission, the Smart City Programme, the Pradhan
Mantri Awas Yojana and others supportive policies should
help in driving PV C and HDPE pipes demand. Moreover,
government actions such as demonetisation, GST, etc., have
spurred the market shift from unorganised to organised
players which is being accelerated owing to growing
awarenessabout quality products.

Global growth outlook has changed since the outbreak of
COVID-19. The Outbreak would make growth environment
challengingin first half of FY 2020-21 but the Company has
been closely monitoring it and shall take every possible steps
to managethissituation.

There has been coordinated global monetary policy easing
and fiscal support from governments. These policy support
measures would act as cushions offsetting weakness in
growth to some extent. However, global economic activity is
likely to contract in 2020 and global growth environment
will remain challengingintheshort term.

Opportunities

The future of the Indian plastic pipe market looks attractive
with opportunities in the potable water supply, wastewater
supply, agriculture, infrastructure and chemical sector.
While agriculture sector is expected to remain the largest
growth driver, growth of residentiad and commercid
construction and the growth in infrastructure development
are expected to spur growth for thissegment. Furthermore,
with the key market players integrating more back-end
exploration and refining businesses, aongside streamlining
their sourcing operations, opportunities are expected to
increaseinthecoming years.

Indiaisfacing one of itsmajor and most seriouswater crises.
Thereisacute shortage of water in both urban and rural areas
dueto erraticrainfall patternsand decreasing natural sources
of water. More than fifty percent of the country is grappling
with drought-like conditions and groundwater is declining
faster than it is being replenished. The Union government
recently formed a new Jal Shakti (water) ministry, which
aims at tackling water issues with a holistic and integrated
perspective on the subject. The ministry has announced an
ambitious plan to provide piped water connections to every
household in India by 2024 which bodes well the industry.
Also, theagricultural sector which currently consumesabout
80 percent of water in India is likely to be further
incentivized to adopt water saving techniques using micro
irrigation/dripirrigation.
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Inthe past few years, government of Indiahasinitiated many
new projects and investments in the irrigation sector.
Government's thrust on reviving the farm sector through
various initiatives and reforms such as increasing minimum
support price, direct income support and interest subvention
on crop loans augurs well for the sector. The focus of the
government is on rural water management, which will be
fulfilled only when there will be proper infrastructurefor the
transportation of water to the end-user. This factor will
remainasoneof themajor driversfor thegrowth of PV C pipe
industry in the country along with the expansion of housing
sector and increasing demand for oil and gas transportation.
It has a so been anticipated that both urban and rural areasin
Indiaarelikely to suffer fromwater shortage problemsdueto
erratic rainfall patterns and decreasing natural sources of
water. Thiswill lead to the construction of more borewells
acrossthe country todraw groundwater.

Multiple schemes and projects launched in last couple of
years are leading to higher demand for pipes. Some of the
Schemesareasunder:

¢ Housing for all by 2022: Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojna
(PMAY) isan Gol initiativein which affordable housing
will be provided to the urban poor with a target of
building 2 croreaffordablehousesby 31 March 2022.

e Smart cities mission: It is an urban renewal and
retrofitting program with the mission to develop 100
cities across the country making them citizen friendly
and sustainable. The Government increased allocation
for the Smart Cities Mission by 7% to Rs 6,600 crorein
Union Budget 2019. Since the launch of the mission, a
total of 5,151 projects have been identified and are in
variousstagesof implementationin 100cities.

¢ AMRUT: The Atal Mission for Rejuvenation and Urban
Transformation (AMRUT) was launched with the focus
to establish infrastructure that could ensure adequate
robust sewage networks and water supply for urban
transformation by implementing urban revival projects.
An investment of Rs 50,000 crore has been approved by
thecabinet.

* National Rural Drinking Water Programme: The
main objective of this schemeisto provide rural people
adequate safewater for drinking, cooking and ensurethat
all the sections of the communities have access to safe
drinking water. This scheme seeks to prevent the
contamination of water.

Pradhan Mantri Krishi SinchayeeYojana(PMK SY):
Through thisschemethe Gol aimstoincrease cultivation
areawith assured irrigation, reduce wastage of water and
improve water use efficiency. Theinitiative not only on
creating sources for assured irrigation, but also creating
protectiveirrigation by harnessing rainwater.

& ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

Furthermore, Agriculture continues to be an important
sector of Indian economy. While it contributes around
18% of theIndia'sGDP, it empl oysover 50% of country's
workforce. Over 50% of thetotal agricultural landisstill
dependent on monsoons. Thisclearly showstheneed and
potential to increase irrigation coverage in India. The
government has laid down several initiatives and
reformsthat would directly and indirectly trigger higher
demand for plastic piping as well as micro irrigation
products.

e The government has given a clarion call to double
farmer's income by 2022. This is to be achieved by
helping farmers to produce more from the same land
parcel at lesser cost and at the same time fetch higher
prices for their produce. More agricultural land is
expected to be brought under irrigation resulting in
efficient modesof water transportation.

¢ Additional institutional credit of Rsl lakh crore for
agriculture sector has been proposed which is positive
for thesector.

¢ Rs 2,600 crore of outlay has been alocated to Prime
Minister Krishi Sinchai Yojna- 'Har Khet ko Pani' - that
focuseson ground water irrigation.

Threats

Thereisaneed to keep vigil onthe quality of productsbeing
offered in market place as many players have joined the
wagon. Constant increase in prices of Raw Material is a
severeissuefor the PV C Pipessinceit hasadirect effect over
thepricesof finished goods product demand.

There are many other threats which includes increasing
crudeail prices, import threat from Middle East, neighboring
countries specializing in processing industries could lead to
importsand replacement threat from substitutes.

Internal Control Systems

SIL, has in place an adequate system of internal control
procedures for business processes, operations, financia
reporting, fraud control and compliancewith applicablelaws
and regulations, among others. They commensurate withthe
size of the company and the nature of the businessand isin
linewithrequirementsof theregulations.

We have laid down adequate procedures and policies to
guide the operations of our business. The unit/functional
heads are responsible for ensuring compliance with the
policies and procedures laid down by the management. Our
internal control systems are periodically tested by the
Management, Statutory Auditorsand I nternal Auditors.
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M/s. SMAK & CO., the Statutory Auditors of the Company
audited the financia statements expressing an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company's internal financial controls over financial. The
same has been included in this Annual Report and issued a
report on the internal controls over financial reporting (as
definedin Section 143 of theCompaniesAct, 2013).

Human Resources

The company continues to maintain a strong relationship
with itsemployees, in order toimprovetheir efficiency level
at the workplace. The Company provides employees with
numerous opportunities to increase their knowledge, skills
and abilitiesand enablesthemto grow intheir careers.

The wellbeing emerged as akey priority for our people and
their families due to the novel corona virus. Through the
year, we built a systemic approach on wellbeing with
customised interventions for various employee segments
and continue to encourage work from home wherever
possible and reinforce safety standards in office and factory
locations.The HR department was continuously in touch
with employees to create awareness, educate, guide and
solve problemsregarding COVID-19.

Place: Indore
Date:10th August, 2022
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TheCompany hasdeclared financial helptothelegal heirsof
the deceased employee who lost his life in Covid 19 by
giving basic salary upto Rs 12000 for next 12 months
towards household expenses. For the school going children
in family, we shall be providing assistance of Rs.1000 per
family for next 12 months, as per eligibility and suitability,
Job will be provided to the wife/brother/son/daughter of the
deceased employee, the Immediate will receive a medica
insuranceof Rs 2, 00, 000/- for ayear. Wehave ensured that
thestaff membersand their family al so get the best treatment.
As on March 31, 2022, the Company had 568 permanent
employees.

Cautionary Statement

The Statement made in this Report on Management
Discussions and Analysis, describing the Company's view
may beforward | ooking statementswithin the meaning of the
applicable security regulations and laws. These assumptions
are based on certain expectations on demand, imports, and
availability of power rates etc. and any change in
Government laws and the economic situation in the country
may mark a difference to the Company's operations. The
Company assumes no responsibility in respect of forward-
looking statements herein, which may undergo changes in
futurefor reasonsbeyond the control of the Company.

By Order of Board
For Signet Industries Limited

Mukesh Sangla
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN : 00189676
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ANNEXURE II

Particulars of Employees
Details pertaining to Remuneration asrequired under Section 197(12) of the CompaniesAct,
2013 read with rule (5) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

No. Particulars

The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the| a. | Mr. Mukesh Sangla 21.96:1
median remuneration of the employees of the Company
for thefinancial year

1

None of the other Directorsreceive any remuneration other then sitting fees.

2. The percentage increase in remuneration of each

Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief, Executive |-2—-Mr- Mukesh Ssg“nq'lz*@ il
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any in the — - g = !
financial year c. | Ms R&s_hmaLaIwanl N!I

d. | Mr. Sanjay Chourey* Nil

e. | Ms.PaakMalviya* Nil

f. Mr. Mayank Shrivas* Nil

g. | Mr.Jagdish ChandraPaliwal Nil

h. | Ms.Preeti Singh Nil

3. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of 5% Approx

employeesinthefinancial year

4. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of
Company 568

5, Average percentileincrease already madein the salaries
" of employees other than the managerial personnel inthe
last financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and
justification thereof and point out if there are any
exceptional circumstancesfor increaseinthemanagerial
remuneration

The increase in the salary of KMPs for Financial Year
2021-22 hasgiveninpointno. (A) (ii) above.

The increase in remuneration is not solely based on
Company's performance but also includes various other
factorslike individual performance, experience, relevant
expertise, skills, academic background, industry trends,
economic situation and future growth prospects etc.
besides Company'sperformance.

Therewere no exceptional circumstancesfor theincrease
in managerial remuneration in comparison to
remuneration of other employees.

6 Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the| Itishereby affirmed that theremuneration paid duringthe
remuneration policy of the Company year isasper theRemuneration Policy of the Company.

* No remuneration, only sitting fees paid
# No percentage increase in the remuneration of the Managing Director,
KMPsin the financial year 2021-22.
@The Non-Executive Director did not take any remuneration.
For and on behalf of the Board
Signet Industries Limited

Mukesh Sangla
Place: Indore Chairman and M anaging Director
Dated:10th August, 2022 DIN : 00189676
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ANNEXURE- 111
Corporate Governance Report

The Corporate Governance Report has been prepared in
compliance with the requirements of Regulations 17 to 27,
read with Schedule V and Clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation
46(2) of the Securitiesand Exchange Board of India(Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, asamended ("'Listing Regulations™).

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The fundamental principle of Corporate Governance is
achieving sustained growth ethically and in the best interest
of all stakeholders. It isnot a mere compliance of laws, rules
and regulations, but a commitment to values, best
management practices and adherence to the highest ethical
principles in al its dealings, to achieve the objects of the
Company, enhance stakeholder valueand dischargeitssocial
responsibility.

Fine Corporate Governance is an essential standard for
establishing the striking Investment Environment which is
needed by competitive Companiesto gain strong positionin
efficient financial markets. For ensuring sound Corporate
Governance practices, the Government of India has put in
place aframework based on the stipul ations contained under
the Companies Act, SEBI Regulations, Accounting
Standards, Secretarial Standards, etc. Recently, SEBI has
amended certain Corporate Governance related regulations
upon recommendation of an expert Committee on Corporate
Governance formed under the Chairmanship of Mr. Uday
Kotak. Your Company shall ensure that its governance
framework incorporates the applicable amendments
introduced in the Listing Regulations and the same is
proactively communicated and absorbed down the line with
a view to strengthen its philosophy of Corporate
Governance.

The Company has also established systems, procedures and
policiesto ensurethat itsBoard of Directorsiswell informed
and well equipped to discharge its overal responsibilities
and provide the Management with the strategic direction
cateringtoexigency of long term shareholdersvalue.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Company's governance framework is based on the
following principles:

* Appropriate composition and size of the Board, with
each member bringing in expertise in their respective
domains;

* Availability of information to the members of the Board
and Board Committees to enable them to discharge their
fiduciary duties;

» Timely disclosure of material operational and financial
informationtothestakeholders;

« Systems and processes in place for internal control; and

e Proper business conduct by the Board, Senior
M anagement and Empl oyees.

Our Corporate Governance Structure ensures that we make
timely disclosures and share accurate information regarding
our financials and performance, as well as disclosures
related to theleadership and governance of the Company.

BOARD OFDIRECTORS
Composition of theBoard

The composition of the Board is in conformity with the
Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations enjoining
specified combination of Executive and Non-Executive
Directorswith at |east one Women Director and not lessthan
fifty per cent of the Board comprising of Independent
Directors as laid down for a Board chaired by Executive
Promoter Director. The Board periodically evaluates the
need for changein itscomposition and size. The Board, inter
alia, focuses on dtrategic planning, risk management,
compliance, corporate governance to maintain high
standards of ethical conduct and integrity and succession
planning for theDirectors.

Details of DirectorsAttendance, shareholding and other
Director ships/ Committeemember ships

None of the Directorson the Board isaMember of morethan
10 Committees and Chairperson of more than 5 Committees
(Committees being Audit Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee, as per Regulation 26(1) of the
Listing Regulations), across al public companies in which
he/she is a Director. The necessary disclosures regarding
committee positions have been made by all the Directors.
None of the Directorshold officein morethan 20 companies
and in more than 10 public companies as prescribed under
Section 165(1) of theAct. No Director holds Directorshipsin
more than 8 listed companies. Further, none of the
Independent Directors ('ID") served as ID in more than 7
listed companies. The Managing Directors did not serve as
an|ndependent Director in any listed company.
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Name of Director Category Attendance Particulars No. of other Directorships
and Committee M ember ships
/Chair manships held*
(including Signet)
Number of Last AGM | Other Committee | Committee
Board held on Directorships| Memberships| Chair
Meetings 25.09.2020 manships
Held | Attended

Mukesh Sangla Chairman/Managing Director 11 11 Yes 2 2 0
Saurabh Sangla Director 11 11 Yes 2 1 0
Palak Malviya Independent Director 11 11 Yes 2 1 0
Mayank Shrivas Independent Director 1 11 Yes 1 2 2
Sanjay Chourey $ I ndependent Director 11 11 Yes 1 2 1
Mrs. Reshma Independent Director 11 11 No 1 2 0
Lawani@

*1. Excluding privatelimited Companies, foreign Companiesand Companiesunder Section 8 of the CompaniesAct, 2013.
2. Onlytwo Committeesviz. Audit Committeeand Stakehol ders' Relationship Committeeareconsidered.
$Appointedw.e.f 07.08.2019and
@Appointedw.e.f. 14.08.2020
- Shri Saurabh Sanglaisthe son of Shri Mukesh Sangla. None of the other Directors are related to any other Director on the
Board.
- TheChairman of theBoard of Directorsisthe Executive Chairman.
- Asrequired under Section 149(3) of the CompaniesAct, 2013, Ms. Palak MalviyaisaWomen Director in the Board and the
tenureof Ms. Palak Malviyaisupto 25.03.2023.
Number of Board meetings
Duringthefinancial year 2021-22 theBoard of Directorsmet eleventimesie. on:

S.No. DateOf M eeting
1 16.06.2021
30.06.2021
14.08.2021
30.10.2021
13.11.2021
06.12.2021
15.12.2021
06.01.2022
29.01.2022
14.02.2022
11 01.03.2022

The maximum gap between any two consecutive meetings was less than one hundred and twenty days, as stipulated under the
CompaniesAct, 2013, Regulation 17 of theListing Regul ationsand Secretarial Standards.

In pursuance of ParaC(2), ScheduleV to the Listing Regulations, the Board at its meeting held on May 24, 2019 hasidentified
the core skills/expertise/competenciesthat are desirable for the Company to function effectively in the context of the business of
the Company and its sector. These core skillg/expertise/competencies are actually available with the Board in the following
manner:

O ONO| O~ W(N

=
o

Name of Director

Area

Core skills/ expertise/ competenciesin specific functional area

Business Operations

Expertise in marketing management andbusiness development. Understanding of
business dynamicsacrossvari ousgeographical markets, industry verticals.
Financial management and banking.

Mr. Mukesh Sangla
Mr. Saurabh Sangla

Strategy and
Planning

Ability to think strategically identify and critically assess strategic opportunities and
threats. Develop effective strategies in the context of the strategic objectives of the
Company, relevant policiesand priorities.

Experience in guiding and leading management teams to make timely and strategic
decisions.

Mr. Mukesh Sangla
Mr. Saurabh Sangla

Sales and Marketing

Experiencein devel oping strategiesto grow sales and improve market share building
and enhancing brand reputation.

Mr. Mukesh Sangla
Mr. Saurabh Sangla
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Governance & Risk
Management

stakeholders.

Experience in the application of Corporate Governance principles. Ability to | Mr. Mukesh Sangla
identify key riskstothe Company inawiderangeof areas.
Exposure in developing governance practices, serving the best interests of all | Mr. Sanjay Chourey

Mr. Mayank Shrivas

Financial expertise

Acquisitions.

Financial educational background, experience and exposure to financial | Mr. Mukesh Sangla
management, expertisein low cost fund mobilization, fund raising and Mergers& | Mr. Mayank Shrivas

Mr. Palak Maiviya
Ms. ReshmaL alwani

Human Resources Management,

Management

Policesrelated to HR for attraction and retention of talents, succession planning, | Mr. Saurabh Sangla
Learning & Development, General | engaging with trade unions, skill development, learning and development, etc.,. | Mr. Sanjay Chourey
Businessstrategy and General Management.

Mr. Palak Maiviya
Ms. ReshmaL alwani

Governmental Policies/Incentive
Schemes,
General Management

and Schemes.

Exposure to procedures and process involved in various Governmental Policies | Mr. Mukesh Sangla

Mr. Saurabh Sangla

Fulfilment Of The Independence Criteria By The
Independent Directors:

The Board of Directors, based on the declarations received
from the Independent Directors, confirmed that they meet
the criteria of independence as mentioned under Regulation
16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regul ations and Section 149(6)
of the CompaniesAct, 2013 and that they are independent of
the management. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of SEBI
Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors have
confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or
situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that
couldimpair orimpact their ability to dischargetheir duties.
Terms and conditions of appointment of |ndependent
Directors

The terms and conditions for appointment of independent
directors have been disclosed on the Company's website at
followingthelink:

https://www.groupsi gnet.com/Investor relation/policies
Separ ateM eeting of ndependent Directors

Schedule IV to the Act and the Listing Regul ations mandate
the Independent Directors to hold atleast one meeting in
every financia year, without the attendance of non-
independent directors and members of the management.
During the financial year ended March 31, 2022, al the
Independent Directors met on March 3, 2022, inter alia, to
review performance of Non- Independent Directors & the
Board asawhole, to review performance of the Chairman of
the Company and to assess the quality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information between the management
of the Company and theBoard.

Familiarization programmefor Directors

The Company conducts Familiarization Programme for the
Independent Directorsto enable them to familiarize with the
Company, its Management and its operations so asto gain a
clear understanding of their roles, rights and responsibilities
for the purpose of contributing significantly towards the
growth of the Company. They are given full opportunity to
interact with Senior Management Personnel and are
provided with al the documents required and/or sought by
them to have a good understanding of the Company, its
business model and various operations and the industry of
whichitisapart.

Information placed beforetheBoard

The Company provides the information as set out in

Regulation 17 read with Part A of Schedule Il of the Listing
Regulations to the Board and the Board Committees to the
extent it is applicable and relevant. Such information is
submitted either as part of the agenda papers in advance of
the respective Meetings or by way of presentations and
discussionsduring theMestings.

The Company Secretary attends the Board Meetings and
advises the Board on Compliances with applicable laws and
governance.

The Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant rules made
thereunder, now facilitates the participation of a Director in
Board/Committee Meetings through video conferencing or
other audio visual mode. Accordingly, the option to
participate in the Meeting through video conferencing was
made available for the Directors except in respect of such
Meetings/Items which are not permitted to be transacted
through video conferencing.

Recording Minutes of Proceedings at Board and
CommitteeM eetings

The Company Secretary records minutes of proceedings of
each Board and Committee meeting. Draft minutes are
circulated to Board / Committee members for their
comments as prescribed under Secretaria Standard-1. The
minutesareentered in the Minutes Book within 30 daysfrom
theconclusion of themeeting.

Post M eeting Follow-up M echanism

The Guidelines for Board meetings facilitate an effective
post meeting follow-up, review and reporting processfor the
decisionstaken by the Board. Theimportant decisions taken
at the Board meetingsare communicated to thedepartments/
divisions concerned promptly. The minutes of the previous
meeting(s) is placed at theimmediately succeeding meeting
of theBoardfor noting by theBoard.

Compliance

The Company Secretary, while preparing the agenda, notes
on agenda and minutes of the meeting(s), is responsible for
and isrequired to ensure adherenceto all applicablelawsand
regulations, including the Companies Act, 2013 read with
rules issued thereunder, Listing Regulations and Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India.

Roles, Responsibilitiesand Dutiesof theBoard

The duties of Board of Directors have been enumerated in
Listing Regulations, Section 166 of the Companies Act,




SIGNET INDUSTRIES LIMITED

2013 and Schedule 1V of the said Act (Schedule 1V is
specifically for Independent Directors). There is a clear
demarcation of responsibility and authority amongst the
Board of Directors.
The Chairman and Managing Director: His primary
roleisto provideleadershiptotheBoardinachieving goals
of the Company. He is responsible for transforming the
Company into a world-class organization. He is
responsible, inter-alia, for theworking of the Board and for
ensuring that all relevant issues are placed before the
Board and that all Directors are encouraged to provide
their expert guidance on the relevant issues raised in the
meetings of the Board. He is aso responsible for
formulating the corporate strategy along with other
members of the Board of Directors. His role, inter aia,
includes:

e Provide leadership to the Board & preside over all
Board & General Meetings.

¢ Achieve goals in accordance with Company’s overall
vision.

e Ensure that Board decisions are aligned with
Company'sstrategic palicy.

* Ensure to place all relevant matters before the Board
and encourage healthy participation by all Directorsto
enablethemto providetheir expert guidance.

¢ Monitor the core management team.

Non-Executive Directors (including Independent

Directors) play acritical rolein balancing thefunctioning

of the Board by providing independent judgements on

various issues raised in the Board meetings like
formulation of business strategies, monitoring of
performances, etc. Their role, inter- alia, includes:

¢ Impart balance to the Board by providing independent
judgement.

e Provide feedback on Company’s strategy and
performance.

« Provide effective feedback and recommendations for
further improvements.

The constitution of the Board isasfollows: A Promoter

Executive Chairman & Managing Director. One Promoter

Family Members Non- Executive Director, Four Non-

Executive Independent Directors (including a Woman

Director).

POLICY FOR SELECTION AND APPOINTMENT

OFDIRECTORSAND THEIRREMUNERATION

The Nomination and Remuneration (N&R) Committee

has adopted a Charter which, inter-alia, deas with the

manner of selection of Board of Directors, Managing

Director, Whole-time Directors, senior management and

Key managerial Persons and their remuneration. This

Policy isaccordingly derived from the said Charter.

Criteriaof selection of Non-ExecutiveDirectors

a. In case of appointment of Non-executive Directors,
the N& R Committee shall satisfy itself with regard to
thenature of the Directorsvis-a-visthe Company so as
to enablethe Board to dischargeitsfunctionand duties
effectively.

b. The N&R Committee shall ensure that the candidate
identified for appointment as a Director is not
disqualified for appointment under Section 164 of the
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CompaniesAct, 2013.

c. The N&R Committee shall consider the following
attributes/criteria, whilst recommending to the Board
the candidaturefor appointment asDirector.

i. Qudlification, expertise and experience of the
Directorsintheir respectivefields;

ii. Personal, Professional or businessstanding;

iii. Diversity of theBoard.

d. Incaseof re-appointment of Non-Executive Directors,
the Board shall take into consideration the
performance evaluation of the Director and his
engagement level.

Remuneration

The Non-Executive Directors shal be entitled to receive

remuneration by way of sitting fees, reimbursement of

expenses for participation in the Board/Committee
meetingsasdetailed hereunder:

i. A Non-Executive Director shall be entitled to receive
sitting fees for each meeting of the Board or
Committee of the Board attended by him, of such sum
as may be approved by the Board of Directors within
theoverall limits prescribed under the CompaniesAct,
2013 and The Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014;

ii. The Independent Directors of the Company shall not
beentitledto participatein the Stock Option Schemeof
theCompany, if any, introduced by the Company.

Managing Director - Criteria for selection

/appointment

For the purpose of selection of theMD and WTD theN&R

Committee shall identify persons of integrity who possess

relevant expertise, experience and leadership qualities

required for the position and shall take into consideration
recommendation, if any, received from any member of the

Board.

The Committee will also ensurethat theincumbent fulfills

such other criteria with regard to age and other

qudlificationsaslaid down under the CompaniesAct, 2013

or other applicablelaws.

Remuneration for the Managing Director & Whole-

timeDirectors

i. At the time of appointment or re-appointment, the
Managing Director and Whole-time director shall be
paid such remuneration as may be mutually agreed
between the Company (which includes the N&R
Committee and the Board of Directors) and the
Managing Director and Whole-time Director within
theoverall limits prescribed under the CompaniesAct,
2013.

ii. The remuneration shall be subject to the approval of
the M embersof theCompany in General Mesting.

iii. The remuneration of the Managing Director and
Whole-time director is broadly divided into fixed and
variable components. Thefixed component comprises
salary, allowances, perquisites, amenities and retria
benefits. The variable component comprises
performancebonus.

iv. In determining the remuneration (including the fixed
increment and performance bonus) the N&R
Committeeshall ensure/ consider thefollowing:
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a. responsibility required to be shouldered by the
Managing Director and Whole-time director, the
industry benchmarksand thecurrent trends;

b. the Company's performance vis-a-vis the annua
budget achievement andindividual performance.

Remuneration Policy for the Senior Management

Employees

I. In determining the remuneration of the Senior
Management Employees and Key Managerial
Personnel, the N& R Committee shall ensure/consider
thefollowing:

a. therelationship of remuneration and performance;

b. the balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short and long term performance
objectives, appropriate to the working of the
Company anditsgoals;

c. theremuneration is divided into two components
viz. fixed component comprising salaries,
perquisites and retirement benefits and a variable
component comprising performance bonus;

d. Theremuneration including annual increment and
performance bonus is decided based on the
criticality of the roles and responsibilities, and
current compensation trendsinthe market.

Il. The Managing Director will carry out the individual
performance review based on the standard appraisa
matrix and shall take into account the appraisal score
card and other factors mentioned herein-above, whilst
recommending the annual increment and performance
incentive to the N& R Committee for its review and
approval.
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PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the CompaniesAct, 2013 and
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, the Board has carried out the annual performance
evaluation of its own performance, the Directors
individually aswell asthe evaluation of the working of its
Audit, Nomination and Remuneration and Compliance
Committees.

A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into
considerationinputsreceived from the Directors, covering
various aspects of the Board's functioning such as
adequacy of the composition of the Board and its
Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of
specific duties, obligationsand governance.

A separate exercise was carried out to evauate the
performance of individua Directors including the
Chairman of the Board, who were evaluated on parameters
such as level of engagement and contribution,
independence of judgment, safeguarding theinterest of the
Company and its minority shareholders etc. The
performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was
carried out by the entire Board. The performance
evaluation of the Chairman and the Non Independent
Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors
who also reviewed the performance of the Secretaria
Department. The Directors expressed their satisfaction
withtheevaluation process.

TERMSOFAPPOINTMENT & REMUNERATION-CEO & MD

Minimum Remuneration

Particulars Shri Mukesh Sangla, Chairman & Managing Director
Period of Appointment 01.06.2019t030.05.2024
Salary Grade 1000000P.M.

As per provisions of the Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013
(previously Schedule X111 of CompaniesAct, 1956)

Detailsof remuneration paid totheDirectorsaregiven
inFormMGT -9

COMMITTEESOFTHEBOARD

The Board of Directors have constituted Board
Committeestodea with specific areasand activitieswhich
concern the Company and requires a closer review. The
Board Committees are formed with approval of the Board
and function under their respective Charters. These
Committees play an important role in the overal
Management of day-to-day affairs and governance of the
Company. The Board Committeesmeet at regular intervals
and take necessary stepsto perform its duties entrusted by
the Board. The Minutes of the Committee Meetings are
placed beforethe Board for noting.

The Company hasfour Board L evel Committees:
A) Audit Committee,

B) Nominationand Remuneration Committee,
C) Stakeholders' Relationship Committee,

D) Corporate Social Responsibility Committeeand
(a) Audit Committee
Composition

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors (“the Audit
Committee") is entrusted with the responsibility to
supervise the Company's financial reporting process and
interna controls. The composition, quorum, powers, role
and scope are in accordance with Section 177 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013 and the provisions of Regulation 18
of theListing Regulations.

All members of the Audit Committee are financialy
literate and bring in expertise in the fields of Finance,
Taxation, Economics. It functions in accordance with its
terms of reference that definesits authority, responsibility
and reporting function. Mr. Sanjay Chourey, |ndependent
Director is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The
other members of the Audit Committee include Ms. Palak
Malviya, Independent Director, Mr. Mayank Shrivas,
Independent Director, Mrs. Reshma Lawani, |ndependent
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Director and Mr. Mukesh Sangla, Managing Director.
Meeting & Attendance

The Audit Committee met five times during the Financial
Year 2021-22. The maximum gap between two Meetings
was not more than 120 days. The Committee met on 6th
April, 2021, 30th June, 2021, 14th August, 2021, 13th
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November, 2021 and 14th February, 2022. The requisite
quorumwaspresent at all theMeetings.

The Table below provides the attendance of the Audit
Committeemembers:

Sr.no| NameoftheDirectors Position Catagory No. of meetingsattended
1 | Mr.Sanjay Chourey@ Chairman.Member Independent Director 50f5
2 | Mr.Mayank Shrivas Member Independent Director 50f5
3 | Ms.PadakMalviya Member Independent Director 50f5
4 | Mr.Mukesh Sangla Member Managing Director 50f5
5 | Mrs.ReshmalLawani# Member Independent Director 50f5

@Mr. Sanjay Chourey was appointed w.e.f 07.08.2019 and
has been inducted as member/Chairman of the Committees
intheBoard meeting held on 07.08.2019.

# Mrs. Reshma Lalwani was appointed w.e.f 14.08.2020
and has been inducted as member of the Committeesin the
Board meeting held on 14.08.2020.

Termsof Reference

Pursuant to the provisions of the CompaniesAct, 2013 and
Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations The brief terms of
referenceof theAudit Committeeincludesthefollowing:

» Overseeing the Company’s financial report process and
thedisclosureof itsfinancial information's.

» To review quarterly, half yearly and Annual Financial
resultsbefore submissiontotheBoard.

» To review the statement of significant related party
transactions submitted by management.

» Toreview the adequacy of internal control systems with
themanagement, external & internal auditors.

» Discussion with external auditors about the nature and
scopeof auditincluding their observation.

» Toinvestigate into any matter referred to by the Board.
I nter nal Controlsand Gover nance Processes

* Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company'ssystemand internal controls.

* Review and discuss with the Management the
Company's major financial risk exposures and steps
taken by the Management to monitor and control such
exposure.

» To oversee and review the functioning of a vigil
mechanism (implemented in the Company as a Fraud
Risk Management Policy) and to review the findings of
investigation into cases of material nature and the
actionstakenin respect thereof.

Functionsof Audit Committee

» Review the scope of the Statutory Auditors, the annual
audit plan and the Internal Audit Plan with a view to
ensureadequatecoverage.

» Review the significant audit findings from the statutory
and internal audits carried out, the recommendations
and Management'sresponsethereto.

e Review and recommend to the Board the
appointment/re-appointment of the Statutory Auditors
and Cost Auditors considering their independence and
effectivenessand their replacement and removal.

» Approve such additional services to be rendered by the
Statutory Auditors except those enumerated in Section
144 of the Companies Act, 2013 and payment for such
services.

¢ To recommend to the Board the remuneration of the
Statutory Auditors/Cost Auditors.

e To discuss with the Statutory Auditors/Internal
Auditors any significant difficulties encountered
duringthe courseof theAudit.

¢ Review annual Cost Audit Report submitted by the
CostAuditor.

Other Duties

« To approve the appointment, removal and terms of
remuneration of the Chief Internal Auditor and to
approvetheappointment of the Chief Financial Officer.

e To grant omnibus approval for related party
transactions which are in the ordinary course of
business and on an arm's length pricing basis and to
review and approve such transactions subject to the
approval of theBoard.

Therepresentativesof the Statutory Auditorsare permanent
invitees to the Audit Committee Meetings. The
representative of the Cost Auditor is invited to attend the
Meeting of the Audit Committee when the Cost Audit
Report is tabled for discussion. The MD, the Chief
Financial Officer (CFO), the Internal Auditor attendsAudit
Committee Meetings. The Company Secretary is the
Secretary to the Committee. The Internal Auditor reports
directly totheAudit Committee.

(b) Nomination and Remuner ation Committee
Composition

26




SIGNET INDUSTRIES LIMITED

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises
of Four Directors. Mr. Mayank Shrivas, Independent
Director, is the Chairman of the Committee. The other
members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
include Mr. Saurabh Sangla, Non-executive Director , Mr.
Sanjay Chourey and Ms. Reshma Lalwani, Independent
Directors. The Composition of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
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and Regulation 19 of theListing Regulations.
M eetingand Attendance

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met three
timesduring theyear on 29th June, 2021, 13thAugust, 2021
and 12th February, 2022. The requisite quorum was present
at the Meeting. The table below provides the attendance of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committeemembers:

Sr.no| NameoftheDirectors Position Catagory No. of meetingsattended
1. | Mr.Mayank Shrivas Chairman Independent Director 30f3
2 | Mr.SaurabhSangla Member Director 30f3
3 | Mr. Sanjay Chourey# Member Independent Director 30f3
4 | Mrs.ReshmaLawani @ Member Independent Director 30f3

# Mr. Sanjay Chourey appointed w.e.f 07.08.2019 and has
become inducted as member of the Committees in the
Board meeting held on 07.08.2019.

@ Mrs. Reshma Lalwani was appointed w.e.f 14.08.2020
and has been inducted as member of the Committeesin the
Board meeting held on 14.08.2020.

Termof reference

The broad terms of reference of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, in compliance with Section 178
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the
Listing Regulations, areasfollows.

» Succession planning of the Board of Directors and
Senior Management Employees,

» Identifying and selection of candidatesfor appointment
as Directors / Independent Directors based on certain
laiddown criterig;

» Identifying potential individuals for appointment as
Key Manageriad Personnel and to other Senior
Management positions;

» Formulate and review from time to time the policy for
selection and appointment of Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and senior management
employeesand their remuneration;

» Review the performance of the Board of Directors and
Senior Management Employees based on certain

criteria as approved by the Board. In reviewing the
overall remuneration of the Board of Directors and
Senior Management, the Committee ensures that the
remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate the best managerial taent, the
relationship of remuneration to performance is clear
and meets appropriate performance benchmarks and
that the remuneration involves abalance between fixed
and incentive pay reflecting short term and long term
objectivesof the Company.

(c) Stakeholders Relationship Committee-Mandatory
Committee

The Committee's composition and terms of referencearein
compliancewith the provisions of the section 178 (5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of the Listing
Regulations. The Committee is given in this Report. The
Stakeholders' Relationship Committee is primarily
responsible to review all matters connected with the
Company's transfer of securities and redressal of
shareholders/investors/ security holders complaints.

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee met Three
times during the year on 16th June, 2021, 13th August,
2021, and 12th February, 2022. The requisite quorum was
present at the Meeting. The table below provides the
attendance of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committeemembers:

Sr.no| NameoftheDirectors Position Catagory No. of meetingsattended
1 | Mr.Mayank Shrivas Chairman Independent Director 30f3
2 | Mr.MukeshSangla Member Managing Director 30of3
3 | Mr. Sanjay Chourey# Member Independent Director 30f3
4 | Mrs.ReshmalLalwai @ Member Independent Director 30of3

# Mr. Sanjay Chourey appointed w.e.f 07.08.2019 and has
become inducted as member of the Committees in the
Board meeting held on 07.08.2019.

@ Mrs. Reshma Lalwani was appointed w.e.f 14.08.2020
and has been inducted as member of the Committeesin the

Board meeting held on 14.08.2020.

Termsof reference

Thetermsof referenceof the Committeeare:

o transfer/transmission of shares issued by the Company
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fromtimetotime;

» issue of duplicate share certificates for shares reported
lost, defaced or destroyed, as per the laid down
procedure;

» issue new certificates against subdivision of shares,
renewal, split or consolidation of sharecertificates;

» issue and allot right shares/bonus shares pursuant to a
Rights Issue/Bonus Issue made by the Company,
subject to such approval sasmay berequired;

* to approve and monitor dematerialization of
shares/debentures/other securities and al matters
incidental or rel ated thereto;

e to authorize the Company Secretary and Head
Compliance/other Officers of the Share Department to
attend to matters relating to non-receipt of annual
reports, notices, non-receipt of declared dividend
change of address for correspondence etc. and to
monitor actiontaken;

e monitoring expeditious redressal of investors /
stakehol dersgrievances,

« all other matters incidental or related to shares,
debenturesand other securities of the Company.

The Secretarial Department of the Company and the
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Ankit Consultancy
Private Limited attend to all grievances of the shareholders
received directly or through SEBI, Stock Exchanges,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Registrar of Companies, etc.
The Minutes of the Committee of Directors (Stakeholders
Relationship Committee) Meetings are circulated to the
Board and noted by theBoard of Directors.

As on 31st March, 2022, no investor grievance has
remained unattended/ pending for morethanthirty days.

(d) CorporateSocial Responsibility Committee(CSR)

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee has been
formed pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, to formulate and
recommendto the Board, aCorporate Social Responsibility
Policy indicating the activities to be undertaken by the
Company as specified in Schedule VII to the Act, to
recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on
such activities and to monitor the Corporate Social
Responsihility Policy of the Company fromtimetotime.

The CSR committee shall consist of Mr. Saurabh Sangla,
Director to be Chairman of the Committee, Mr. Mukesh
Sangla, Director , Member and Mr. Mayank Shrivas, and
Ms. ReshmaL awani Independent Directors aremembers.

The Committee met one time in the year and all the
memberswerepresent inthemesting.

The Company has formulated CSR Policy, which is
uploaded on the website of the Company viz.
WWw.groupsignet.com
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Termsof Reference

« Toreview the existing CSR Policy and to make it more
comprehensive so as to indicate the activities to be
undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule
V11 of the CompaniesAct, 2013;

« To provide guidance on various CSR activities to be
undertaken by the Company and to monitor process.

POLICIES,AFFIRMATIONSAND DISCLOSURES
CodeOf Conduct

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Business
Conduct which is applicable to the Members of the Board
and al employees. The Code has been posted on the
Company's website www.groupsignet.com. The Code lays
down the standard of conduct which is expected to be
followed by the Directors and the designated employeesin
their business dealings and in particular on mattersrelating
to integrity in the work place, in business practices and in
dealing with stakeholders. The Code gives guidance
through examples on the expected behavior from an
employee in a given situation and the reporting structure
(AnnexureX).

All the Board Members and the Senior Management
personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code.
www.groupsignet.com/investor/policies

Related Party Transactions

All transactionsentered into with Rel ated Parties asdefined
under the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 23 of the
SEBI (Listing obligation and Disclosure Reguirements)
Regulation 2015,during the financial year were in the
ordinary course of business and on an arm's length pricing
basis and do not attract the provisions of Section 188 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013. Therewere no materialy significant
transactions with related parties during the financial year
which were in conflict with the interest of the Company.
Suitable disclosure as required by the Accounting
Standards (AS18) has been made in the notes to the
Financial Statements.

TheAudit Committee and the Board has approved a policy
for related party transactions which has been uploaded on
the Company's website www.groupsignet.com/investor/
policies

Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties,
and strictures imposed on the Company by Stock
Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any
matter related to capital markets, during last three
Financial Years.

The Company has Non-compliance with the provisions of
Regulation 17(1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015
regarding composition of Board of Directors during the
previous financia year 2020-2021 and Fine of Rs.
5,36,900/- and Rs.2,59,600/- (inclusive of GST @ 18 %)
has been imposed by the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited and BSE Limited for the quarter ended 30th June
2020 and 30th September 2020 respectively.
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The non-compliance occurred was an accidental omission
and it wasrectified. The company fulfilled therequirements
for board composition and informed to Stock Exchanges.
Penalty imposed by NSE was first paid by the co. and later
on refunded by NSE on waiver request of the Co. The
matter standsclosed..

Vigil Mechanism/WhistleBlower Policy

Pursuant to Section 177(9) and (10) of the CompaniesAct,
2013, and Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations, the
Company has formulated Whistle Blower Policy for vigil
mechanism of Directors and employees to report to the
management about the unethical behavior, fraud or
violation of Company's code of conduct. The mechanism
provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of
employees and Directors who use such mechanism and
makes provision for direct access to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee in exceptional cases. None of the
personnel of the Company have been denied access to the
Audit Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy is displayed
onthe Company'swebsiteviz. www.groupsignet.com.

Disclosure of accounting treatment in preparation of
financial statements

The Company has followed accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards ('Ind AS)) specified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act) and other
relevant provisionsof theAct. The Company hasuniformly
applied the accounting policies during the periods
presented. General Body Meetings. The significant
accounting policies which are consistently applied are set
outintheNotestotheFinancial Statements.

Codefor Prevention of | nsider-Trading Practices

The Company has in place a Code of Conduct for
Prevention of Insider Trading and a Code of Practices and
Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price
Sensitive Information in accordance with SEBI

SHAREHOLDERINFORMATION
General Body Meetings
DetailsOf Last ThreeAnnual General M eetingsHeld
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(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. The
same have been revised during the year in accordance with
amendments in the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015. The Code of Conduct for Prevention of
Insider Trading lays down guidelines advising the
Management, staff and other connected persons, on
procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made by
them while dealing with the shares of Signet, and while
handling any Unpublished Price Sensitive Information,
cautioning them of the consequences of violations. The
Company Secretary has been appointed as the Compliance
Officer.

Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice
regardingdisqualification of Directors

The Secretarial Auditors of the Company M/s M.
Maheshwari & Associates have issued a certificate that
none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as Directors of Companies by the
Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory
authority. Thesameisplaced at theend of thisreport.

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013:

Kindly refer to relevant disclosuresin the Directors Report
whichformspart of theAnnual Report 2021-22.

MD/CFO Certification

TheMD and the CFO haveissued certificate pursuant to the
provisions The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 certifying that the financia statements
do not contain any untrue statement and these statements
represent atrue and fair view of the Company'saffairs. The
said certificate is annexed and forms part of the Annual
Report.

Thedetailsof Annual General Meetingsheldinlast 3yearsareasunder:

Year Venue

Date Time

2020-21 | The Company is conducting the meeting through VC / OAVM pursuant to the MCA | 28.09.2021| 11.30
Circulars dated May 5, 2020 and January 13, 2021 and other applicable regulatory AM
circularsand assuchthereisno requirement to haveavenuefor theAGM.

2019-20 | The Company is conducting the meeting through VC / OAVM pursuant to the MCA | 25.09.2020| 02.00
Circulars dated May 5, 2020 and January 13, 2021 and other applicable regulatory PM.
circularsand assuchthereisno requirement to haveavenuefor theAGM.

2018-19 Hotel Subalnternational Plot 211, ChakalaSahar Road, Andheri East,

Mumbai 400099, Maharashtra, India

30.09.2019| 10.30
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Thedetailsof Special businessResolutionspassed intheaboveAnnual Gener al M ectingsareasfollows.

Meeting | Special businessResolutionspassedintheAnnual General M eetings

36th ToappointA.K. Jain & AssociatesasaCost Auditorsof the Company

35th ToappointA K. Jain & AssociatesasaCost Auditorsof the Company
To Regularisetheappointment of Ms. ReshmaL awani (DIN: 08834929) asan Independent director.

34th ToappointA.K. Jain & AssociatesasaCost Auditorsof the Company
To Re-appoint Mr. Mukesh Sangla (DIN: 00189676), -as a Managing Director of the Company and approval of
hisremuneration and other termsand conditions of hisappointment.
To Regularisetheappointment of Mr. Sanjay Chourey (DIN: 08523962) asan Independent director.

POSTAL BALLOT postal balot voting (including remote e-voting) to be

During last three years, the Company completed process of
one postal ballot (during FY 18-19) as per provisions of
Section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013. Mr. Manish
Maheshwari, Practicing Company Secretary was appointed
as Scrutinizer for conducting postal ballot in a fair and
transparent manner. The voting was conducted through
physical mode as well as electronic mode. The Company
had engaged the services of CDSL to provide e-voting
facility to its Members. The notice of postal ballot was
accompanied with detailed instructions kit to enable the
membersto understand the procedure and manner in which

carried out.

Thefollowing Resol utions are deemed to have been passed
on the last date of e-voting and receipt of Postal Ballot
forms i.e. on Wednesday, 3rd July, 2018. The aforesaid
voting results along with the Scrutinizer's Report has been
displayed at the Registered Office and Corporate Office of
the Company and on the website of the Company viz.
www.groupsignet.com and CDSL viz.
www.evotingindia.com. Both Resolutions were approved
with requisite mgjority. The details of results of Postal
Ballot areasunder:

Particulars No. of Votesreceived No. and % of No. and % of
Votesin favour Votes against

Ordinary Resolution: Alteration of ClauseV of 207142498 207134231 0.00%

Memorandum of Association of the Company (1009%0)

Special Resolution: Consolidation of Equity Shares 207151498 207074642 0.04%

capital of the Company from face value of Rs. 1 each to (99.96%)

the face value of Rs. 10 each.

Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM): Therehad beennoEGM heldinlast 3years.
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING FORTHE FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22

1. | Annual General Meeting

Date/Day Friday, September 30th , 2022
Time
Venue

11:00 AM (IST) through Video Conferencing (VC) /Other Audio Visua Means (OAVM)
Asthe meeting is through Video Conferencing (VC) /Other Audio Visua Means (OAVM) the
registered office of the company situated at 1003, Meadows Building,

Sahar Plaza Complex, J. B. Nagar, Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri (East),

Mumbai-400059, Maharashtra, India shall be deemed to be venue of the meeting

financial year ended March, 31, 2022

2.| Board Mesting for consideration of Accountsfor the

30th May, 2022

3. | Posting of Annual Reports

On or before 7th September, 2022

4. | Book ClosureDates

Saturday 24th September, 2022 to Friday 30th September,
2022 (both Daysinclusive)

5. | Financial Year of theCompany

1stApril, 2021to 31st March, 2022.

6. | Resultsfor theQuarter ending:
June30, 2022

September 30,2022

December 31,2022

March 31,2023

Onor before 14th August, 2022

Onor before 14th November, 2022

On or before 14th February, 2023

On or before 30th May, 2023(Audited).
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SHARE HOLDING OF NOMINAL VALUE OF SHARE HOLDERS SHAREAMOUNT
Rs. Number % to Total InRs. % to Total
(2) (2 3 4 (5
Upto - 1,000 8929 60.32 3635150 1.23
1,001-2,000 1971 13.32 3298800 112
2,001-3,000 902 6.09 2411080 0.82
3,001-4,000 436 2.95 1613900 0.55
4,001-5,000 661 4.47 3218070 1.09
5,001- 10,000 935 6.32 7524270 2.56
10,001-20,000 465 314 7089740 241
20,001-30,000 150 101 3780630 1.28
30,001-40,000 88 0.59 3152560 1.07
40,001-50,000 67 0.45 3149650 1.07
50,001-1,00,000 109 0.74 7803980 2.65
1,00,001 and above 89 0.60 247692170 84.14
TOTAL 14802 100.00 294370000 100.00
Shareholding Patter n ason 31st M ar ch, 2022
S.No| Category No. of Sharesheld % Shareholding
1 Promoters - Individuals 6731244 72.57%
2 Promoters- BodiesCorporate 14631046
3 Others- Public 8074710 27.43%
Total 29437000 100.00%

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES AND
LIQUIDITY

99.90 % of the equity shares of the Company have been
dematerialized (NSDL 55.96 % and CDSL 45.94 %) ason
March 31, 2022. The Company has entered into
agreements with National Securities Depository Limited
(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited
(CDSL) whereby shareholders have an option to
dematerialisetheir shareswith either of the Depositories.

Dematerialization of Shares- Process

Sharehol derswho continueto hold sharesin physical form
are requested to dematerialize their shares at the earliest
and avail the benefits of dealing in sharesin demat form.
For convenience of shareholders, the process of getting the
sharesdematerializedisgiven hereunder:

a) Demat account should be opened with a Depository
Participant (DP).

Shareholders should submit the Dematerialization
Request Form (DRF) along with share certificates in
original,totheir DP.

c¢) DP will process the DRF and will generate a
Dematerialization Request Number (DRN).

DPwill submit the DRF and original share certificates
to the Registrar and Transfer Agents (RTA), which is
Ankit Consultancy PrivateLimited.

e) RTA will process the DRF and confirm or reject the

b)

d)

request to DP/ depositories

f) Upon confirmation of request, the shareholder will get
credit of the equivalent number of sharesin hisdemat
account maintained withthe DP

CONSOLIDATION OF FOLIOSAND AVOIDANCE
OFMULTIPLEMAILING

In order to enable the Company to reduce costs and
duplicity of efforts for providing services to investors,
members who have more than onefolio in the same order
of names, arerequested to consolidate their hol dingsunder
onefolio. Members may writeto the Registrars & Transfer
Agents indicating the folio numbers to be consolidated
along with the original shares certificates to be
consolidated.

RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT
REPORT

As stipulated by SEBI, a qualified Practicing Company
Secretary carriesout Secretarial Audit to reconcilethetotal
admitted capital with National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India)
Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital.
This audit is carried out every quarter and the report
thereon is submitted to the Stock Exchanges where the
Company's shares are listed. The audit confirms that the
total Listed and Paid-up Capital isin agreement with the
aggregate of the total number of sharesin dematerialised
form (held with NSDL and CDSL) and total number of
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sharesinphysical form.

COMPLIANCEWITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
Thelnstitute of Company Secretariesof India, aStatutory Body, hasissued Secretarial Standards on variousaspectsof corporate

law and practices. The Company hascomplied with each oneof them.

Mar ket Information
Equity SharePriceon BSE/NSEApril, 2021 - March, 2022
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Month Bombay Stock ExchangeLimited (BSE) | National Stock Exchangeof IndiaLtd
High Low High Low
April 2021 33.35 27 30.3 29.45
May 2021 53.6 30 53.4 47
June2021 59.9 45 53.4 50.2
July 2021 64.9 47.2 58.1 55.2
August 2021 57.95 419 48.2 47.25
September 2021 50.55 43.35 44.8 438
October 2021 48.35 41.2 43.7 41.25
November 2021 44.6 36.65 39.65 36.65
December 2021 48.75 36.3 46.6 44.75
January 2022 69.65 435 63.05 59.9
February 2022 60 41.6 44.4 42.45
March 2022 45.8 37.3 39.7 37.2

COMMUNICATION WITH THE MEMBERS/
SHAREHOLDERS

The unaudited quarterly results are announced within
forty-five days of the close of the quarter. The audited
annual results are announced within two months from
the close of thefinancial year as per therequirements of
the SEBI (Listing obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation 2015, with the Stock
Exchanges/ SEBI (Listing obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation 2015. The aforesaid
financia results are sent to BSE Limited (BSE) and
NSE, where the Company's equity shares are listed,
immediately after these are approved by theBoard. The
resultsarethereafter given by way of aPress Releaseto
news agencies/ and are published in leading English
and Marathi daily newspapers. The audited financial
statements form a part of the Annual Report which is
sent to the Members well in advance of the Annual
Genera Meeting.

The Company also informs by way of intimation to
BSE, NSE all price sensitive matters or such other
matters, which in its opinion are materia and of
relevance to the members and subsequently issues a
PressReleaseinregardtothesame.

The Annual Report of the Company, the quarterly and
the annual results and the press releases of the
Company are aso placed on the Company's website:
www.groupsignet.com and can be downl oaded.

In compliance with SEBI (Listing obligation and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015, the
quarterly results, shareholding pattern, quarterly

compliances and al other corporate communication to
the Stock Exchanges viz. BSE Limited, and NSE are
filed electronically on BSE's on-line portal website
www.listing.bseindia.com and NSE online portal
www.connect2nse.com/LISTING.

A separate dedicated section under ’'Corporate
Governance' on the Company's website gives
information on unclaimed dividends, quarterly
compliance reports communications with the Stock
Exchanges and other relevant information of interest to
theinvestors/public.

ShareTransfer System

Thetransfer of sharesin physical formisprocessed and
completed by Registrar & Transfer Agent within a
period of seven days from the date of receipt thereof
provided al the documents are in order. In case of
sharesin electronicform, thetransfersare processed by
NSDL/CDSL through respective Depository
Participants. In compliance with the Listing
Regulations, a Practicing Company Secretary carries
out audit of the System of Transfer and a certificate to
that effect isissued. However, as per SEBI Notification
No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 dated June 8, 2018
and further amendment vide Notification No.
SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/49 dated November 30,
2018, requests for effecting transfer of securities
(except in case of transmission or transposition of
securities) shall not be processed from April 1, 2019
unlessthe securitiesareheld in the dematerialised form
with the depositories. Therefore, Shareholders are
requested to take action to dematerialize the Equity
Sharesof the Company, promptly.
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Nomination Facility

Shareholders holding shares in physical form and
desirous of making a nomination in respect of their
shareholding in the Company, as permitted under
Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the
Companies (Share Capita and Debentures) Rules,
2015are requested to submit to the Company
nomination in the prescribed Form SH-13 for this
purpose.

Updation of Shareholder sInformation

Shareholders holding shares in physical form are
requested to notify the changes to the Company/ its
RTA, promptly by awritten and duly signed request and
Shareholders holding shares in electronic form are
requested to send their instructions directly to their
Depository Participants(DPs).

Mandatory Requirement of PAN

SEBI vide its circular dated 20th April 2018 has
mandated compulsory registration of PAN and Bank
Account for all Shareholdersinfollowing cases:

Transferees and Transferors PAN Cards for transfer of
shares

Transfer of shares to Legal Heirs/ Nominees
For Dematerialization of shares
Issuance of Duplicate Share certificates

Shareholders are requested to keep record of their
specimen Signature before lodgement of shares with
the Company to obviate possibility of differences in
signatureat alater date.

Total feesfor all services paid by the company on a
consolidated basis, to the statutory auditorsand all
entities in the network of which the statutory
auditor isapart.

The company haspaid the auditorsremuneration of Rs.
4.00 Lakhsfor theyear 2020-21 and Rs. 1.00 Lakhsfor
Tax Audit and for other services Rs. 0.01 Lakhs.
However, the Company has one of its group Company
of which statutory auditor is part and has paid
remuneration of Rs. 1.50 Lakhs and Rs. 0.5 Lakhs for
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Tax Audit.The Company has no subsidiary. Hence, no
remuneration was paid by thesubsidiary tothem.

Where the Board had not accepted any
recommendation of any committee of the board
whichismandatorily required, inthefinancial year.

Your Board affirms that, there is no such instances
wherethe Board has not accepted any recommendation
of any committee of theBoard during thefinancial year.

Unclaimed Dividends:

Pursuant to Sections 124 and 125 of the Act read with
the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016
("IEPF Rules"), dividend, if not claimed for aperiod of
seven years from the date of transfer to Unpaid
Dividend Account of the Company, are liable to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund ("IEPF").

Further, all the sharesin respect of which dividend has
remained unclaimed for seven consecutive years or
more from the date of transfer to unpaid dividend
account shal also be transferred to IEPF. The said
requirement does not apply to shares in respect of
which there is a specific order of Court, Tribunal or
Statutory Authority, restraining any transfer of the
shares.

In the interest of the shareholders, the Company sends
periodical reminders to the shareholders to claim their
dividends in order to avoid transfer of dividends /
sharesto |EPF. The details of unclaimed dividends and
shareholderswhose sharesareliableto betransferred to
the IEPF, are uploaded on the Company's website
WWW.groupsignet.com.

In view of aforesaid provisions, the Company has
during the year under review, transferred to |EPF the
unclaimed dividends, outstanding for sevenyears.

Details of unpaid dividend amount and due date for
transfer to Investor Education and Protection Fund are
asunder:

Financial year Dateof Typeof Rateof Dividend Duedatefor Amt unpaid dividend
declaration Dividend per share transfer tol EPF ason 31.03.2022
2015-16 30.09.2016 Final 5% 29.10.2022 412121.62
2016-17 26.09.2017 Final 5% 25.10.2023 909498.72
2017-18 29.09.2018 Final 5% 28.10.2024 168454.00
2018-19 30.09.2019 Final 5% 29.10.2025 97155.50
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The Company'ssharesarelisted onthefollowing Stock ExchangesandtheListing Feeshave been paid tothe Exchanges:

Name and Address of the Stock Exchanges

Stock/Scrip Code|ISIN for CDSL/NSDL Dematerialized Shares

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)

SIGIND

INE529F01035 (For Equity Shares)

BSE Ltd., Mumbai

512131

INE529F04013 (For 5% Non-Cum Red Pref. Shares)
INE529F04039 (For 2% Non-Cum Red Pref. Shares)
INE529F04021 (For 2% Non-Cum Red Pref. Shares)

Credit Rating

The Company has obtained the credit rating from
Brickwork Rating Agency Private Limited for Banking
Facilities aggregating to Rs. 375.81 Crore. Therating was
BWR Triple B Plus (BBB+) for Long term bank facilities
and BWRA2for Short term bank facilities.

Investor Services

The Company has a Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
M/sAnkit Consultancy Pvt. Ltd., having their office at 60,
Electronic Complex, Pardeshipura, Indore (M.P) which
offers al share related services to its Members and
Investors.

These services include transfer/transmission/
dematerialization of shares, payment of dividends, sub-
division/consolidation / renewal of share certificates and
investor grievances.

The Share Transfer Agent is registered with SEBI as
Registrar to an Issue/Share Transfer Agent in Category |1
Share Transfer Agent and the registration code is INR
000000767.

Address for Correspondence with the Share Transfer
Agent of the Company

Ankit Consultancy Pvt. Ltd.

Plot No. 60, Electronic Complex,
Pardeshipura, Indore(M.P) 452001,
Phone: 0731-4065799,

Email: ankit_4321@yahoo.com

Members who hold shares in dematerialized form should
correspond with the Depository Participant with whom
they maintain Demat Account/s, for their queries relating
to shareholding, change of address. However, queries
relating to non-receipt of dividend, non-receipt of annual
reports, or on matters relating to the working of the
Company should be sent to the Share Transfer Agent of the
Company.

Memberswho hold sharesin physical form should address
their queriesto the Share Transfer Agent of the Company.

Members are requested to ensure that correspondence for
change of address, change in bank details, processing of
unclaimed dividend, subdivision of shares,
renewals/split/consolidation of share certificates, issue of
duplicate share certificates should be signed by the first
named Member as per the specimen signature registered
with the Company. The Share Transfer Agent of the
Company may a so, withaview to safeguard theinterest of
its Members and that of the Company, request for
additional supporting documents such as certified copies
of PAN Cardsand other proof of identity and/or address.

Members are requested to indicate their DPID & Client
ID/ Ledger Folio number in their correspondence with the
Company and also to provide their Email addresses and
telephone numbersFAX numbers to facilitate prompt
responsefrom the Share Transfer Agent of the Company.

ExclusiveE-Mail ID

The Company has designated an e-mail ID to enable the
Members and Investors to correspond with the Company.
Thee-mail ID iscspreeti @groupsignet.com.

Plant L ocation

The location of the Company's Plants are given on the
inside cover page of the Annual Report. The details of the
Plants along with their addresses and telephone numbers
arealso availableonthe Company'swebsite.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Indore

Date:10th August, 2022 Sd/-
M ukesh Sangla
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN00189676
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AnnexurelV
AUDITORSCERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To
TheMembersof
Signet IndustriesLimited

We have examined the compliance of conditionsof corporate governance by Signet IndustriesLimited (*the Company"), for the
year ended 31st March, 2022 as stipulated in SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015 and the Listing Agreement of the said Company
with Stock Exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governanceisthe responsibility of the management. Our examination waslimited to
proceduresand implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditionsof the Corporate
Governance. Itisneither an audit nor an expression of opinion onthefinancia statementsof the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the representati ons made by
the Directors and the management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulatedinthesaid clause of the Listing Regulations.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectivenesswith which themanagement hasconducted theaffairs of the Company.

For SMAK & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Sd/-
(Shridhar Mandhanya)
Place: Indore (Partner)
Date: 10.08.2022 M .No.421425
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Form No.MR-3 ANNEXURE-V

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

TheMembers,

SIGNET INDUSTRIESLIMITED

CIN: L51900MH1985PL C035202

1003, MEADOWSBUILDING, SAHARPLAZA COMPLEX J.B.NAGAR,ANDHERI (EAST) MUMBAI 400059

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisionsand the adherenceto good corporate
practices by Signet Industries Limited (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided meareasonablebasi sfor eval uating the corporate conducts/statutory compliancesand expressing my opinionthereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended March 31, 2022 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Company for the
financial year ended on M ar ch 31, 2022 according to the provisionsof:

i.  TheCompaniesAct, 2013(the Act) and the rules made there under read with notifications, exemptions and clarifications
thereto;
ii.  TheSecuritiesContracts(Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA") and therulesmadethereunder;
iii. TheDepositoriesAct, 1996 and the Regulationsand Bye-lawsframed thereunder;
iv.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regul ations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;
v.  Thefollowing Regulationsand Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of IndiaAct, 1992 ('SEBI
Act’):-
a.  TheSecuritiesand Exchange Board of India(Substantial Acquisition of Sharesand Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 as
amended fromtimetotime;
b.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as amended from
timetotime;

c.  TheSecuritiesand Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and
as amendments from time to time. [Not Applicable as the Company has not issued further share capital during the
financial year under review];

d. The Securitiesand Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulation, 2014.(Not Applicable to
the Company during theAudit Period)

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,2008.[Not
Applicableasthe Company hasnot i ssued and listed any debt securitiesduring thefinancial year under review]

f.  TheSecuritiesand Exchange Board of India(Registrarsto an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 as
amended fromtimetotimeregarding the CompaniesA ct and dealingwith client;

g. TheSecuritiesand Exchange Board of India(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 asamended fromtimeto
time. [Not Applicable as the Company has not delisted/propose to delist its equity sharesfrom any Stock Exchange
duringthefinancial year under review.]

h.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018. [Not Applicable as the
Company hasnot bought back/proposeto buy-back any of itssecuritiesduringthefinancial year under review].

vi. | have relied on the representation made by the Company and its officers for system and mechanism framed by the

Company for thecompliancesunder thefollowing applicableAct (if applicable), Law & Regulationsto the Company

i.  Workmen'scompensationAct, 1923 andall other allied |abor laws,
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ii. ApplicableDirectand Indirect Tax Laws.

iii. Preventionof Money LaunderingAct, 2002

iv.  Sexual Harassment of Women at Workpl ace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
I have al so examined compliancewith the applicableclauses of thefollowing:

(i) Secretarial Standardswith respect to Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and Genera Meetings (SS-2) issued
by the I nstitute of Company Secretariesof India.

(if) SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Duringtheperiod the company has complied with the provisionsof theAct, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards,
etc. mentioned aboveexcept-

1. Form CRA-4for filing of Cost Audit Report not filed duringtheaudit period.

During the period the company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.
mentioned above.

| further report that, the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws such as direct and indirect tax laws and
maintenance of financial recordsand booksof accountshave not been reviewed in thisAudit since the same have been subj ect to
review by thestatutory financial auditors, tax auditors, and other designated professionals.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directorsand Independent Directors. The changesin the composition of the Board of Directorsthat took place during the period
under review werecarried out incompliancewith theprovisionsof theAct.

Adequate noticeisgivento al directorsto schedulethe Board Meetings, agendaand detailed notes on agendawere sent at least
seven daysin advance other than those held at shorter notice and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information
and clarificationson the agendaitems bef ore the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Asper theminutes of themeetingsduly recorded and signed by the Chairman, thedecisions of the Board were unanimousand no
dissenting views havebeen recorded.

As per the records, the Company filed al the forms, returns, documents and resol utions as were required to be filed with the
Registrar of Companiesand other authoritiesand all theformalitiesrel ating tothe sameisin compliancewith theAct.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of
the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

There were no other specific events/ actions in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc.
having a major bearing on the Company's affairs.

Note: This Report isto be read with my letter even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms and integral part of this
report.

For M. Maheshwari& Associates
Company Secretaries
Firms U.C.N. 12001M P213000

Manish Maheshwari
Proprietor
FCS5174
CP-3860
Date: 10th August 2022
Place : Indore
UDIN : FO05174D000773744

37




SIGNET INDUSTRIES LIMITED & ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

To,

TheMembers,

SIGNET INDUSTRIESLIMITED

CIN: L51900MH1985PL C035202

1003, MEADOWSBUILDING, SAHARPLAZA
COMPLEX JB.NAGAR,ANDHERI (EAST)
MUMBAI 400059

My Secretarial Audit Report of evendateisto beread alongwiththisletter.

1

Maintenance of secretarial record istheresponsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility isto express
anopinion onthesesecretarial recordsbased on my audit.

I havefollowed the audit practicesand process aswere appropriate to obtai n reasonabl e assurance about the correctness of
the contentsof the Secretarial records. Theverification wasdone on thetest basisto ensurethat correct factsarereflectedin
secretarial records. | believethat the processand practices, | followed provide areasonabl e basisfor my opinion.

I havenot verified the correctnessand appropriateness of financia recordsand Booksof Accountsof thecompany.

Whereever required, | have obtained the M anagement representati on about the compliances of laws, rules, regulationsand
happening of eventsetc.

The compliances of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsi bility of management. My examination waslimited totheverification of proceduresontest basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy of
effectivenesswithwhich themanagement has conducted the affairs of the company.

For M. Maheshwari& Associates
Company Secretaries
Firms U.C.N. 12001M P213000

Manish M aheshwari
Proprietor
FCS-5174

CP-3860

Date: 10th August 2022
Place: Indore
UDIN : FO05174D000773744
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ANNEXURE- VI

Annual Report On Cor porate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Activities For The Financial Year 2021-22

Brief outlineon CSR Palicy of the Company:

A socially responsible organization cannot, and does not, limit itself to merely increasing its own profits. Neither doesit
treat corporate social responsibility asaburden to be borne, but instead, believesit to be one of the fundamental duties of
an organisation towards society. CSR isaway of conducting business, by which a corporate entity visibly contributes to
thesocial good.

At Signet Industries Limited ("The Company"), we are constantly aware of our role in society, as that of amentor and a
builder of thelives of the children of our society, and therefore, itsfuture. Hence, asacorporate entity, we at the Company
strive at every stage to integrate the larger economic, environmental and social objectives with our core operations and
growth. We endeavour to evolve our relationship with al our stakeholders for the common good, and validate our
commitment in thisregard by adopting appropriate business processesand strategies.

The Policy has been formulated under the above provisions of the Act and shall be applicable to al CSR initiatives and
activitiesundertaken by the Company, for thebenefit of different segmentsof society.

Composition of CSR Committee:

Sr.No

Name of Director

Designation/Nature of
Directorship

Number of meeting of
CSR Committee held
during the year

Number of meeting of
CSR Committee attended
during the year

Mr. Saurabh Sangla

Non-executive Director

Mr. Mukesh Sangla

Managing Director

Mr. Mayank Shrivas

Independent Director

AlwW[N| P
PR Rk
PR R

Ms. Reshma lalwani

Independent Director

7)

Providetheweb-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projectsapproved by theboard
aredisclosed on thewebsiteof thecompany: https.//www.groupsi gnet.com/policy/CSR-Palicy.pdf

Providethe details of Impact assessment of CSR projectscarried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the
Companies(Cor porate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable(attach thereport).: NotApplicable

Detailsof theamount availablefor set off in pursuanceof sub-rule(3) of rule7 of the Companies(Cor por ate Social
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for thefinancial year, if any: Not applicable

Averagenet profit of thecompany asper section 135(5).: Rs. 1640.17 Lakh

a) Two percent of aver agenet profit of thecompany asper section 135(5): Rs.32.80 Lakhs

(b) Surplusarisingout of theCSR projectsor programmesor activitiesof thepreviousfinancial years: Nil
(© Amount required tobeset off for thefinancial year, if any: Nil

(d)  Total CSRobligation for thefinancial year (7a+7b-7c).: Rs. 32.80Lakh

(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for thefinancial year:

Total Amount Spent
for the Financial
Year.

(in " Lakh)

Amount Unspent (in * Lakh)

Total Amount transferred to
Unspent CSR Account as per
section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Schedule VII as per second proviso to section
135(5).

Amount Date of transfer Name of Fund Amount Date of Transfer

32.80 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

(b)
(©

Detailsof CSR amount spent against ongoing proj ectsfor thefinancial year: Nil
Detailsof CSR amount spent against other than ongoing proj ectsfor thefinancial year:
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Sr. Name of Itemfrom | Local | Location of theproject. | Amount | Mode of M ode of
No. project thelist of area spent for | implement | implementation
activities | (Yed the ation Through
in No) project implementing
schedule @inY). agency.
VIl tothe
Act.
S Direct Name | CSR
State District (Y/N) Reg. No
1 |K.K.Wagh No Maharashtra Nashik 12.00 Yes NA
Education
Society
2 | RL Education Maharashtra |Aurangabad| 21.00 Yes NA
Sansthan
Patihan

(d)  Amount spentinAdministrativeOver heads: Nil

(e Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil

) Total amount spent for theFinancial Year (8b+8c+8d+:8e): Rs.32.80Lakh
(9) Excessamount for set off, if any: Nil

9. (9 Detailsof Unspent CSR amount for theprecedingthreefinancial years: Nil
(b)  Detailsof CSR amount spentinthefinancial year for ongoing proj ectsof theprecedingfinancial year (s): Nil

10. In caseof creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the detailsrelating to the asset so created or acquired
through CSR spent inthefinancial year: Nil

11. Specifythereason(s),if thecompany hasfailed to spend two per cent of theaver agenet profit asper section 135(5).:
Not applicable

For and on behalf of the Board
Signet Industries Limited

Mukesh Sangla
Chairman and M anaging Director
DIN : 00189676
Place: Indore
Dated: 10th August, 2022
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ANNEXURE- VII

Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absor ption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo asrequired under Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

A. CONSERVATIONOFENERGY:

Energy Conservation measuresisan ongoing processand the Company considersit asahigh priority area. During theyear
energy auditswereconducted internally. The main measuresadopted in energy conservationincludes-

® 20 T o

wereredesigned.

Modifications/Improvementsin processto result inlessconsumption of the energiesfor the sameoutput.

Installation of Timersin all major machinesto conserveenergy.

Installation of proper equipmentstoimprovethe power factor.

Continuoustraining of operating staff for effective useof utilities.

To achieve significant saving in the energy consumption, processing equipments layouts and service utility layouts

B. TECHNOLOGYABSORPTION,ADAPTATIONAND INNOVATION,RESEARCHAND DEVLOPMENT:

(i) SpecificAreasinwhich R& D carried out by the Company and benefitsderived asaResult thereof in several Years.

Your Company's R&D wing is dedicated to ensure production of best quality products conforming to international

standards.

(if) Futureplanof Action

The Company doingitsbest toimproveitsquality and to reduce manufacturing expanses

C. FOREIGNEXCHANGEEARNINGANDOUTGO

Figuresin Lacs.

SN. Particulars Previous Year 2020-21 Current Year 2021-22
@) Foreign Exchange Earnings
FOB Vaue of Exports - -
(iiy  Foreign Exchange Outgo
Value of Import on CIF basis 1193.70 768.23

Place: Indore
Dated: 10th August, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board
Signet Industries Limited

Mukesh Sangla
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN : 00189676
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Annexure VIl
MD / CFO CERTIFICATION
The Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company gives annual certification on financial reporting, internal

controlsandfinancial statementsof the Board intermsof Regul ation 17(8) read with Schedulell of theListing Regulations. The
annua certification given by the Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer isgivenbel ow:

To,

TheBoard of Directors

1.  Wehavereviewedfinancial statementsand the cash flow statement for theyear ended 31st March, 2022 and that to the best
of our knowledgeand belief:

. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statementsthat
might bemisleading;
. these statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and are in compliance with

existing accounting standards, applicablelawsand regul ations.

2. Thereare, tothebest of our knowledgeand belief, notransactionsenteredinto by thelisted entity during theyear whichare
fraudulent, illegal or violativeof thelisted entity'scode of conduct.

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financia reporting and that we have
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the listed entity pertaining to financial reporting. We have not
comeacrossany deficienciesinthedesign or operation of suchinternal controls.

4.  Wehaveindicatedtotheauditorsand theAudit committee:

. that there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;
. that there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the; and
. that there are no instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware.

Mukesh Sangla J. C. Paliwal
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
DIN00189676

Place: Indore
Date: 10th August, 2022

42




SIGNET INDUSTRIES LIMITED & ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

Annexurel X
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE

The Company has duly complied with the requirements laid down in the provisions of the Listing Regulations (including
Regulations 17 to 27 and Clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46) for the purpose of ensuring Corporate
Governance. A certificate to this effect obtained from M/s. SMAK & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, the Auditors of the
Company, hasbeen attached tothisAnnual Report.

Mukesh Sangla J. C. Paliwal
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
DIN00189676

Place: Indore
Date: 10th August, 2022

Annexure X

Declaration of Code of Conduct

Thisis to confirm that the Board of Directors of the Company has laid down a Code of Conduct for its member and senior
management personnel of the Company and the same has al so been posted on the Company'swebsite. It isfurther confirmed that
All the Director and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of the
Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022, as envisaged under Regulation 26(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements) Regul ations, 2015.

Mukesh Sangla

Managing Director

Date: 10th August, 2022 DIN 00189676
Place: Indore
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Annexure XI

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and ScheduleV Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

TheMembers

SIGNET INDUSTRIESLIMITED

CIN: L51900MH1985PL C035202

1003, MeadowsBuilding, Sahar PlazaComplex
J.B. Nagar, Andheri (East) Mumbai MH 400059 IN

| have examined thefollowing documents: -
i)  Declarationof non-disqualificationasrequired under Section 164 of CompaniesAct, 2013 (‘theAct’);

ii) Disclosure of concern or interests as required under Section 184 of the Act; (hereinafter referred to as 'relevant
documents), as submitted by the Directors of Signet Industries Limited (‘the Company’) bearing CIN:
L51900MH1985PL C035202 and having its Registered Office at 1003, Meadows Building, Sahar Plaza Complex J.B.
Nagar, Andheri (East) Mumbai MH 400059 IN, to the Board of Directors of the Company (‘'the Board') for the financial
year 2021-22. | have considered non-disqualificationtoinclude non-debarment.

It isthe responsibility of Directors to submit relevant documents with complete and accurate information in accordance
withthe provisionsof theAct.

Based on my examination of relevant documents made available to me by the Company and such other verifications
carried out by us as deemed necessary and adequate, in my opinion and to the best of my information and knowledge and
according to the explanations provided by the Company, its officersand authorized representatives, | certify that ason date
of this Certificate, none of the Directors on the Board of the Company, as listed hereunder, have been debarred or
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Company by Securities and Exchange Board of India/
Ministry of CorporateAffairsor any such statutory authority.

Sr.No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in Company
1 Mr. Mukesh Sangla 00189676 10/04/1991
2 Mr. Saurabh Sangla 00206069 07/07/2003
3 Mrs. Palak Malviya 07795827 26/03/2018
4 Mr. Mayank Shrivas 08102022 23/05/2018
5 Mr. Sanjay Chourey 08523962 07/08/2019
6 Ms. Reshma Lalwani 08834929 14/08/2020

This Certificate has been issued at the request of the Company to make disclosure in its Corporate Governance Report of the
Financia Year ended 31st March, 2022.

For M.Maheshwari & Associates
Company Secretaries
FirmsU.C.N.12001M P213000

Manish M aheshwari

Date :10thAugust, 2022 Proprietor
Place: Indore FCS-5174
UDIN: F005174D000773799 CP-3860
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Independent Auditors Report

To,
TheMembersof
Signet IndustriesLimited

Report ontheFinancial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financia statementsof
Signet Industries Limited ("the Company"), which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2022, and the
statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the
Act inthe manner so required and give atrue and fair view
in conformity with accounting principles generaly
acceptedinIndia, of thestate of affairsof thecompany asat
31st March, 2022, and its profit (including other
comprehensiveincome), the changesin equity anditscash
flowsfor theyear ended onthat date.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
theethical requirementsthat are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained issufficient and appropriateto provide abasisfor
our opinion.

KeyAudit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period.
These matterswere addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
onthese matters.

KeyAudit Matters

Auditor’s Response

Evaluation of uncertain tax positions
The Company operatesin multiplejurisdictions and is subject

to periodic challenges by local tax authorities on arange of tax
matters during the normal course of business including direct
and indirect tax matters. These involve significant
management judgment to determine the possible outcome of
the uncertain tax positions, consequently having an impact on
related accounting and disclosuresinthefinancial statements.

Our audit procedures include the following substantive
procedures:
¢ Obtained understanding of key uncertain tax positions; and
«  Wealong with our internal tax experts -
- Read and analysed select key correspondences, external
legal opinions / consultations by management for key|
uncertaintax positions;
- Discussed with appropriate senior management and
evaluated management's underlying key assumptions in
estimating thetax provisions; and
Assessed management's estimate of the possible outcome of the
disputed cases

Information Other than the Financial Statements and
Auditor'sReport Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the
preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the
Management Discussion and Anaysis, Board's Report
including Annexures to Board's Report, Business
Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and

Shareholder's Information, but does not include the
financial statementsand our auditor'sreport thereon.

Our opinion on thefinancia statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility isto read the other information and, in
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doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with thefinancial statementsor our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwiseappearsto be materially misstated.

If, based on thework we have performed, we conclude that
thereis amaterial misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
reportinthisregard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financia performance, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
company's (Indian Accounting Standard ) Rules 2015, as
amended. Thisresponsibility alsoincludes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate implementation and maintenance of
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial contrals,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and compl etenessof theaccounting records, relevant tothe
preparation and presentation of thefinancial statement that
give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether dueto fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either
intendsto liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
hasnorealisticalternativebut to do so.

Those Board of Directors are aso responsible for
overseeing the Company'sfinancial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
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whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether dueto fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not aguaranteethat an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticismthroughout the audit. Weal so:

a  ldentify and assesstherisksof materia misstatement
of the financia statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that issufficient and appropriateto provideabasisfor
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a materia
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

b. Obtain an understanding of internal financial
controlsrelevant to the audit in order to design audit
proceduresthat are appropriate in the circumstances.
Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company hasadequateinternal financial controls
with referenceto financia statement in place and the
operating effectivenessof such controls.

c. Evauate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and rel ated discl osures made by management.

d. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as agoing concern. If
weconcludethat amaterial uncertainty exists, weare
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
therelated disclosuresin thefinancial statementsor,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
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evidence aobtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e. Evaduate the overal presentation, structure and
content of the financia statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financia statements
represent the underlying transactions and eventsin a
manner that achievesfair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of theaudit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to
communicatewiththem all rel ationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and whereapplicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these mattersin our auditor's report unlesslaw or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
amatter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other L egal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order, totheextent applicable.

Asrequired by Section 143(3) of theAct, wereport that:
a  Wehave sought and obtained all theinformation and

explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief werenecessary for the purposes of our audit.

b.  Inour opinion, proper books of account as required
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it

appearsfrom our examination of thosebooks.
C.  TheBalance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss
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(including Other Comprehensive Income),
Statement of Changesin Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flow dealt with by thisReport arein agreement

withthebooksof account.
In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements

comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of theAct, read with Rulesframed

thereunder.
On the basis of the written representations received

from the directors as on 31st March, 2022 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directorsisdisqualified ason 31st March, 2022 from
being appointed asadirector in terms of Section 164

(2) of theAct.
With respect to the adequacy of theinternal financial

controlsover financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to

our separate Reportin"AnnexureB".
With respect to the other mattersto beincludedinthe

Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and

accordingtotheexplanationsgiventous:
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of

pending litigations on its financia position in
its financial statements - Refer Note 38 to the

financial statements,

ii. The Company did not have any long term
contract including derivative contract for
which there were any material foreseeable
losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring
amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company.

iv.  (A) The management has represented that, to
the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other personsor entities,
including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"),
with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall:

. directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entitiesidentified in any
manner whatsoever ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") by or on behaf of the
Company or

. provide any guarantee, security or the like
to or on behalf of the Ultimate
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Beneficiaries.
(B) The management has represented, that, to
the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any
persons or entities, including foreign entities
("Funding Parties"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that

the Company shall:
. directly or indirectly, lend or invest in

other persons or entitiesidentified in any
manner whatsoever ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") by or on behaf of the

Funding Party or
. provide any guarantee, security or the like

from or on behaf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries; and
(C) Based on such audit procedures as
considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub clause (iv) (A) and
(iv) (B) containany material mis-statement.
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v. Thedividend declared or paid dividend during
the year are in compliance with Section 123 of

theAct.
h.  With respect to the matter to be included in the

Auditors Report under Section 197(16) of theAct, In
our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Company to its directors during the current year
is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197
read with ScheduleV totheAct.

For SMAK & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 020120C)

CA Atishay Khasgiwala
Partner
M. No. 417866
Date: 30.05.2022
Place: Indore
UDIN : 22417866AJXY W 04946
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph (1) under the heading of " Report
on Other Lega and Regulatory Requirements' of our
report of even date to the members of Signet Industries
Limited onthefinancial statementsfor theyear ended 31st

March, 2022.
i
a A.TheCompany has maintained proper records

showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, plant and
equipment.

B. The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particularsof intangible assets.

b. According to the information and explanations
givento usand on the basisof our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has a
phased program for physical verification of the
PPE for all locations. Physical verification of the
assets has been carried out during the year
pursuant to the programme which in our opinion
is reasonable, having regard to the size of the
company and nature of its assets. No materia
discrepancies between the book records and the
physical inventory have been noticed. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification is
reasonable.

c. According to the information and explanations
givento usand on the basisof our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of
immovable properties (other than properties
where the company is the lessee and the lease
agreement are duly executed in favour of the
lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are
heldinthenameof the Company.

d.

According to the information and explanations
givento usand on the basisof our examination of
therecords of the Company, the company hasnot
revalued its Property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets during the year. Accordingly
the requirement to report on para 3 (i)(d) are not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations
given to us and as explained to us, no
proceedings have been initiated or are pending
against the company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules
made thereunder. Accordingly the requirement
toreporton para3(i)(e) arenot applicable.

Theinventories have been physically verified by
the management &t reasonable intervals during
the year. The coverage and procedures of
physical verification of the inventories followed
by the management are reasonable and adequate
in relation to the size of the Company and nature
of it's business. As per the information and
explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, no discrepancies of
10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventory were noticed on physica verification
of inventoriesascompared to book records.

During the year, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limitsin excessof °5
crores, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of
security of current assets. The Company hasfiled
quarterly returns or statements with such banks,
whichareinagreement with the booksof account
other than those as set out bel ow.
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Quarter Ended

Amount
disclosed as per
quarterly
return/
Statement
Rs.in Lacs

Amount as per
booksRs. in
Lacs

Difference
Rs.in Lacs

Reason for difference as explained by the
Company

June 2021

33749.31 26068.09

7681.22

The Company has submitted the stock,
debtors and creditors to the extent it covers
the drawing power availed by the Company.
Hence stock and debtors are excess in books
by Rs. 2910.58 lacs and Rs. 8077.34 lacs and
creditors short by Rs. 3306.70 lacs.

September 2021

35345.16 25716.37

9628.80

The Company has submitted the stock,
debtors and creditors to the extent it covers
the drawing power availed by the Company.
Hence stock and debtors are excess in books
by Rs. 3523.31 lacs and Rs. 9835.21lacs and
creditors short by Rs. 3729.72 lacs.

December 2021

37793.79 28576.89

9216.90

The Company has submitted the stock,
debtors and creditors to the extent it covers
the drawing power availed by the Company.
Hence stock and debtors are excess in books
by Rs. 3857.78 lacs and Rs. 7125.40 lacs and
creditors short by Rs. 1766.28 lacs.

March 2022

37415.15 31040.91

6374.24

The Company has submitted the stock,
debtors and creditors to the extent it covers
the drawing power availed by the Company.
Hence stock and debtors are excess in books
by Rs. 1091.24 |acs and Rs. 5634.09 lacs and
creditors short by Rs. 351.09 lacs.

During the year the company has not made any
investments, given any guarantee or provided any
security or granted any loans or advance in the nature
of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnershipsor any other parties.

a  Inour opinion provisionsof para3 (iii) (a) to (d)
of theorder arenot applicabletothecompany.

b. Noloan or advancein the nature of loan granted
which has fallen due during the year, has been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to
settle the overdue of existing loans given to the
sameparties.

iv.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act,
with respect to the loans granted and investments
made. The company has not provided any security or
granted any guaranteeinterms of section 185 and 186
of theAct.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted deposits or amountswhich are deemed to be
deposits from the public within the meaning of
Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of
the CompaniesAct, 2013 and the Rules, framedthere
under. Asinformed to usno Order has been passed by
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vi.

Vii.

the Company Law Board or National Company Law
Tribunal or Reserve Bank of Indiaor any court or any
other Tribunal.

We have broadly reviewed the cost records
maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Government under sub-section
(2) of Section 148 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 and are
of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed records
have been made and maintained. We have, however,
not made a detailed examination of the cost records
with aview to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

a) According to the information and explanations
given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion the Company is
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
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fund, employee's state insurance, income tax,
sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and any other
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.
There were no undisputed statutory dues in
arrears, as a 31st March, 2022 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became
payable.

b) According to the information and explanations
given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of Goods and
Services tax, provident fund, employee's state
insurance, incometax, salestax, servicetax, duty
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and any other statutory dueswhich have not been
deposited with appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute except detailed as

. ) i . follows:
including Goods and Services tax, provident
Name of the Statute Nature of Related (Rs.In | Forum where
Liability Period lacs) # | disputeispending
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 2006-07, 225.22 High Court
2007-08,
2009-10 and
2011-12
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 2013-14 & 107.76 | Commissioner (Appea)
2016-17,
2018-19
M.P. Value Added Tax Act, 2002 Sales Tax 2008-09 2.19 | Additional Comm. (Appeal)
Madhya Pradesh Value Added Tax Act 2002 | Sales Tax 2015-16 39.65 | Additional Commissioner
Commercial Tax (Appeal)
Madhya Pradesh Value Added Tax Act 2002 | Sales Tax 2016-17 26.62 | Additional Commissioner
Commercia Tax (Apped)
Custom & Central Excise & Service Tax Custom Duty 2014-16 66.18 | Custom & Central Excise &
Service Tax (Appedate
Tribunal)

#Net of Rs. 115.10lacsdeposited

viii. According to the information and explanations given

tousand therecords of the Company examined by us,
there were no transactions relating to previously
unrecorded income that have been surrendered or

disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961) and hence reporting under clause 3(viii) of the
Order isnot applicableto the Company.

ix. a According to the records of the company examined
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Xi.

by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans and borrowings or in payment of
interest thereon to any lender and hence reporting
under para 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

b. The company is not declared awillful defaulter by
any bank or financial institution or other lender.

c¢. According to the information and explanations
given to usand therecords of the Company examined
by us, the term loans raised during the year were
appliedfor thepurposefor whichthey wereobtained.

d. According to the information and explanations
givento usand on an overall examination of financial
statements of the Company, we report that funds
raised for short term basis have not been utilized for
longterm purpose.

e. According to the information and explanations
given to usand therecords of the Company examined
by us, the company has no subsidiary, joint venture or
associate company. Hence, in our opinion provision
of para3 (ix)(e) arenot applicable.

f. According to the information and explanations
given to usand therecords of the Company examined
by us, the company hasno subsidiaries, joint ventures
or associate companies. In our opinion provision of
para3(ix)(f) arenot applicable.

a. Inour opinion and according to theinformation and
explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, the company hasnot rai sed
money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments).

b. In our opinion and according to theinformation and
explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, the company has not made
any preferential alotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or
optionally convertible) during theyear.

a. During the course of our examination of the books
of account and records of the Company and according

Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.
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to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or on the company noticed or
reported during theyear.

b. No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of
the companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 withthe Central Government.

c. Asrepresented to us by the management, there are
no whistle-blower complaints received by the
company during theyear.

In our opinion and according to information and
explanation given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, thecompany isnot aNidhi
Company therefore, theprovision of para3 (xii) of the
Order isnot applicableto thecompany.

According to the information and explanations given
to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, transactionswith therelated partiesare
in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act
whereapplicableand detail sof such transactionshave
been disclosed in the financial statements as required
by the applicableaccounting standards.

a. In our opinion and based on our examination, the
company has an internal audit system commensurate
withthesizeand natureof itsbusiness.

b. Wehave considered theinternal audit reports of the
company issuedtill date, for the period under audit.

According to the information and explanations given
tous, inour opinion during theyear the company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with its directors and
hence the provision of section 192 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company.
Accordingly the requirement to report para 3(xv) of
theorder isnot applicabletothecompany.

a. The company is not required to be registered under
section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of IndiaAct, 1934
therefore, the provision of para3 (xvi) (8) of the Order
is not applicable to the company for the year under
audit.
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XVii.

XViii

XiX.

b. The company has not conducted any Non-Banking
Financial or Housing Finance activities during the
year therefore, the provision of para3 (xvi) (b) of the
Order isnot applicabletothecompany.

¢. The company is not a Core Investment Company
(CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Therefore, the provision of
para 3 (xvi) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the
company.

d. The Group has no CIC. Therefore, the provision of
para 3 (xvi) (d) of the Order is not applicable to the
company.

The company has not incurred cash losses during the
financial year covered by our audit and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

. There has been no resignation of the statutory
auditors during the year and accordingly reporting
under para3(xviii) of theorder isnot applicable.

According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realisation of financia assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
cometo our attention, which causes usto believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report indicating that the Company is not
capable of meeting itsliabilitiesexisting at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a

XX.

XXi.
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period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that
our reporting isbased on the factsup to the date of the
audit report and we neither giveany guaranteenor any
assurancethat all liabilitiesfalling duewithin aperiod
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company asand whenthey fall due.

According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, there are no amounts unspent in respect of
corporate social responsibility towards ongoing or
other than ongoing projectsand hencereporting under
clause 3(xx) (a) and (b) of the Order isnot applicable
tothe Company.

According to the information and explanations given
to usand therecords of the Company examined by us,
the company has no component and preparation of
consolidated financial statement not applicableto the
company, therefore provision of para3 (xxi) of the
Order isnot applicableto thecompany.

For SMAK & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 020120C)

CA Atishay Khasgiwala
Partner
M. No. 417866

Date: 30.05.2022
Place: Indore
UDIN : 22417866AJXY W 04946
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Annexure B To the Independent Auditor's Report of
even date on the Financial Statements of Signet
IndustriesLimited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013 (" theAct")

We have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of Signet Industries Limited as of
March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial

Controls
The Company's management is responsible for

establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of itsbusiness, including adherence to company'spolicies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditors Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the

Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financia Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued
by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirementsand plan and performtheaudit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
interna financial controls over financia reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated
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effectively inall material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the interna financia
controls over financia reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financia controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal  financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectivenessof internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures sel ected depend on the auditor'sjudgment,
including the assessment of the risks of materia
misstatement of the financia statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company'sinternal financial controls over
financial reporting.

M eaning of Internal Financial Controlsover Financial

Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial

reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financia reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for externa
purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financia
control over financial reporting includesthose policiesand
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financia
statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonabl e assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assetsthat
could haveamaterial effect onthefinancial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls

over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of interna financia

controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls,
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material misstatementsdueto error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the interna
financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all materia respects,
an adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting and such interna financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively asat March
31, 2022, based on the interna control over financial
reporting criteriaestablished by the Company considering
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the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountantsof India.

For SMAK & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 020120C)

CA Atishay Khasgiwala
Partner
M. No. 417866
Date: 30.05.2022
Place: Indore
UDIN : 22417866AJXY W 04946
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SIGNET INDUSTRIESLIMITED
CIN - L51900M H1985PL C035202
BALANCE SHEET ASAT 31st March, 2022

(Amount in Lacs)

Particulars Note Asat Asat
31st, March 2022| 31st, March 2021
I. | ASSETS
(1) | Non-Current Assets
(8 Property, Plant and Equipment 1 7,837.93 8,038.31
(b) Right of use Asset 2 88.64 93.47
(c) Capital Work-in-Progress 3 466.53 164.76
(d) Intangible Assets 4 0.92 1.33
(e) Financia Assets
(i) Investments 5 17.74 14.08
(i) Loans 6 218.06 -
(iii) Other Financial Assets 7 1,192.42 1,217.39
(f)  Other Non-Current Assets 8 428.81 768.39
Total Non-Current Assests 10,251.05 10,297.73
(2) | Current Assets
(& Inventories 9 25,189.61 22,209.14
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Tradereceivables 10 31,242.53 32,724.61
(if) Cash and cash equivaents 11 65.95 798.77
(iii) Bank balances Other than (ii) above 12 1,356.97 1,267.15
(iv) Loans 13 - 300.36
(v) Other Financial Assets 14 1,163.75 2,405.36
(c) Other Current Assets 15 2,535.10 2,879.11
Total Current Assests 61,553.91 62,584.50
Total Assets 71,804.96 72,882.23
II. | EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(8 Equity share capita 16 2,943.70 2,943.70
(b) Other Equity 17 16,570.74 15,916.59
Total Equity 19,514.44 18,860.29
LIABILITIES
(2) | Non-Current Liabilities
(8 Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 8,036.02 7,381.81
(i) Leaseliabilities 19 36.18 36.88
(b) Provisions 20 122.08 113.55
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 21 854.93 927.09
Total Non-Current Liabilities 9,049.21 8,459.33
(2) | Current Liabilities
(@ Financid Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 22 22,672.94 22,084.15
(ii) LeaseLiability 23 0.63 0.50
(iii) Trade payables 24
(@ Total outstanding Dues of Micro & Small Enterprises 37.73 -
(b) Total outstanding Dues of creditors Other than 18,979.25 21,852.77
Micro & Small Enterprise
(iv) Other financial liabilities 25 343.64 365.33
(b) Other current liabilities 26 1,177.59 1,138.83
(c) Provisions 27 26.88 31.17
(d) Current Tax Laibilities (net) 28 2.65 89.85
Total Current Liabilities 43,241.31 45,562.61
Total Equity and Liabilities 71,804.96 72,882.23
Notes Forming an integral part of the Financial statements 1to 60
Company Information and Significant Accounting policies A-B

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
For SMAK & Co.

Chartered Accountants sd/-

FRN 020120C J C Paliwal

CA. Atishay Khasgiwala Chief Financial Officer
Partner

M. No. 417866 sd/-

Place: Indore Preeti Singh

30th May, 2022 Company Secretary

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

sd/- sd/-

Mukesh Sangla Saurabh Sangla
Managing Director Director

DIN - 00189676 DIN - 00206069
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SIGNET INDUSTRIESLIMITED
CIN - L51900M H1985PL C035202
Statement of Profit and L ossfor The year ended 31st March, 2022
(Amount in Lacs)

Particulars Note | For theyear ended | For theyear ended
March 31st, 2022 March 31st, 2021
| Revenue from Operations 29 87,726.35 82,699.30
Il Other Income 30 140.50 181.93
111" Total Income (1+1) 87,866.85 82,881.23
IV EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 31 34,340.93 28,349.34
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 32 42,939.30 43,233.47
Changes in inventories of finished goods, 33 (4,238.08) (2,811.29)
stock in trade and work-in-progress
Employee Benefits Expense 34 2,563.98 2,205.32
Finance Costs 35 4,280.41 4,623.81
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 861.34 793.43
Other Expenses 36 5,948.80 5,482.17
IV Total Expenses 86,696.69 81,876.25
V  Profit before exceptional itemsand tax (111-1V) 1,170.16 1,004.98
VI Exceptional Items (Refer Note-59) - 164.02
VIl Profit beforetax (V+VI) 1,170.16 1,169.00
VIl Tax expense 37
Current Tax (424.00) (268.00)
Deferred Tax 78.28 427.79
Income Tax for Earlier Years - 65.97
IX  Profit for theyear (VII-VIII) 824.45 1,394.77
X Other comprehensiveincome
a Iltemsthat will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Net gain/(loss) on defined benefit obligation 16.27 10.68
Tax thereon (5.68) (3.73)
Gain /(loss) on changein fair value of equity instrument 3.74 6.02
Tax thereon (0.44) (0.70)
b Itemsthat will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Total Other comprehensiveincome 13.89 12.27
X1 Total comprehensiveincome for theyear (I X+X) 838.34 1407.03
X1l Earnings per equity share (Face Value of Rs. 10 per share) | 44
Basic (InRs) 2.68 4.61
Diluted (In Rs.) 2.68 4.61
Notes Forming an integral part of the Financial statements 1to 60
Company I nformation and Significant Accounting policies A-B
AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
For SMAK & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN 020120C

sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/-

CA. Atishay Khasgiwala J C Paliwal Mukesh Sangla Saurabh Sangla

Partner Chief Financial Officer  Managing Director Director

M. No. 417866 DIN - 00189676 DIN - 00206069
sd/-

Place: Indore Preeti Singh

30th May, 2022 Company Secretary
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SIGNET INDUSTRIESLIMITED
CIN - L51900M H1985PL C035202
Statement of changesin equity (SOCIE)

a. Equity share capital
(Amount in Lacs)

Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Amount Amount
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 2,943.70 2,943.70

- Changesin equity share capital due to prior period error - -
- Restated balance at the beginning of the current year - -
- Changesin equity share capital during the current year - -
Balance at the end of the reporting period 2,943.70 2,943.70

b. Other Equity

Particulars Reserve& Surplus Equity Equity Total
General | Security Retained | component | Instruments
Reserve | Premium Earning |of compound | through Other
financial |Comprehensive
instrument Income
Balancesasat 01st April 2020 205.22 1,500.00 10,499.28 2,479.24 10.01 {14,693.75
Profit for the year 1,394.76 1,394.76
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) 6.95 5.32 12.27
Dividend Paid during the year (147.19) (37.00) (184.19)
Balances asat 31st March 2021 205.22 1,500.00 11,753.80 2,442.24 15.33 [15,916.59
Profit for the year 824.45 824.45
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) 10.58 10.58
Dividend Paid during the year (147.19) (37.00) 3.31 | (180.88)
Amount Transfer to Equity Instrument Through (0.30) - - (0.30)
Other Comprehensive Income
Amount Transfer From Retained Earning - - 0.30 0.30
Balances asat 31st March 2022 205.22 1,500.00 12,441.34 2,405.24 18.94 [16,570.74
Notes Forming an integral part of the Financial statements 1to60
Company Information and Significant Accounting policies A-B
AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
For SMAK & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 020120C
sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/-
CA. Atishay Khasgiwala J C Paliwal Mukesh Sangla Saurabh Sangla
Partner Chief Financial Officer  Managing Director Director
M. No. 417866 DIN - 00189676 DIN - 00206069
sd/-
Place: Indore Preeti Singh
30th May, 2022 Company Secretary
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SIGNET INDUSTRIESLIMITED
CIN - L51900M H1985PL C035202
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

(Amount in Lacs)

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
A | Cash flow from Operating activities
a. Net Profit/ (Loss) before Tax & Exceptional item 1,170.16 1,004.98
Adjustment for : - -
Depreciation 861.34 793.43
Finance costs 4,280.41 4,623.81
Interest Received (132.72) (141.39)
Allowance for doubtful debts 40.61 24.81
Investemnt Write Off 0.09 -
Defined benefit Obligation through OCI 16.27 10.68
Discard of property, plant & equipment 101 -
Unrealised (gain)/ loss on foreign currency traslation (2.97) (12.38)
b. Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 6,235.20 6,303.94
Adjustment for :
Trade and Other receivables 3,160.66 (4,011.10)
Inventories (2,980.47) (3,053.21)
Trade and other payables (2,812.51) 1,843.69
c. Cash generated from Operations 3,602.88 1,083.32
Direct Taxes (paid)/Refund (245.39) (387.50)
Net Cash Flow from Operating activities 3,357.49 695.81
B. | Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Property Plant & Equipment (877.44) (1,528.50)
Sale of Property Plant & Equipment - 180.00
Interest Received 140.47 160.78
Changeininvestment in fixed Deposits with Bank (131.17) (65.91)
Net Cash Flow from Investing activities (868.14) (1,253.63)
C. | Cash flow from Financing activities
Proceeds from Borrowings 1,300.74 5,632.07
Repayment of Borrowings (57.75) (552.07)
Finance costs (4,280.41) (4,623.81)
Repaymnet of Lease Liability (0.57) (0.50)
Dividend Paid (184.19) (184.19)
Net Cash flow from Financing activities (3,222.17) 271.50
D. | NetIncrease/ ( Decrease)in Cash and Cash Equivalent (732.82) (286.32)
Cash and Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year 798.77 1,085.09
Cash and Cash Equivalent at the end of the year 65.95 798.77
Cash & Cash Equivalents Consist of
Balance with Bank 41.08 775.25
Cashin Hand 24.87 2352
Total 65.95 798.77

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
For SMAK & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN 020120C

sd/- sd/-

CA. Atishay Khasgiwala J C Paliwal

Partner Chief Financial Officer
M. No. 417866
sd/-
Place: Indore Preeti Singh
30th May, 2022 Company Secretary
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SIGNET INDUSTRIESLIMITED
Notes forming an integral part to Financial Statementsfor the year ended on 31st March-2022

Notel: Property ,Plant And Equipment
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Gross Carrying Amount Land- Buildings Plant & |Furniture| Office |Vehicles| Total
Freehold Equipment] & FixturestEquipments
Asat 01 April, 2020 1.01 1,888.71 | 8,167.00 64.00 81.99 166.76 (10,369.48
Additions - - 1,200.40 36.06 474 40.26 | 1,281.46
Deduction
Asat 31March, 2021 101 1,888.71 | 9,156.99 | 100.06 86.73 207.02 |11,440.53
Additions - 218.81 308.36 10.97 414 114.44 | 656.73
Deduction 101 |- - - - - -
Asat 31 March, 2022 - 2,107.52 | 946535 | 111.03 90.88 321.46 |12,096.25
Accumulated Depriciation &
Impairement
Asat 01 April, 2020 - 231.29 2,417.68 36.86 49.24 73.95 | 2,809.03
Depriciation for the year 20-21 - 67.83 681.01 6.52 9.58 22.68 | 787.62
Di sposal g/adjustments - - 194.43 - - - 194.43
Asat 31 March, 2021 - 299.12 2,904.26 43.39 58.82 96.64 | 3,402.22
Depriciation for the year 21-22 - 67.83 738.34 8.59 127 34.07 | 856.10
Disposal g/adjustments - - - - - - -
Asat 31 March, 2022 - 366.95 3,642.60 51.98 66.09 130.70 | 4,258.32
Net Carrying Amount - - - - - - -
Asat 31 March 2021 101 1,589.60 | 6,252.73 56.67 27.92 110.38 | 8,038.31
Asat 31 March, 2022 - 1,740.57 | 5,822.76 59.06 24.79 190.76 | 7,837.93

Note2: RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

A.GrossCarrying Cost

Leasehold Land

Asat 01 April, 2020
Additions
Disposals/adjustments

Asat 31 March, 2021
Additions
Disposal /adjustments

Asat 31 March, 2022

B. Accumulated Amortisation & I mpairment
Asat 1 April, 2020
Amortisation for the year 20-21
Disposal /adjustments

Asat 31 March, 2021
Amortisation for the year 21-22
Disposals/adjustments

Asat 31 March, 2022

Net Carrying Amount

Asat 31 March 2021

Asat 31 March, 2022

125.30

125.30

125.30

27.00
4.83

31.83
4.83

36.66

93.47
88.64
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Notes forming an integral part to Financial Statementsfor the year ended on 31st March 2022

Note3 : CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Capital Work in Progress Building | Plant & Equipment Total
Asat 1st April, 2020 49.68 - 49.68
Add: Addition During the Year 115.07 - 115.07
Less: Capitalised During The Year - - -
Asat 31 March, 2021 164.76 - 164.76
Add: Addition During the Year 54.05 466.53 520.59
Less: Capitalised During The Year 218.81 - 218.81
Asat 31 March, 2022 - 466.53 466.53
Capital Work In Progress(CWI1P) ageing schedulefor theyear ended on 31st M arch 2022
CWIP Amount In CWIPfor aperiod of Total

<1Year | 1-2Year | 2-3Year | Morethan

3year

ProjectsInProgress 115.07 49.68 - - 164.76
Projects Temporarily Suspended - - - - -
Capital Work In Progress(CW1P) ageing schedulefor theyear ended on 31st March 2021
CWIP Amount In CWIPfor aperiod of Total

<1VYear| 1-2Year | 2-3Year | Morethan

3year

Projects In Progress 466.53 - - - 466.53
Projects Temporarily Suspended - - - - -

Note4 : INTANGIBLEASSETS

GrossCarryingCost

Computer Software

Asat 01 April, 2020
Additions
Disposal g/adjustments

Asat 31 March, 2021
Additions
Disposal ¢/adjustments

Asat 31 March, 2022

B. Accumulated Amortisation & I mpairment
Asat 1 April, 2020
Amortisation for the year 20-21
Disposals/adjustments

Asat 31 March, 2021
Amortisation for the year 21-22
Disposal g/adjustments

Asat 31 March, 2022

Net Carrying Amount

Asat 31 March 2021

Asat 31 March, 2022

3.60
131

4.90

4.90

2.59
0.98

3.57
0.41

3.98

133
0.92
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Notes forming an integral part to Financial Statementsfor the year ended on 31st March 2022

Particulars

Asat
31st March, 2022

Asat
31st March, 2021

Note5: NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Investment in Equity | nstruments

At Fair Valuethrough Other Comprehensivelncome

Quoted

4000 (PreviousYear 4000) Equity Sharesof Rs. 10/- eachfully paidupin
Tirupati Starch & ChemicalsLtd.

0(PreviousYear 500) Equity Sharesof Rs.10/- each fully paidupin
Nagarjun Fertilizers& ChemicalsLtd.

15(PreviousYear 15) Equity Sharesof Rs.10/- eachfully paidupin
ReliancelndustriesLimited

3200 ( PreviousYear 3200) Equity Sharesof Rs.10/- eachfully paidupin
Clariant Chemical Limited

0(PreviousYear 63600) Equity Sharesof Rs.10/- eachfully paidupin
Tribhuvan Housing Finance Limited

435 ( PreviousYear 435) Equity Sharesof Rs.10/- eachfully paidupin
Reliance Power Limited

4000 ( PreviousYear 4000) Equity Sharesof Rs.10/- eachfully paidupin
Herald Commercelimited

Unquoted
0(PreviousYear 100) Equity Sharesof Rs. 10/- each of SV CBank Ltd.

TOTAL NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Aggregateamount of quoted investmentsand market val uethereof
Aggregateamount of ungquoted investmentsat cost
Aggregateamount of Impairment invalue of investments

Note6: LOANS-NON CURRENT
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
IntercorporateLoan

(Refer NoteNo-49)

Note7: OTHERFINANCIALASSETS-NON CURRENT
Security Deposits

Interest accrued on fixed deposit

Earmarked Balancewith Banks in Deposit Accountshaving
original maturity over 12 months

Note8: OTHERNON CURRENTASSETS
Capital Advances

Balancewith Government A uthourities
AdvancelncomeTax (Net)

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

2.68 1.38
0.00 0.03
0.40 0.30
14.60 11.89
0.06 0.02

- 0.40
17.74 14.02
0.00 0.06
0.00 0.06
17.74 14.08
17.74 14.02
0.00 0.06

218.06 -

218.06 0.00

420.74 473.30
72.90 86.66

698.78 657.43

1,192.42 1,217.39
49,59 130.66
42.04 34.75

337.18 602.99

428.81 768.39
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Note9: INVENTORIES
(AtLower of Costand Net RealisableValue)
Raw Materials
Finished Goods
Stock inTrade
Stores& Spares
TOTAL
Carrying amount of Inventory Hypothecated as Security against Liability
Note: Thecost of inventoriesrecognised asan expenseincludeINR Nil
(previousyear Nil) inrespect of written downinventory to net realisablevalue.

Notel0: TRADE RECEIVABLES
Unsecured Considered good
Credit Impaired

Less: Allowancefor doubtful debtsasper ECL

TOTAL
Note: Debtsduefrom firms/Pvt co. inwhichdirectorisa
partner/director Rs17.84 Lakhl (Pre. Year - Nil)

4,481.99 5,741.65
19,910.34 15,097.85
426.98 1,001.39
370.30 368.26
25,189.61 22,209.14
31,561.78 32,724.61
0.00 278.63
31,561.78 33,003.26
319.24 278.63
31,242.53 32,724.61

TradeReceivableAgeingAson 31.03.2022

Particular LessThan| 6month | 1-2Years

2-3Years |MoreThan| Total

6month | -1Year 3Years
Undisputed Tradereceivables- Considered good 25608.44 | 5066.26 | 415.52 132,51 155.32 | 31378.05
Undisputed Tradereceivables- Credit Impaired - - - - - -
Disputed Tradereceivables- Considered good - - 128.91 8.32 46.50 183.73
Disputed Tradereceivables- Credit Impaired - - - - - -
TOTAL 25608.44 | 5066.26 | 544.43 140.83 201.82 | 31561.78

TradeReceivableAgeingAson 31.03.2021

Particular LessThan| 6month | 1-2Years

2-3Years |MoreThan| Total

6month | -1Year 3Years
Undisputed Tradereceivables- Considered good 29901.62 | 2332.09 | 398.66 45.84 46.42 32724.63
Undisputed Trade receivables - Credit Impaired - - - - 278.63 278.63
Disputed Trade receivables - Considered good 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Disputed Trade receivables - Credit Impaired - - - - - -
TOTAL 29901.62 | 2332.09 | 398.66 45.84 325.05 | 33,003.26
Note 11 : CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balances with Banks
In Current Accounts 41.08 775.25
Cash on hand 24.87 2352
TOTAL 65.95 798.77
Note12: BANK BALANCESOTHER THAN CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Earmarked Balances with Banks
In Unclaimed Dividend Account 20.79 19.37
In Deposit Accounts with original Maturiy of less than 12 months 1,336.18 1,247.78
TOTAL 1,356.97 1,267.15
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Note 13: LOANS - CURRENT

(Unsecured, considered good)

Intercorporate Loan - 300.36

( Refer Note No-49) - -
TOTAL 0.00 300.36

Note 14 : CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS- OTHERS

Security Deposits 301.76 299.21

Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits 20.99 14.98

Other Receivables* 841.00 2,091.17

(*Includes VAT and GST Incentive Receivable etc.) TOTAL 1,163.75 2,405.36

Note 15: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Advanceto Suppliers 636.78 648.21

Balance with Government Authority 1,232.24 1,499.88

Other Advances recoverable* 666.07 731.01

(*Includes prepaid expenses, staff tour advance etc.) TOTAL 2,535.10 2,879.11

Note 16 : SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised

3,00,00,000 (Previous Year : 3,00,00,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 Each 3,000.00 3,000.00

50,00,000 (Previous Year : 50,00,000)5% Non Convertible, Non Cumulative 500.00 500.00

Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.10 each

1,50,00,000 (Previous Year : ,150,00,000)2% Non Convertible, Non Cumulative 1,500.00 1,500.00

Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.10 each

Issued, subscribed and fully paid

Equity Share

2,94,37,000 (Previous Year : 2,94,37,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 Each 2,943.70 2,943.70

2,943.70 2,943.70
16.1 Reconciliation of number of Equity Sharesand amount outstanding :
Particulars Asat 31 Mar-2022 Asat 31Mar-2021
No. of Amount | No. of Amount
Shares Shares

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 29,437,000 2,943.70 29,437,000| 2,943.70

Add : Issued during the year - - - -

Equity Shares at the end of the year 29,437,000 2,943.70 29,437,000| 2,943.70

16.2 Terms/ Rightsattached to Equity Shares:

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share (Previous Year Re. 10 Each). Each
shareholder is eligible for one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directorsis subject to the approval of
shareholdersin the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity
shareholders will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amountsin
proportiontotheir shareholding.
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16.3 Equity Shareholdersholdingmorethan 5% equity shares:
Name of the Shareholder Asat 31 Mar-2022 Asat 31 Mar-2021
No. of Shares | % No. of Shares | %
Mukesh SanglaHUF 3,410,072 | 11.58% 3,410,072 | 11.58%
Shri Balaji Starch & Chemicals Pvt. Ltd. 3,886,200 | 13.20% 3,886,200 | 13.20%
Swan Irrigation LLP 2,891,700 9.82% 2,891,700 9.82%
Adroit Industries (India) Limited 2,725,000 9.26% 2,725,000 9.26%
Mrs. Monika Sangla 2,143,500 7.28% 2,143,500 7.28%
Ornate Impex Private Limited 2,078,400 7.06% 2,078,400 7.06%
Signet Tradelinks Private Limited 2,065,746 7.02% 2,065,746 7.02%
16.4 Equity Shareholding of Promoter & Promoter Group
Name of the Promoter Asat 31 Mar-2022 % of Changes
No. of Shares % DuringtheYear
Mukesh SanglaHUF 3,410,072 11.58% -
Shri Balgji Starch & Chemicals Pvt. Ltd. 3,886,200 13.20% -
Swan Irrigation LLP 2,891,700 9.82% -
Adroit Industries (India) Limited 2,725,000 9.26% -
Monika Sangla 2,143,500 7.28% -
Ornate Impex Private Limited 2,078,400 7.06% -
Signet Tradelinks Private Limited 2,065,746 7.02% -
Mukesh Sangla 930,569 3.16% 0.15%
Avantika Sangla 150,000 0.51% -
Saurabh Sangla 97,103 0.33% -
Signet Impex Pvt Limited 984,000 3.34% -
Name of the Promoter Asat 31 Mar-2021 % of Changes
No. of Shares % DuringtheYear
Mukesh SanglaHUF 3,410,072 11.58% -
Shri Balgji Starch & Chemicals Pvt. Ltd. 3,886,200 13.20% -
Swan Irrigation LLP 2,891,700 9.82% -
Adroit Industries (India) Limited 2,725,000 9.26% -
Monika Sangla 2,143,500 7.28% -
Ornate Impex Private Limited 2,078,400 7.06% -
Signet Tradelinks Private Limited 2,065,746 7.02% -
Mukesh Sangla 885,127 3.01% -
Avantika Sangla 150,000 0.51% -
Saurabh Sangla 97,103 0.33% -
Signet Impex Pvt Limited 984,000 3.34% -

16.5 For the period of five yearsimmediately preceding the date at which the Balance Sheet isprepared i.e. 31st March, 2022,
the company has not allotted any bonus shares,any shares pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash and
bought back any shares/classof shares.
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Notel7: Other Equity

Reservesand Surplus
General Reserve
Security Premium
Retained Earning
Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income
Equity component of compound financial liability
TOTAL

General Reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the year

Add: Transfer from Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as at the end of the year

Security Premium

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Add: Received during the year
Balance as at the end of the year

Retained Earnings

Balance as at the begining of the year

Add: Net Profit for the period

Add: Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans through OCI (Net of tax)

Less:

Equity Dividend Paid

Amount Transfer to Eqity Instrument Through Other Comprehensive Income
Balance as at the end of the year

Equity Instrumentsthrough Other Comprehensive Income
Balance as at the beginning of the year

-Fair value change in investments in equity shares- OCI
Amount Transfer to Retained Eraning

Balance as at the end of the year

Equity component of compound financial Instrument
At the beginning of the year

Less: Dividend Paid on Preference Shares
Balance as at the end of the year

Note 18 :BORROWINGS

Secured

Term Loan

From Banks

From Others

Less: Current Maturity of long term Borrowing (Refer Note 22)
(Refer Note 39(a) for securities)

20522 | 20522
1,500.00 | 1,500.00
12,441.34 | 11,753.80
18.94 15.33
240524 | 2,442.24
16,570.74 | 15,916.59
20522 | 20522
20522 | 20522
1,500.00 | 1,500.00
1,500.00 | 1,500.00
11,753.80 | 10,499.28
824.45 | 1,394.76
10.58 6.95
12,588.83 | 11,900.98
14719 | 147.19
0.30 -
12,441.34 | 11,753.80
15.33 10.01
331 5.32
0.30 -
18.94 15.33
244224 | 2,479.24
(37.00) | (37.00)
2,405.24 | 2,442.24
6,198.73 | 6,480.61
1,108.77 | 872.06
(1,943.33) | (2,329.03)
5364.18 | 502364
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Unsecured

From Banks 289.52 302.10
Intercorporate Deposits 785.00 490.00
Others 65.00 160.00
(Refer Note 39(b) for securities) 1139.52 952.10
Non Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares

50,00,000 5% Non Convertible, Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.10 each 251.06 251.06
60,00,000 2% Non Convertible, Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.10 each 621.84 621.84
Premium on redemption of Preference Shares 659.42 533.17

1532.32 | 1,406.08

GRAND TOTAL 8,036.02 | 7,381.81

18.1 Reconciliation of number of Preference Shares and amount outstanding :
Particulars Asat 31 Mar-2022 Asat 31 Mar-2021
No. of Shares| Amount | No. of Shares | Amount

A.5% Non Convertible, Non Cumulative
RedeemablePreference Shares

At thebeginning of theyear 5,000,000 500.00 5,000,000 500.00
Add: Issued duringtheyear - -
Attheend of theyear 5,000,000 500.00 5,000,000 500.00

B. 2% Non Convertible, Non Cumulative
RedeemablePreference Shares

Atthebeginning of theyear 6,000,000 600.00 6,000,000| 600.00
Add: Issued duringtheyear
Attheend of theyear 6,000,000 600.00 6,000,000| 600.00

18.2 Terms/ Rightsattached to PreferenceShares:
A. 5% Non Convertible, Non Cumulative RedeemablePreferenceShares

Preference Shares are Non Convertible, Non Cumulative, Redeemable and have a par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each
Preference Shareholder is eligible for one vote per share only on resolution affecting their rights and interest. Shareholders are
entitled to dividend at therate of 5% p.a. whichisnon cumulative. Inthe event of liquidati on of the Company, beforeredemption,
theholdersof preference shareswill havepriority over equity sharesinthe payment of dividend and repayment of capital.

The Company hasallotted 50,00,000,5% Non Convertible, Non Cumul ative, Redeemabl e Preference Sharesof Rs. 10/- eachon
Bth October 2012. The preference sharesareredeemableat par , not being after 20 yearsfromthedateof allotment.

B. 2% Non Convertible, Non CumulativeRedeemablePr eferenceShares

Preference Shares are Non Convertible, Non Cumulative, Redeemable and have a par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each
Preference Shareholder iseligible for one vote per share only on resolution affecting their rights and interest. Shareholdersare
entitled to dividend at therate of 2% p.a. whichisnon cumulative. In the event of liquidation of the Company beforeredemption
the hol dersof preferenceshareswill have priority over equity sharesinthepayment of dividend and repayment of capital.

The Company hasallotted 54,00,000 ,2% Non Convertible, Non Cumul ative, Redeemabl e Preference Sharesof Rs. 10/- each at
a premium of Rs. 40/- per share on 27th March 2015 and 6,00,000 Shares on 14th May, 2015. The preference shares shdll be
redeemed at Rs. 80/-(Rupees Eighty only) after theend of fifth year but within aperiod of 20 yearseither in oneor morethan one
trenchesas may be determined by the board of directorsof thecompany initsabsol utediscretion.
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18.3. 5% Non Convertible, Non Cumulative Preference Shareholders holding morethan 5% preference shares:

Name of the Shareholder Asat 31 Mar-2022 Asat 31 Mar-2021
No. of Shares| % No. of Shares| %

Asan Investments & Finance Limited 450,000 9.00% 450,000 9.00%
Mukesh Sangla HUF 1,850,000 | 37.00% 1,850,000 | 37.00%
Ornate Impex Private Limited 600,000 | 12.00% 600,000 | 12.00%
Signet tradelink Private Limited 700,000 | 14.00% 700,000 | 14.00%
Signet Impex Private Limited 250,000 5.00% 250,000 5.00%
Dhanus Technologies Limited 250,000 5.00% 250,000 5.00%
Avantika sangla 455,000 9.10% 455,000 9.10%

18.4 2% Non Convertible, Non Cumulative Preference Shareholder s holding more than 5% preference shares:

Name of the Shareholder Asat 31 Mar-2022 Asat 31 Mar-2021
No. of Shares| % No. of Shares| %
Adroit Industries (1) Limited 3,200,000 | 53.33% 3,200,000 | 53.33%
Lucky Commotrade Private Limited 1,000,000 | 16.67% 1,000,000 | 16.67%
Mukesh Sangla HUF 1,640,000 | 27.33% 1,640,000 | 27.33%
Note19: LeaselLiabilties
Lease Liabilities 36.18 36.88
TOTAL 36.18 36.88
Note 20 : PROVISIONS- NON CURRENT
For employee benefits (Refer Note 42) 122.08 113.55
TOTAL 122.08 | 113.55
Note 21 : Deferred Tax Liabilities/ Assets
Deffered Tax Liability
Depreciation on Property,Plant & Equipments 984.34 | 1,045.00
Total (A) 984.34 | 1,045.00
Deffered Tax Assets
Provision for Doubtful Debts & advances 80.35 70.13
Other Timing Differences 39.82 38.53
Total (B) 120.16 | 108.66
Net Liability (A-B) 864.18 | 936.34
MAT Credit Entitlement 9.25 9.25
TOTAL 854.93 | 927.09
Note 22 : BORROWINGS - CURRENT
Secured
Working Capital Demand Loan
From Bank 19,877.18 (19,545.23
Current maturities of long-term Borrowing (Refer Note 18) 1,943.33 | 2,329.03
(Refer Note (a) below)
TOTAL 21,820.51 [21,874.26
Unsecured
From Bank 352.59 2.27
From Others 499.84 | 207.62
(Refer Note 9(b) & 9(c) below) TOTAL 852.44 | 209.89
GRAND TOTAL 22,672.94 [22,084.15
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a

Note:

Working Capital Loans from Banks amounting to Rs.19877.18 lacs (Pre. Year Rs.19545.23 lacs ) are secured by
hypothecation of stock of raw materials, work in process, finished goods, other current assets and charge on book debts,
second pari passu charge on the Property ,plant & equipment (both present and future) of the company, extension of
equitable mortgage of theimmovable propertiessituated at Industrial Area Pithampur and Kelodhala, Dewas Naka, Indore
and personal guarantee of Mr. Mukesh Sanglaand Mr. Saurabh Sangla, Directors of the company and Mrs. Monika Sangla
and Corporate Guarantee of M/sKamdeep Marketing Private Limited.

First pari passu charge of consortium banks by way of equitable mortgage on Immovable property situated at Survey No.
314/2 situated at Kelodhala, Dewas Naka, Indore and Immovable property situated at Survey No. 314/3 situated at
Kelodhala, Dewas Naka, Indore and further ; First charge of consortium banks by way of equitable mortgage ranking pari
passu with SV C Bank on Immovable property situated at Block No. 1, Khgjrana, 1307/2, Gulmohar Colony, Indore, Office
Premises situated at 114-116 Trade House, 14/3 South Tukoganj, Indore and Office Premises situated at 315-316 Trade
House, 14/3 South Tukoganj, Indore

The Compnay has availed channel finance facility fron Standard Chartered Bank, interest @ 1 MONTH MIBOR + 4.97%
PA, Thesaidfacility oustanding asat 31st March, 2022 Rs. 352.59 lacs(Pre.Year Rs.Nil).

The Compnay hastaken unsecured overdraft limit from from AxisBank ,interest @ 9.00% P.A .The said facility oustanding
asat 31st March, 2021 Rs.Nil (Pre.Year Rs.2.27 lacs) iswithout any Guaranteed & Security.

The company hasavailed unsecured trade discounting to the extent of 500 lakhs at theM 1 Plateform.Therate of discounting
(interest) varied on each transaction & dependson thelowest bid of the particiapating bank.The said facility oustanding asat
31stMarch, 2022 Rs. 499.84 lacs(Pre.Year Rs.207.62).

Note 23 : Lease Liability

Lease Liabilities 0.63 0.50
TOTAL 0.63 0.50

Note 24 : TRADE PAYABLES

a Total outstanding dues of Micro & Small Enterprises (Refer Note 54) 37.73 -

b. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro & Small Enterprises 18,979.25 21,852.77
TOTAL 19,016.98 21,852.77

Note:

Trade Payable includes bills payable for purchase of goods Rs. 13845.40/-

(Pre.Yr.13912.07/-).

TradePayableAgeingAson 31.03.2022

Particular LessThan 1-2Years 2-3Years |MoreThan| Total
1Year 3Years

MSME 37.73 - - - 37.73

OTHERS 18582.63 318.09 78.53 - 18979.25

DISPUTED DUES - MSME - - - - -

DISPUTED DUES - OTHERS - - - - -

TOTAL 18620.36 318.09 78.53 - 19016.98

TradePayableAgeingAson 31.03.2021

Particular LessThan 1-2Years 2-3Years [MoreThan| Total
1Year 3Years

MSME - - - - -

OTHERS 21383.30 145.26 324.20 - 21,852.77

DISPUTED DUES - MSME - - - - -

DISPUTED DUES - OTHERS - - - - -

TOTAL 21383.30 145.26 324.20 - 21852.77

69




SIGNET INDUSTRIES LIMITED

& ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

Notes forming an integral part to Financial Statementsfor the year ended on 31st March 2022

Unclaimed Dividends #
Other Liabilities*

(*Includes Salary, Rent and Expenses Payable)

Note26: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITY
Statutary Dues

Advance from Customers

Others - Deposits

Note 27 : PROVISIONS - CURRENT
for Employee Benefit

Note 28 : Current Tax Laibility (Net)
For Taxation (Net)

Note25: CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITY -OTHERS

(#Include Rs. Nil (PreYr. Rs. 1.99 lacs) amount due and outstanding to be credited to
Investor Education and protection fund under scetion 125 of the Companies Act 2013)

20.79 19.37

322.84 345.96

TOTAL 343.64 365.33
139.20 97.38

910.89 919.52

127.50 121.94

TOTAL 1,17759 | 1,138.83
26.88 3117

TOTAL 26.88 31.17
2.65 89.85

TOTAL 2.65 89.85

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31,2022

For theyear ended
March 31,2021

Note 29 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sales of Products
Sale of Wind Power Generated

Sale of services
Other Operating revenue

Note30: OTHER INCOME

Interest Received (at amortised cost)

Net gain on Foreign Exchange Fluctuation
Other non-operating Income

Note 31: COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED
Raw Materials Consumed

Note 32 : PURCHASES OF STOCK IN TRADE
Purchases of Stock in Trade

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

87,622.34 82,234.47
104.01 80.48
87,726.35 82,314.96
- 0.16

- 384.19
87,726.35 82,699.30
132.72 141.39
5.62 26.18

215 14.36
140.50 181.93
34,340.93 28,349.34
34,340.93 28,349.34
42,939.30 43,233.47
42,939.30 43,233.47
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Note 33: CHANGESIN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,
WORK IN PROGRESSAND STOCK IN TRADE

Finished goods

Opening Stock

Closing Stock

Traded goods
Opening Stock
Closing Stock

GRAND TOTAL

Note 34 : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
Salary, Wages and Other Benefits
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
Staff Welfare expenses
TOTAL

Note 35: FINANCE COSTS
Interest Expense( At Amortised Cost)
Other Borrowing Costs
TOTAL

Note 36 : OTHER EXPENSES
Stores & Chemicals Consumed
Consumption of Packing Materials
Power and Fuel
Rent
Repairs and Maintenance

Of Buildings

Of Plant and Machinery

Of Others
Insurance
Allowance for doubtful debts
Ratesand Taxes
Bank Chargesand Commission
Telephone & Internet Expenses
Lega & Professional Expenses
Freight & forwarding (net of recoveries)
CSR Expenses
Travelling & conveyance
Windmill expenses
Miscellaneous Expenses

TOTAL

Note37: Tax Expenses

Tax expensesrecognised in thestatement of Profit and L oss
I.Incometax related toitemsrecognised directly in profit or lossof the
statement of profit and lossduringtheyear

15,097.85 12,889.25
19,910.34 15,097.85
(4,812.49) (2,208.61)
1,001.39 398.71
426.98 1,001.39
574.40 (602.68)
(4,238.08) (2,811.29)
2,434.27 2,004.32
116.11 106.12
13.61 4.89
2,563.98 2,205.32
3,012.83 4,246.32
367.58 377.49
4,280.41 4,623.81
32031 266.97
239.16 190.70
1,409.40 1,359.78
419.06 405.48
18.74 14.29
48.26 47.64
5.74 6.12
54.65 57.91
40.61 24.81
259.98 60.32
0.40 12.57
16.33 12.14
145.83 141.67
1,986.57 2,127.03
33.00 43.30
284.83 256.23
44.82 42.11
612.05 413.09
5,948.80 5482.17
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Current Tax

in respect of current year 424.00 268.00
in respect of earlier year - (65.97)
Total Current Tax 424.00 202.03
Deferred Tax

in respect of current year (78.28) (427.79)
Total Deferred income tax expense/(credit) (78.28) (427.79)

TOTAL (1) 345.72 (225.76)

I1.Deferred tax related to items recognized in Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI) during the year
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss

Remeasurements of the defined benefit Plans 5.68 3.73
Equity Instruments Through Other Comprehensive Income 0.44 0.70
TOTAL (1) 6.12 4.43

TOTAL (I+11) 351.84 (221.33)

A reconciliation of the income tax amount between the
enacted income tax rate and the effective income tax of
the Company is as follows:

Profit before tax 1,170.16 1,168.99
Applicable Tax Rate 25.168% 34.944%
income tax as per above rate 29451 294.21
Adjustments for taxes for
Expense not deductible for tax purposes 52.87 45.65
Income exempt from Income taxes - (137.97)
Other Temporary difference 10.78 (63.59)
Others (6.31) 69.77
Income tax for earlier years - (65.97)
Dueto changein tax rate - (363.43)
Income tax as per statement of profit and loss 351.84 (221.33)
Effective Tax Rate 30.067% -18.933%
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The movement in Deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year ended March 31st, 2021 and March 31st, 2022

Particulars Closing Opening| Adjusted | Recognition in|Recognition| Closing
Balance Balance |in Reserves| Profitor Loss | in OCI Balance
For the Year 2020-21
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Depreciation on Property,Plant & Equipments | 104,499,635| 1,512.71 (467.72) 1,045.00
Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for Doubtful Debts & advances 7,012,674 88.70 (18.57) 70.13
Other Temporary Differences 3,852,984 64.33 - (21.36) (4.43) 38.53
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 93,633,977| 1,359.69 - (427.79) 443 | 936.34
For the Year 2021-22
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Depreciation on Property,Plant & Equipments| 98,433,974 | 1,045.00 (60.66) 984.34
Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for Doubtful Debts & advances 8,034,756 70.13 10.22 80.35
Other Temporary Differences 3,981,645 38.53 - 7.41 (6.12) 39.82
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 86,417,573| 936.34 - (78.28) 6.12 | 864.18
38 Contingent Liabilitiesand Commitments
(Totheextent not providedfor)
(Amount in Lacs)
Asat Asat
31 Mar-2022| 31 Mar-2021
A. Contingent Liabilities
a | Income Tax 412.88 412.88
Sales tax 95.72 95.72
Excise Duty 7354 73.54
(Amount deposited Rs.115.10 lacs,Previousyear Rs 115.10 lacs )
Total 582.14 582.14
B. Commitments Nil Nil
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30. (a) Disclosure of term loan security, repayment schedule, period of maturity and rate of
Nameof Bank [a. Sanctioned amount Security Repayment
b. Outstandingasat
theyear end
SVC Bank a) 2900.00 a. Primary Security Repayment Schedule
Limited 30 Scattered quarterly installments
b.677.80 1st pari passu charge by way of equitable | comprising of
(Pre.Yr1143.32) mortgage over land & building situated
a Plot N0.462-465, 476-478, Industrial | | ' o AQrE‘;‘t‘;ﬁ;f Inst'\éjol?r‘:em
Area, Sector - 3, Pithampur, Dist. Dhar PMI
(M.P) and hypothecation of plant & 2016-17 65.00 2
machinery & other movable assets| 50777 65.00 yl
(acquired/to be acquired out of the 2018-19 98.00 2
subject term loan) of the company at 5019-20 98.00 2
Pithampur Plant (Both Present & 202021 98:00 1
Future). 114.76 3
. Cﬁllateral Seclijrity h g(o)gégg ﬁi;g 2
Charges ranking pari passu wit . -
Working Capital Lenders for following 2023-24 114.74 2
assets: First installment of 65.00 commencing
. First charge on pari passu basis by way | from June, 2016 and last installment due
of equitable mortgage of immovable|in 2023-24. Rate of interest PLR-
property situated at block no. 1,|5.50%.p.a
Khajrana, 1307/2 Gulmohar Colony,
Indore
. First Charge on pari passu basis by way
of equitable mortgage of office premises
situated at 114-116 Trade House, 14/3
South Tukoganj, Indore.
. First Charge on pari passu basis by way
of equitable mortgage of office premises
Situated at 315-316 Trade House, 14/3
South Tukoganj, Indore.
. Guarantee
Personal Guarantee of Directors Mr.
Mukesh Sangla & Mr. Saurabh Sangla
and other Mrs. Monika Sangla and
Corporate Guarantee of Kamdeep
Marketing PrivateLimited
SVC Bank a.800.00 . Primary Security 18 Equal quarterly installments of 44.44
Limited lacs.
b.Nil (Pre.Yr. 67.27) 1st pari passu charge by way of equitable Repayment Schedule
mortgage over land & building situated | [ vear | Amountof]l  Noof
Area, Sector - 3, Pithampur, Dist. Dhar PMI
(M.P) and hypothecation of plant & | [2016-17 44.44 4
machinery & other movable assets| [2017-18 44.44 4
(acquired/to be acquired out of the| [2018-19 24.44 4
subject term loan) of the company at| [5019-20 24.44 2
Pithampur Plant (Both Present & Future) | [2020-21 24.44 1
, 23.56 3
. Collateral Security 2021-22 23.56 2
Charges ranking Pari passu with
Working Capital Lenders for following |First installment of 44.44 lacs
assets: commencing from June, 2016 and last
. First charge on pari passu basis by way |instalment duein2021-22. Rateof interest
of equitable mortgage of immovable|PLR-5.50%.p.a asattheyear end.
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39.

(a) Disclosure of term loan security, repayment schedule, period of maturity and rate of

a. Sanctioned amount
b.Outstandingasat
theyear end

Nameof Bank

Security

Repayment

property situated at block no. 1,
Khajrana, 1307/2 Gulmohar Colony,
Indore

First Charge on pari passu basis by way
of equitable mortgage of office premises
Situated at 114-116 Trade House, 14/3
South Tukoganj, Indore.

First Charge on pari passu basis by way
of equitable mortgage of office premises
situated at 315-316 Trade House, 14/3
South Tukoganj, Indore.

. Guarantee

Personal Guarantee of Directors Mr.
Mukesh Sangla & Mr. Saurabh Sangla
and other Mrs. Monika Sangla and
Corporate Guarantee of Kamdeep
Marketing PrivateLimited

SVC Bank Ltd. has deferred interest and quarterly installmentsfalling due between 01.03.2020 to 31.08.2020 as announced
by RBI vide circular No. DOR.NO BP.BC.71/21.04048/2019-20 dated 23.05.2020. Subsequently the moratorium was
extended upto August 2020. And the company has availed the moratorium. Accordingly, revised repayment scheduleisto be
consider for current maturity at theyear-end 31st March 2021.

Union Bank a. 600.00
Of India
b. 600.00
(Pre. Yr. Nil)

a.Primary Security

Term Loan from bank are secured by
hypothecation of stock of raw material,
work in progress, finished goods, other
current assetsand charge on book debts.

. Collateral Security

Charges ranking Pari passu with
Working Capital Lenders for following
assets:

First charge on pari passu basis by way
of equitable mortgage of immovable
property situated at block no. 1,
Khajrana, 1307/2 Gulmohar Colony,
Indore

First Charge on pari passu basis by way
of equitable mortgage of office premises
situated at 114-116 Trade House, 14/3
South Tukoganj, Indore.

First Charge on pari passu basis by way
of equitable mortgage of office premises
situated at 315-316 Trade House, 14/3
South Tukoganj, Indore.

First Charge on pari passu basis by way
of equitable mortgage of property
situated at survey no. 314/2,
Kelodhala,Dewasnaka, |ndore.

First Charge on pari passu basis by way
of equitable mortgage of property
situated at survey no. 314/3,
Kelodhala,Dewasnaka, Indore.

48 Equal Monthly installmentsof 12.50
lacs.

First installment of 12.50 lacs
commencing from February 2024 and
last installment due in January 2028.
Rate of interest MCL R+2.75%.

Interest In the account to be serviced as
andwhen debited.
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6 2nd pari passu charge by way of

equitable mortgage over land & building
situated at Plot N0.462-465, 476-478,
Industrial Area, Sector - 3, Pithampur,
Dist. Dhar (M.P)

. Guarantee

Personal Guarantee of Directors Mr.
Mukesh Sangla & Mr. Saurabh Sangla
and other Mrs. Monika Sangla and
Corporate Guarantee of Kamdeep
Marketing PrivateLimited

Bank Of
Baroda

a 40.00

b. Nil
(Pre.Yr. 27.37)

a.Primary Security

Term Loan from bank are secured by
hypothecation of stock of raw material,
work in progress, finished goods, other
current assetsand charge on book debts.

. Collateral Security

Charges ranking Pari passu with
Working Capital Lenders for following
assets:

First charge on pari passu basis by way
of equitable mortgage of immovable
property situated at block no. 1,
Khajrana, 1307/2 Gulmohar Colony,
Indore

First Charge on pari passu basis by way
of equitable mortgage of office premises
situated at 114-116 Trade House, 14/3
South Tukoganj, Indore.

First Chargeon pari passubasisby way
of equitable mortgage of office premises
situated at 315-316 Trade House, 14/3
South Tukoganj, Indore.

. First Charge on pari passu basis by way

of equitable mortgage of property
Situated at survey no. 314/2, Kelodhala,
Dewasnaka, Indore.

. First Charge on pari passu basis by way

of equitable mortgage of property
situated at survey no. 314/3, Kelodhala,
Dewasnaka, Indore.

.2nd pari passu charge by way of

equitable mortgage over land & building
situated at Plot N0.462-465, 476-478,
Industrial Area, Sector - 3, Pithampur,
Dist. Dhar (M.P)

. Guarantee

Personal Guarantee of Directors Mr.
Mukesh Sangla & Mr. Saurabh Sangla
and other Mrs. Monika Sangla and
Corporate Guarantee of Kamdeep
Marketing PrivateLimited

18 Equal Monthly installments of 2.22
lacs.

First installment of 2.22 lacs
commencing from November 2021 and
last installment due in April 2023. Rate
of interest IYMCLR.

Interest In the account to be serviced as
andwhen debited.
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a.Primary Security

Term Loan from bank are secured by
hypothecation of stock of raw material,
work in progress, finished goods, other
current assetsand charge on book debts.

. Collateral Security

Charges ranking Pari passu with
Working Capital Lenders for following
assets:

First charge on pari passu basis by way
of equitable mortgage of immovable
property situated at block no. 1,
Khajrana, 1307/2 Gulmohar Colony,
Indore

First Charge on pari passu basis by way
of equitable mortgage of office premises
situated at 114-116 Trade House, 14/3
South Tukoganj, Indore.

First Charge on pari passu basis by way
of equitable mortgage of office premises
situated at 315-316 Trade House, 14/3
South Tukoganj, Indore.

First Charge on pari passu basis by way
of equitable mortgage of property
Situated at survey no. 314/2, Kelodhala,
Dewasnaka, Indore.

First Charge on pari passu basis by way
of equitable mortgage of property
situated at survey no. 314/3, Kelodhala,
Dewasnaka, Indore.

2nd pari passu charge by way of
equitable mortgage over land & building
situated at Plot N0.462-465, 476-478,
Industrial Area, Sector - 3, Pithampur,
Dist. Dhar (M.P)

. Guarantee

Personal Guarantee of Directors Mr.
Mukesh Sangla & Mr. Saurabh Sangla
and other Mrs. Monika Sangla and
Corporate Guarantee of Kamdeep
Marketing PrivateLimited

18 Equal Monthly installmentsof 15.55
lacs. First installment of 15.55 lacs
commencing from December 2020 and
last installment due in May 2023. Rate
of interest 1Y MCLR + 0.50%.

Interest In the account to be serviced as
andwhen debited.

Punjab a. 280.00
National Bank

b. Nil

(Pre. Yr. 234.98)

Uco a 1734.17.00 a.
Bank

b. Nil

(Pre. Yr. 1162.99)

Primary Security

Term Loan from bank are secured by
hypothecation of stock of raw material,
work in progress, finished goods, other
current assetsand charge on book debts.

. Collateral Security

Charges ranking Pari passu with
Working Capital Lenders for following
assets:

First charge on pari passu basis by way
of equitable mortgage of immovable
property situated at block no. 1,
Khajrana, 1307/2 Gulmohar Colony,
Indore

18 Equal Monthly installmentsof 96.67
lacs. First installment of 96.67 lacs
commencing from October 2020 and
last installment duein March 2022. Rate|
of interest 1Y MCLR + 0.50%.

Interest In the account to be serviced as
and when debited.
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2 First Charge on pari passu basis by way

of equitable mortgage of office premises
situated at 114-116 Trade House, 14/3
South Tukogan;j, Indore.

First Charge on pari passu basis by way
of equitable mortgage of office premises
situated at 315-316 Trade House, 14/3
South Tukoganj, Indore.

First Charge on pari passu basis by way
of equitable mortgage of property
situated at survey no. 314/2,
Kelodhala,Dewasnaka, Indore.

First Charge on pari passu basis by way
of equitable mortgage of property
situated at survey no. 314/3,
Kelodhala,Dewasnaka, Indore.

2nd pari passu charge by way of
equitable mortgage over land & building
situated at Plot N0.462-465, 476-478,
Industrial Area, Sector - 3, Pithampur,
Dist. Dhar (M.P)

. Guarantee

Personal Guarantee of Directors Mr.
Mukesh Sangla & Mr. Saurabh Sangla
and other Mrs. Monika Sangla and
Corporate Guarantee of Kamdeep
Marketing PrivateLimited

Punjab
National Bank

a 558.00

b. 511.27
(Pre. Yr. 557.51)

. Primary Security

Term Loan from bank are secured by
hypothecation of stock of raw material,
work in progress, finished goods, other
current assetsand charge on book debts.

b. Collateral Security

Thecredit under GECL will Rank second
chargewiththeexigting credit facilitiesin
termsof cashflow including securities.

. Guarantee: Nil

48 Equal Monthly installments of 6.25
lacs. First installment of 6.25 lacs
commencing from January 2022 and
last installment due in December 2025.
Rateof interest 1Y MCLR + 1.00%.

Interest In the account to be serviced as
andwhen debited.

Punjab
National Bank

a 278.00

b. 275.95
(Pre. Yr. Nil)

C.

. Primary Security

Term Loan from bank are secured by
hypothecation of stock of raw material,
work in progress, finished goods, other
current assetsand charge on book debts.

. Collateral Security

The credit under GECL will Rank
second charge with the existing credit
facilitiesin terms of cash flow including
securities.

Guarantee: Nil

48 Equal Monthly installments of 5.79
lacs. First installment of 5.79 lacs
commencing from January 2024 and
last installment due in December 2027.
Rateof interest IYMCLR.

Interest In the account to be serviced as
andwhen debited.

Union Bank
Of India

a 1218.00

b. 1153.29
(Pre. Yr. 1218.00)

a.Primary Security

Term Loan from bank are secured by
hypothecation of stock of raw material,
work in progress, finished goods, other

48 Equal Monthly installments of 25.37
lacs. First installment of 25.37 lacs
commencing from February 2022 and
last installment due in January 2026.
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C.

current assetsand charge on book debts.

.Collateral Security

The credit under GECL will Rank
second charge with the existing credit
facilitiesin terms of cash flow including
securities.

Guarantee: Nil

Rateof interest 1Y MCLR + 0.60%.

Interest In the account to be serviced as
and when debited.

Uco Bank

a 2014.00

b. 1869.78
(Pre. Yr. 2014.00)

a.Primary Security

Term Loan from bank are secured by
hypothecation of stock of raw material,
work in progress, finished goods, other
current assetsand charge on book debts.

. Collateral Security

The credit under GECL will Rank
second charge with the existing credit
facilitiesin terms of cash flow including
securities.

. Guarantee: Nil

48 Equal Monthly installmentsof 41.96
lacs. First installment of 41.96 lacs
commencing from February 2022 and
last installment due in January 2026.
Rateof interest 1Y MCLR + 1.00%.

Interest In the account to be serviced as
andwhen debited.

Uco Bank

a. 1000.00

b. 999.99
(Pre. Yr. Nil)

. Primary Security

Term Loan from bank are secured by
hypothecation of stock of raw material,
work in progress, finished goods, other
current assetsand charge on book debts.

. Collateral Security

The credit under GECL will Rank
second charge with the existing credit
facilitiesin terms of cash flow including
securities.

. Guarantee: Nil

48 Equal Monthly installmentsof 20.83
lacs. First installment of  20.83 lacs
commencing from January 2024 and
last installment due in December 2027.
Rateof interest 1Y MCLR + 1.00%.

Interest In the account to be serviced as
and when debited.

AXis
Bank

a 300.00

b. 289.52
(Pre. Yr. 302.10)

. Primary Security : Nil

. Collateral Security: Nil

48 Equal Monthly installments of 6.25
lacs. First installment of 6.25 lacs
commencing from January 2022 and
last installment due in December 2025.
Rateof interest Repo + 5.25%.

Interest In the account to be serviced as
andwhen debited.

Siemens
Financial
Services
Private
Limited

a 51.00

b. 20.44
(Pre. Yr. 35.63)

. Primary Security
. Exclusive Charge/ Hypothecationonthe

Assets  funded by Siemens Financial
ServicesPrivateLimited.

. Guarantee

Personal Guarantee of Directors Mr.
Mukesh Sangla& Mr. Saurabh Sangla.

Repayable in 40 equal monthly
installments of 1.58 (Including Interest)
commencing from February 2020 and
last installment due in May 2023. Rate
of interest 13.25% p.a. (Pre. Year
13.25%) asat theyear end.

Siemens
Financial
Services
Private
Limited

a 150.00

b. 97.18
(Pre. Yr. 142.84)

. Primary Security

. ExclusiveCharge/ Hypothecationonthe

Assets funded by Siemens Financia
ServicesPrivateLimited.

Repayable in 36 equal monthly
installments of 4.88 (Including Interest)
commencing from February 2021 and
last installment due in January 2024.
Rate of interest 10.50% p.a. (Pre. Year
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b. Guarantee

Personal Guarantee of Directors Mr.
Mukesh Sangla& Mr. Saurabh Sangla.

10.50%) asat theyear end.

Primary Security

ExclusiveCharge/ Hypothecation onthe|
Assets (acquired/to be acquired) funded
by Siemens Financia Services Private|
Limited.

. Guarantee

Personal Guarantee of Directors Mr.
Mukesh Sangla& Mr. Saurabh Sangla.

Repayable in 33 equal monthly
installments of 21.01 (Including
Interest) commencing from July 2022
and last installment due in March 2025.
Rate of interest 10.50% p.a. (Pre. Year
Nil) asat theyear end.

Primary Security

ExclusiveCharge/ Hypothecation onthe
Assets funded by Siemens Financial
ServicesPrivateLimited.

. Guarantee

Personal Guarantee of Directors Mr.
Mukesh Sangla& Mr. Saurabh Sangla.

Repayable in 60 equal monthly
installments of 14.30 (Including
Interest) commencing from October
2020 and last installment due in
September 2025. Rateof interest LTLR
less 8.75% p.a. (Pre. Year Nil) as at the
year end.

Primary Security

. Exclusive Charge/ Hypothecationonthe

Assetsfunded by TataCapital

. Guarantee

Personal Guarantee of Directors Mr.
Mukesh Sangla& Mr. Saurabh Sangla.

Repayable in 60 equal monthly
installmentsof 4.17 (Including Interest)
commencing from Aug, 2018 and last
installment due in Aug, 2023. Rate of
interest 11.50% p.a. (Pre. Year 11.50%)
asattheyear end.

Loan is secured by charge on specific
equipment vehiclepurchased.

Repayable in 48 monthly installments of
0.19 (including interest) commencing
from May 2019 and last Installment due
in April 2023, Rate of Interest 10.52%
p.a (Pre.Yr.10.52%) asat theend of year.

Loan is secured by charge on specific
equipment vehiclepurchased.

Repayablein 60 monthly instalIments of
0.25 (including interest) commencing
from Mar 2017 and last Installment due
inMar 2022, Rate of Interest 8.50% p.a.
(Pre.Yr.8.50%) asat theend of year.

Loan is secured by charge on specific
equipment vehiclepurchased.

Repayablein 60 monthly instalIments of
0.13 (including interest) commencing
from Aug 2017 and last Installment due
inAug 2022, Rate of Interest 8.50% p.a.
(Pre.Yr.8.50%) asat theend of year.

Loan is secured by charge on specific
equipment vehiclepurchased.

Repayablein 60 monthly instalIments of
0.15 (including interest) commencing
from Sep 2017 and last Installment due
in Sep 2022, Rate of Interest 8.50% p.a.
(Pre.Yr.8.50%) asat theend of year.

Siemens a 600.00 a.
Financial 2.
Services b. 445.00
Private (Pre. Yr. Nil)
Limited
Tata Capital a 641.23 a.
Financial 1
Service Itd b. 500.37
(Pre. Yr. 613.21)
TATA Capital |a. 200.00 a.
b. 45.77
(Pre.Yr. Rs.80.37)
HDFCBank |a 7.45
b. 2.17
(Pre. Yr. Rs.4.27)
SVC Bank a 12.00
b. Nil
(Pre.Yr.Rs.2.84 )
SVC Bank a 6.34
b. 0.51
(Pre. Yr. Rs. 2.10)
SVC Bank a 7.50
b. 0.66
(Pre. Yr. Rs. 2.40)
HDFCBank |a 6.59
b. 1.05
(Pre. Yr.Rs. 2.51)

Loan is secured by charge on specific
equipment vehiclepurchased.

Repayablein 60 monthly instalIments of
0.13 (including interest) commencing
from Dec 2017 and last Installment due
inNov 2022, Rate of Interest 8.50% p.a.
(Pre.Yr.8.50%) asat theend of year.
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HDFC Bank |a. 90.00 Loan is secured by charge on specific|Repayablein 60 monthly installmentsof
equipment vehiclepurchased. Rs1.80 Lacs (including interest)
b. 74.64 commencing from May 2021 and last
(Pre. Yr. Rs. Nil ) Installment due in April 2026, Rate of
Interest 7.50% p.a. (Pre.Yr.7.50%) asat
theend of year.
HDFCBank |a 4.50 Loan is secured by charge on specific|Repayablein 36 monthly installmentsof
equipment vehiclepurchased. Rs 0.14 Lacs (including interest)
b. 3.13 commencing from May 2021 and last
(Pre. Yr. Rs. Nil ) Installment due in April 2024, Rate of
Interest 8.76% p.a. (Pre.Yr. Nil) asat the
end of year.
HDFCBank |a 4.50 Loan is secured by charge on specific|Repayablein 36 monthly installmentsof
equipment vehiclepurchased. Rs 0.14 Lacs (including interest)
b. 3.13 commencing from May 2021 and last
(Pre. Yr. Rs. Nil ) Installment due in April 2024, Rate of
Interest 8.76% p.a. (Pre.Yr.Nil) asat the
end of year.
SV C bank a 21.00 Loan is secured by charge on specific|Repayablein 60 monthly installmentsof
equipment vehiclepurchased. 0.42 (including interest) commencing
b. 6.14 from Jun 2018 and last Installment due
(Pre. Yr. Rs. 10.67) in Jun 2023, Rate of Interest 8.35% p.a.
(Pre.Yr. 8.35%) asat theend of year.
SVC bank a. 5.00 Loan is secured by charge on specific|Repayablein 60 monthly installmentsof
equipment vehiclepurchased. 0.10 (including interest) commencing
b. 1.56 from July 2018 and last Installment due
(Pre. Yr.Rs. 2.63) inJuly 2023, Rate of Interest 8.35% p.a.
(Pre.Yr.8.35%) asat theend of year.
HDFCBank |a. 6.00 Loan is secured by charge on specific|Repayablein 36 monthly installmentsof
equipment vehiclepurchased. 0.21 (including interest) commencing
b. 3.49 from December 2020 and last
(Pre. Yr.Rs. 5.45) Installment duein November 2023, Rate
of Interest 14.00%p.a. (Pre. Yr.nil ) asat
theend of year.
SV C bank a 23.86 Loan is secured by charge on specific|Repayablein 60 monthly installmentsof
equipment vehiclepurchased. 0.50 (including interest) commencing
b. 17.05 from August 2020 and last Installment
(Pre. Yr.Rs. 21.27) due in July 2025, Rate of Interest PLR
less9.05%p.a. (Pre. Yr. NIl) asat theend
of year.
Secured Long term borrowing aggregating to Rs.7597.02 Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 7654.77 Lacs) including interest accrued
Rs. Nil/- (Previous year Rs. Nil) are further secured by personal guarantee of directors Mr. Mukesh Sangla, Mr. Saurabh
Sanglaand others. Corporateguarantee of Kamdeep Marketing Private Limited for termloansof SVCBank Limited.
(b)Interoperate Deposits are repayable by the end of 2025. The rate of interest is 9% PA( Previous Year 9 % PA).The
interoperate depositisbrought inasstipul ated by the Banksunder their sanction of working capital facilities.
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L eases(Wherecompany isL essee)
The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, which is effectivefrom April 1, 2019 and applied the standard to its|eases, using
M odified RetrospectiveApproach.

Thedetailsof Maturity of leaseliabilitiesasat March 31, 2022 & March 31, 2021 areasunder :

Particulars 31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021
Less than one year 0.63 0.50
Oneto Five Year 3.03 2.70
More than Five Year 33.15 34.18
Total 36.81 37.38

Movement of Lease Liabilitiesduring theyear ended March 31,2022 & March 31, 2021 are asunder :

Particulars 31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021
Balance as at the beginning of the year 37.38 37.88
Additions - -
Repayment 0.57 0.50
Balance asat the end of the year 36.81 37.38

41. Related Party Disclosure

A.

Relationships

Key Management Personnel

Shri Mukesh Sangla - Managing Director
Shri Saurabh Sangla - Director

Mr. J.C. Paiwal - Chief Financial Officer
Mrs. Preeti Singh - Company Secretary

Relative of Key Manageria Personnel with whom transaction have taken place during the year
Smt. Monika Sangla - Wife of Managing Director

Other parties/ Companies where key managerial persons or their relatives have significant influence and where
transaction taken place during the year.

Adroit Industries (India) Limited
Adroit Driveshafts Private Limited

Note: Related party relationship is as identified by the Company on the basis of information available
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NATURE OF TRANSACTIONS 2021-22 2020-21
Sales

Adroit Industries (India) Ltd 0.20 -
Adroit Driveshafts Private Limited 41.42 -
Purchase

Adroit Industries (India) Ltd 2.45 114.81

Machinery Purchase

Adroit Industries (India) Ltd 0.66 7.32
Interest Paid

Mukesh Sangla 14.09 7.86
Saurabh Sangla - 0.55

Unsecured L oan taken
Mukesh Sangla 280.00 264.00

Saurabh Sangla - 13.00

Remuneration to Director

Mukesh Sangla 120.00 54.00

Remuneration to CFO
J.C. Pdiwal 14.15 12.37

Remunerationto CS

Preeti Singh 9.25 8.33
Rent Paid

Saurabh Sangla 7.38 7.38
Monika Sangla 7.20 7.20
Outstanding

Rent Deposit - Receivable

Saurabh Sangla 25.00 25.00
Monika Sangla 60.00 60.00

Trade & other Receivable
Adroit Driveshafts Private Limited 17.84 0.02

Trade & other payable

Saurabh Sangla 187 -
Monika Sangla 341 0.63
Mukesh Sangla 78.05 175.74
Adroit Industries (India) Ltd 3.98 -
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42. Disclosureasper IND AS- 19" Employee Benefits':
a. Gratuity

Asper Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 19
Period Covered 2021-22 2020-21
Change in defined benefit obligation 31-03-2022 | 31-03-2021
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of period 77.50 88.50
Service cost
a. Current service cost 21.78 18.27
b. Past service cost - -
c. (Gain) / loss on settlements - -
Interest expenses 4,98 5.22
Cash flows
a. Benefit payments from employer (11.57) (23.82)
Remeasurements
a. Effect of changes in demographic assumptions - -
b. Effect of changesin financial assumptions (2.13) (0.74)
c. Effect of experience adjustments (14.14) (9.94)
Transfer In/Out - -
Defined benefit obligation at end of period 76.43 77.50
Changein fair value of plan assets 31-03-2022 | 31-03-2021
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period - -
a. Total employer contributions
(ii) Employer direct benefit payments 11.57 23.82
Benefit payments from employer (11.57) (23.82)
a. Return on plan assets (excluding interest income) - -
Transfer In/Out - -
Fair value of plan assetsat end of period - -
Amountsrecognized in the Balance Sheet 31-03-2022 | 31-03-2021

1. | Defined benefit obligation 76.43 77.50

2. | Fair value of plan assets - -

3. [ Funded status 76.43 77.50

4. | Effect of asset ceiling - -

5. | Net defined benefit liability (asset) 76.43 77.50
Remeasurements (recognized in OCI) 31-03-2022| 31-03-2021
a. Effect of changes in demographic assumptions - -
b. Effect of changes in financial assumptions (2.13) (0.74)
c. Effect of experience adjustments (14.14) (9.94)
d. (Return) on plan assets (excluding interest income) - -
e. Changesin asset ceiling (excluding interest income) - -
f. Total remeasurements included in OCI (16.27) (10.68)
Total defined benefit cost recognized in P& L and OCI 10.50 12.81
Re-measurement Component of expenses/(income) recognized in OCI 31-03-2022| 31-03-2021
a Actuarial Loss/(Gain) on DBO (16.27) (10.68)
b. Returns above Interest Income - -
c. Changein Asset ceiling - -
Total Re-measurements (OCl) (16.27) (10.68)
Employer Expense recognized in Profit & Loss 31-03-2022| 31-03-2021
a. Current Service Cost 21.78 18.27
b. Interest Cost on net DBO 4.98 5.22
c. Past Service Cost - -
d. Total P&L Expenses 26.77 23.49
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Reconciliation of OCI (Re-measurement) 31-03-2022 | 31-03-2021
1. Recognised in OCI at the beginning of period (66.53) (55.85)
2. Recognised in OCI during the period (16.27) (10.68)
3. Recognised in OCI at the end of the period (82.80) (66.53)
Sensitivity analysis - DBO end of Period 31-03-2022 | 31-03-2021
1. Discount rate +100 basis points 69.45 70.90
2. Discount rate -100 basis points 84.71 85.35
3. Salary Increase Rate +1% 84.67 85.26
4. Salary Increase Rate -1% 69.40 70.89
5. Attrition Rate +1% 80.67 81.27
6. Attrition Rate -1% 71.58 73.19
Significant actuarial assumptions 31-03-2022 | 31-03-2021
1 Discount rate Current Year 7.33% 6.95%
2. Discount rate Previous Year 6.95% 6.82%
3. Sdary increase rate 2.0% 2.0%
4. Attrition Rate 2.0% 2.0%
5. Retirement Age 60 60
6. Pre-retirement mortality Indian Indian
Assured Assured
Lives Lives
Mortality Mortality
(2012-14) (2012-14)
Ultimate Ultimate
Expected cash flows for following year 31-03-2022 | 31-03-2021
1. Expected employer contributions/ Addl. Provision Next Year 21.78 18.27
2. Expected total benefit payments
Year 1 2.63 3.65
Year 2 2.57 3.98
Year 3 3.59 3.29
Year 4 4.39 3.28
Year 5 3.78 3.67
Next 5 years 25.48 24.30
b. L eaveEncashment
Liability in respect of leave encashment is determined using actuarial valuation carried out as at Balance sheet
date.Acturial gain & lossesarerecognized in full in statement of Profit & lossfor the year in which they occur. Liability
onaccount of leaveencashment asat theyearend RS. 72.53lacs(PY Rs.67.22)
43.  Payment to Auditors
2021-22 2020-21
For Audit Fees 4.00 4.00
For Tax Audit Fees 1.00 1.00
For Other Services 0.00 0.00
Reimbursement of Expenses 0.25 0.00
44,  Earnings Per Share (EPS)
2021-22 2020-21
@ Net Profit after tax 824.46 1394.76
Less : Preference Dividend including tax thereon 37.00 37.00
Net Profit available for equity shareholders 787.46 1357.76
(b)  |Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares (in Nos.) 29,43,70,00 | 29,43,70,00
() Nominal Value of Per Equity Share (In Rs.) 10 10
(d) Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share (In Rs.) 2.68 461
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45. Segment Reporting

(a) Operating Segment Information
Manufacturing | Windmill | Trading|Unallocable Total
Segment revenue 43,264.01 104.01 |44,358.33 140.50 87,866.85
39,147.45 80.48 |43,471.37 181.93 82,881.23
Segment results(PBIT) 4,981.67 13.20 597.91 (142.21) 5,450.57
5,002.54 -7.62 692.76 (58.89) 5,628.79
Less: Interest - - - - (4,280.41)
(4,623.81)
Profit before exceptional item 1,170.16
1,004.98
Less:- Exceptiona item - - - - -
164.02
Profit/(loss) before tax - - - - 1,170.16
1,169.00
Less: Current Tax (424.00)
(268.00)
Deferred Tax 78.28
427.79
Income Tax for Earlier Years -
65.97
Profit after tax 824.45
1,394.76
Prior period adjusments -
Net Profit 824.45
1,394.76
Segment assets 58,114.56 470.17 | 9,803.96 3,416.27 71,804.96
58,349.06 414.57 | 10,348.26 3,770.34 72,882.23
Segment liabilities 17,621.73 - | 5857.96| 30,715.80 54,195.49
16,448.56 - | 6,889.01| 30,684.37 54,021.94
Segment depreciation 781.62 44.79 417 30.76 861.34
723.80 44.79 4.35 20.49 793.43
(b) Geographical Information
The Company's operating facilities are located in India.
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Domestic Revenue 87,726.35 82,692.49
Export Revenue - 6.81
() Revenuefrom Major Products
Thefollowing is an analysis of the Company's segment revenue from continuing operations from its major products :
S.NO |PARTICULARS F.Y.21-22 F.Y.20-21
1 |Trading
Polymers and Plastic Granuals 44,358.33 43,471.37
2 |Manufacturing
i) | Micro Irrigation System/HDPE & PV C Pipes and Fittings/Other Products 43,264.01 39,147.45
3 |Wind Energy 104.01 80.48
(d) Revenuefrom major customers
Customers contributed 10% or more to the Company's revenue for the year ended March 31, 2022.
S.NO [PARTICULARS F.Y.21-22 F.Y.20-21
1 [Manufacturing segment - -
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Note 46 (a) 'Financial risk management objectives and policies
Risk management framework

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Company’s primary risk management focus is to minimize potential adverse effects of risks on its financial performance. The
Company’s risk management assessment policies and processes are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limitsand controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the same. Risk assessment
and management of these policies and processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company’s activities. The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing these policies and
processes.

a) Market risk

Market risk istherisk that changesin market prices, such asforeign exchangerates(currency risk) andinterest rates(interest rate
risk), will affect the companies income or value of it’s holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management isto manage and control market risk exposureswithinacceptable parameters, while optimising thereturn.

i) Interest raterisk

Interest rate risk isthe risk the the fair value or future cash flow of afinancial instrument will fluctuate because of changesin
market interest rate. Fair value interest rate risk istherisk of changesin fair value of fixed interest bearing financial instrument
because of fluctuationsin theinterest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk isthe risk that the future cash flows of floating interest
bearing financial instrument will fluctuate because of fluctuationsin theinterest rates.

The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the borrowing from banks and others.
Currently company isnot using any mitigating factor to cover theinterest raterisk.

(Amount in Lacs)

Particulars Asat 31st March 2022 Asat 31st March 2021
Interest rate risk exposure

Variable Rate

Borrowings from banks 26,718.03 26,330.21
Others 1,108.77 872.06
Fixed Rate

Intercorporate loan 785.00 490.00
Others 564.84 367.62
Total borrowings 29,176.64 28,059.89

Interest ratesensitivity

The Company has taken Intercorporate loan at fixed rate of interest and are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not
subject to interest rate risk asdefined in Ind AS - 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flow will fluctuate
because of changein marketinterest rate.

Thesensitivity analysisbel ow have been determined based on exposuretointerest rates (variable) for borrowing at theend of the
reporting period and the stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the financial year and held constant throughout the
reporting period in case of term loansthat have floating rates. If theinterest rates had been 1% higher or lower and all the other
variableswereheld constant, theeffect on I nterest expensefor therespectivefinancial yearsand consequent effect on companies
profitinthat financial year would have been asbelow:

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended

31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Impact on Profit or Loss for the year decrease (278.27) (272.02)
Impact on Profit or Loss for the year Increase 278.27 272.02

ii) Foreigncurrencyrisk

The Company entersintotransactionsin currency other thanitsfunctional currency andistherefore exposed toforeign currency
risk. The Company analyses currency risk asto which balances outstanding in currency other than thefunctional currency of that
Company. The company entersinto derivativefinancia instrument such foreign currency forward contract and option contracts
to mitigate therisk of changesin exchangerateon foreign currency exposure.
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Following table analysis foreign currency assets and liabilities on balance sheet date.

figuresin INR Lacs

Particulars

Asat 31st March 2022

Asat 31st March 2021

Receivable in Foreign currency

(229.935

(43.46;

Payablein Foreign currency
Term Loan - -
Net Receivable/(Payable) (229.93) (43.46)

Particulars

Asat 31st March 2022

Asat 31st March 2021

Outstading forward contracts -

Sensitivity toforeign currency risk

Thefollowing tabledemonstratesthe sensitivity inthe USD currenciesif the currency rateisincreased/(decreased) by 1%
with all other variables held constant. The below impact on the Company’s profit before tax is based on changes in the fair
valueof unhedged foreign currency monetary assetsand liabilitiesat bal ance sheet date:

(Amount in INR Lacs)

Particular Sensitivity analysis
For the Year ended 31st March 2022 For the Year Ended 31st March 2021
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Sensitivity toforeign currency risk 2.30 (2.30) 0.43 (0.43)

(b) Credit risk

"Credit risk is the risk that arises from the possibility that the counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial
instrument or customer contract, leading to afinancial loss.Financial assets that are subject to such risk, principally consist of
trade receivables, Investments and loans and advances. None of the financial insturments of the company results in material
concentration of credit risk.Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, however, the
Company continuesto attempt to recover the receivabl es. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. Theimpairment for financia assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected lossrates. The
Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each balance sheet date.”

"Tradeand other receivables

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the Company to determine expected
credit losses. Historical trends of impairment of trade receivables do not reflect any significant credit losses. Impaired amounts
are based on lifetime expected |osses based on the best estimate of the management. Further, management believes that the
unimpaired amountsthat are past due by more than 180 days are still collectible in full, based on historical payment behaviour
and extensive analysis of customer credit risk. The impairment loss related to several customers that have defaulted on their
payments to the Company and are not expected to be able to pay their outstanding balances, mainly due to economic
circumstances. The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and other receivables during the year was as
follows."

Theageing analysisof thetrade receivableshasbeen considered asunder :

Particular Asat 31st March 2022 | Asat 31st March 2021
0 days To 90 days 17804.30 19505.59
91 Days To 180 days 10103.86 10396.03
More then 180 days 3653.62 3101.63
Total 31,561.78 33,003.25
The following table summarizes the change in the loss allowances measured using expected credit 10ss

Particulars Amount
Baance asat 1st April, 2020 253.82
Provided during the year 24.81
Reversed during the year -
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 278.63
Provided during the year 40.61
Reversed during the year -
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 319.24
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Investments

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by generally investing in counter -parties that have good credit rating . The
Company does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter-parties apart from those aready given in
financials, and doesnot have any significant concentration of exposuresto specificindustry sectorsor specific country risks.”

Cash & Cash Equivalents

The Company holdscash & cash equivalent with credit worthy banksof RS. 41.08 lacsasat 31st March 2022 & Rs775.25. asat
31st March 2021 The credit worthiness of such banksis evaluate by management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be
good.

(c)Liquidityrisk

"Liquidity risk istherisk that the Company will not be able to meet itsfinancial obligations asthey become due.The Company
has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. The company's treasury department is
responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, process and policies related to such risk are
overseen by senior management. Management moniters the company's net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the
basisof expected cash flows."

Expected contractual maturity for derivativeand non derivativeFinancial Liabilities:

Particulars Lessthan 1year (1to5years | >5years Total

Asat 31st March, 2022
Non Derivative Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 22,872.94| 5,939.07 1,896.95 | 30,708.96
Trade payables 19,016.99 - - | 19,016.99
Other financial liabilities 344.27 3.39 32.79 380.45
Total 42,234.20| 5,942.46 1,929.74 | 50,106.40

Derivative Financial Liabilities
Forward Contract outstanding - - - -
Total - - - -
Asat 31st March, 2021

Non Derivative Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 22,081.85| 5,978.04 1,406.08 | 29,465.96
Trade payables 21,852.77 - - | 21,852.77
Other financial liabilities 365.84 3.03 33.85 402.72
Total 44,300.46| 5,981.07 1,439.93 | 51,721.45

Derivative Financial Liabilities
Forward Contract outstanding - - - -
Total - - - -

47. Capital Management

"For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all
other equity reserves attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. The Company’s objective when managing
capital isto safeguarditsability to continueasagoing concern sothat it can continueto providereturnsto shareholdersand
other stake holders. The Company managesits capital structure and makes adjustmentsin light of changesin the financial
condition and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders (buy back its shares) or issue new shares.No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31st March, 2021
and 31st March, 2020."

a. Gearing Ratio:

Particulars Asat 31st March 2022 | Asat 31st March 2021
Debt 30708.96 29465.96
Cash and cash equivalent 65.95 798.77
Adjusted net Debt 30643.01 28667.19
Tota Equity 19514.44 18860.29
Net Debt to equity ratio 157 1.52
b. Dividends
Amount of dividends approved during the year by shareholder
Particular Asat March 31,2022 Asat March 31, 2021
No of Shares|INR In Lacs | No of Shares|INR In Lacs
Equity Shares 29,437,000 147.19 29,437,000 147.19
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Note48. Financial | nstrumentsby Category and fair valueheir ar chy

""Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments, other
than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values.The fair values of the financial assets and
financial liabilitiesincluded in thelevel 2 and level 3 categories have been determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing model sbased on adiscounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputsbeing thediscount ratethat reflectsthe
credit risk of counterparties.”

As 31st March 2022 Fair Value M easur ement Fair Value hierarchy

|Particulars FVTPL FVOCI | Amortised Level-1 | Level-2 | Level-3
Cost

Financial assets

Investments 17.74 - 17.74 -

Cash and cash equivalents 65.95

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,356.97

Trade Receivables 31,242.53

Other financial assets 2,574.23

Total - 17.74 35,239.68 17.74 - -

Financial liabilities

Borrowings 30,708.96

Trade Payables 19,016.99

Other financial liability - 380.45 -

Total - - 50,106.40 - - -

As3lst March 2021 Fair ValueM easurement Fair Valuehierarchy

|Particulars FVTPL FVOCI | Amortised Level-1 | Level-2 | Level-3
Cost

Financial assets

Investments 14.08 - 14.02 0.06

Cash and cash equivalents 798.77

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,267.15

Trade Receivables 32,724.61

Other financial assets 3,923.11

Total - 14.08 38,713.64 14.02 - 0.06

Financial liabilities

Borrowings 29,465.96

Trade Payables 21,852.77

Other financial liability - 402.72 -

Total - - 51,721.45 - - -

"To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its
financial instrumentsintothreelevel sprescribed under theInd AS. Anexplanationfor eachlevel isgiven below.

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market pricesin activemarketsfor identical assetsor liabilities.

Level 2: Vauation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

L evel 3: Valuationtechniquesfor whichthelowestlevel input that issignificant tothefair valuemeasurement isunobservable.”

49.  Pursuant todisclosurepertainingto Section 186 (4) of theCompaniesAct, 2013
a. Loangivenand outstanding asat theyear end asfollows:-

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21

Manjeet Cotton PrivateLimited 218.06 300.36

The above loan given for the purpose of working capital requirements. The company has provided the above inter
corporateloan at aninterest rate of 12% PA.

b. Investment made and outstanding asat theyearend are classified under respectiveheads.
C. Guaranties/Securitiesgiven & o/sasat theend of theyear arenil (PY. Nil).
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50. Informationrelatingtoderivativeinstruments:-

a The Company hasno foreign currency/forward contractsto hedgeitsrisks associated with foreign currency fluctuations
relating to certain firm commitments and forecasted transactions. The company does not use forward contracts for
specul ative purposes.

b. Foreign exchange currency exposure not covered by derivative instrument or otherwise outstanding as at 31st March
2022 aregivenbelow :-

Amount Payablein foreign Currency Foreign Currency INR Equivalent

currency on account of the following: (In Lacs) (In Lacs)

Asat 31st Asat 31st Asat 31st Asat 31st
March, 2022 March, 2021 | March, 2022 | March, 2021
Import of goods and services uUsD 3.04 Nil 224.94 Nil
EURO Nil 0.51 Nil 43.46
Term Loan Usb Nil Nil Nil Nil
51.  Interest Income Rs. 88.32 Lacs (Pre. Year Rs.98.26 Lacs) included in Interest Received (Note 29 Other Income)

representsinterest earned on FDRspledged with banksfor variouscredit facilitiesavail ed by the company.company.

52. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENDITURE
Detailsof CSR Expenditureareasfollows
Particular 2021-22 2020-21
Amount required tobespent asper section 135 of theact 32.80 43.25
Amount spent duringtheyear
i)  Construction/Acquisition of any assets - -
ii) OnPurposeother thanabove 33.00 43.30
Detailsrelated to Spent/ Unspent obligation
i) Contributionto Publictrust - -
ii) Contributionto Charitabletrust 33.00 43.30
iii) Unspentamountinrelationto:
- Ongoing Project - -
- Other than ongoing project - -
53. Ratio
Ratio
Sr No. Particular Numrator Denominator 3lst 3lst | Change | Remark For Movement
March | March
2022 2021
a |[Current Ratio Current Assets | Current Liability | 1.42 1.37 3.63
b |Debt equity ratio Total Debt Tota Equity 157 144 9.37
c |Debt service Earnings Total amount of 0.96 0.98 -2.16
coverageratio available for interest and
debt service principal
payable or paid
during the
period
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d |Return on equity ratio| Net Profits after | Total Equity 0.04 0.07 -42.87 |Beacausein previousyear
taxes Pref.Div profit include profit on
exceptional item &
reversal of deffered tax
liability dueto changesin
tax rate.
e |Inventory turnover |Sales Average 3.70 4.00 -7.42
ratio Inventory
f |Tradereceivable Sales Average trade 2.74 2.63 4.38
turnover ratio receivable
g |Tradepayable Purchase Average trade 371 3.38 9.82
turnover ratio payables
h [Net capital turnover |[Net Sales Working capital 4.79 4.86 -1.40
ratio
i [Net Profit Ratio Net Profit after |Revenue 0.01 0.02 -44.28 | Beacausein previousyear
tax profit include profit on
exceptional item &
reversal of deffered tax
liability dueto changesin
tax rate.
j  |Return on capital Earning before | Capital 0.11 0.12 -11.04
employed interest and employed
taxes
k  [Returnoninvestment | Net Profit after | Capital 0.02 0.03 -45.70 |Beacausein previousyear
Tax employed profit include profit on
exceptional item &
reversal of deffered tax
liability dueto changesin
tax rate.

54,  The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (M SMEDAct'). Thedisclosurespursuant tothesaid M SMED Act areasfollows

Particular

2021-22 2020-21

year end

Principal amount dueto suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at

37.73 -

Interest dueto suppliersregistered under theM SMED Act and remai ning unpaid asat year end

duringtheyear

Principal amounts paid to suppliersregistered under the M SMED Act, beyond the appointed day

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the
MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day duringtheyear

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act,
beyond the appointed day duringtheyear

made

Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for payments already

Further interest remai ning due and payablefor earlier years

The above information regarding Micro and Small enterprises has been determined to the extent
such partieshave been identified onthe basi sof information availablewith the Company
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Additional Regulatory Information

The company has not granted Loans or Advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the
related parties (as defined under CompaniesAct, 2013,) either severaly or jointly with any other person, that are: (a)
repayableon demand or (b) without specifying any termsor period of repayment.

The company neither have any Benami property nor any proceedings have been initiated or pending against the
company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
therulesmadethereunder.

The company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial I nstitution or other lender.

The company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act,
2013 or section 560 of CompaniesAct, 1956.

The company has no subsidiary company hence compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87)
of section 2 of theAct read with Companies(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 isnot applicable.

(A) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries)
with theunderstanding (whether recorded inwriting or otherwise) that the I ntermediary shall

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of thecompany (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(if) provideany guarantee, security or theliketo or on behalf of theUltimate Beneficiaries,

(B) Thecompany hasnot received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding
Party) withtheunderstanding (whether recorded inwriting or otherwise) that the company shall

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(i) provideany guarantee, security or thelikeon behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company does not have any transaction which isnot recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or
survey or any other relevant provisionsof thelncomeTax Act, 1961).

The Company hasnot traded or investedin Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during thefinancial year.

The outbreak of corona virus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in India is causing significant disturbance and
slowdown of economic activity. The Group's operations and revenue were impacted due to COVID-19. During the Year
ended March 31, 2022, thereisno significant impact on the operationsof the Group

The Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets and company has filed statement of
current assetswith bankson quarterly basi swhich arein agreement with thebooks of accountsexcept disclosed asunder :-
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(Amount In Lakhs)

Quarter | Particular Amount as | Amount asreported in | Difference |Reason
Ended per the books | the quaterly Statemnt
of accounts Submitted to Bank
30-Jun-21 | Inventories 33749.31 26068.09 7681.22 | The Company has submitted the
and Debtors stock, debtors and creditors to the
less extent it covers the drawing power
Creditors availed by the Company. Hence stock
and debtors are excessin books by Rs.
2910.58 lacs and Rs. 8077.34 lacs and
creditors short by Rs. 3306.70 lacs.
30-Sep-21 | Inventories 35345.16 25716.37 9628.80 | The Company has submitted the
and Debtors stock, debtors and creditors to the
less extent it covers the drawing power
Creditors availed by the Company. Hence stock
and debtors are excessin books by Rs.
3523.31 lacs and Rs. 9835.21lacs and
creditors short by Rs. 3729.72 |acs.
31-Dec-21|Inventories 37793.79 28576.89 9216.90 | The Company has submitted the
and Debtors stock, debtors and creditors to the
less extent it covers the drawing power
Creditors availed by the Company. Hence stock
and debtors are excess in books by Rs.
3857.78 lacsand Rs. 7125.40 lacs and
creditors short by Rs. 1766.28 |acs.
31-Mar-22| Inventories 37415.15 31040.91 6374.24 | The Company has submitted the
and Debtors stock, debtors and creditors to the
less extent it covers the drawing power
Creditors availed by the Company. Hence stock
and debtors are excessin books by Rs.
1091.24 lacs and Rs. 5634.09 lacs and
creditors short by Rs. 351.09 lacs.

58. Dividend Paid during theyear ended march 31, 2022 includean amount of Rs. 0.50 per equity sharetowardsfinal dividend
for theyear ended march 31, 2021 dividend paid by the company are based on profit availablefor distribution.

59. During the previous year exceptional item of Rs.164.02 lacs represents gain on sale of property plant and equipment at
Pithampur unit.

60. Previousyear'sfiguresare regrouped/ rearranged wherever considered necessary to make them comparable with current
year'sfigures.

ASPER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
For SMAK & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 020120C
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Signet Industries Limited
General Information

Signet IndustriesLimited (the company) isapublic limited company (CIN L51900MH1985PL C035202) incorporated on
January 29, 1985 under the Companies Act 1956, having its Registered Office in Mumbai. Company is engaged in
Merchant Trading of All Kind of Polymers & Other Products and Manufacturing of Micro Irrigation System (DRIP),
Sprinkler Pipe/ PVC Pipe & Agrofittings and itsAllied Products, all type of House Hold & Plastic Moulded Furniture.
The Company'ssharesarelisted on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and National Stock Exchange (NSE). The Company's
sharesaretraded on both Bombay Stock Exchangeand National Stock Exchangeof IndiaLimited.

Significant accounting policies
Statement of compliance

The separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting standards (“Ind AS")
notified, under section 133 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2016 and the relevant provisions of the
Act.

Basisof Preparation

Thefinancial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and under the historical cost convention except for certain
financial instrumentswhich are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policiesmentioned bel ow.

All assets and liahilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and
other criteriaset out in Schedule |11 to the CompaniesAct, 2013. The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12
monthsfor the purpose of current and non-current classification of assetsand liabilities.

Deferredtax assetsand liabilitiesareclassified asnon-current assetsand liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equival ents. Thecompany hasidentified twelvemonthsasitsoperating cycle.

Functional and presentation currency

These separate financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the Company's functiona currency. All
amountshavebeen rounded to the nearest Rupeesin lacsunl ess otherwiseindicated.

Useof Estimates, Judgments and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptionsthat affect the appli cation of accounting policiesand thereported amount of assets, liabilities, incomeand
expenses. Actua results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisionsto accounting estimatesarerecognized inthe period in which the estimatesarerevised and in any
future periodsaffected.

All theassets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the company's normal operating cycle of
twelvemonthsand other criteriaset out in Schedulel I tothe CompaniesAct, 2013.

Significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgementsin applying accounting policiesthat have significant
effect on amount recognizedinthefinancial statementsare:

i. Allowancefor bad and doubtful tradereceivable.

ii.  Recognition and measurement of provisionand contingencies.

iii.  Depreciation/Amortisation and useful livesof Property, plant and equipment / IntangibleA ssets.
iv.  Recognitionof deferredtax asset andliability

V.  IncomeTaxes.

vi. Measurement of defined benefit obligation.

vii.  Impairment of Non-financial assetsand financial assets.
viii. Fairvaueof financial instruments

Revenue

Recognition

The company recognised revenuei.e. account for a contract with a customer only when all of the following criteriaare
met:
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Vi.

(8 the parties to the contract have approved the contract (in writing, orally or in accordance with other customary
business practices) and are committed to performtheir respectiveobligations;

(b) theentity canidentify each party'srightsregardingthegoodsor servicesto betransferred;
(o) theentity canidentify the payment termsfor thegoodsor servicesto betransferred;

(d) thecontract hascommercial substance(l.e. therisk, timing or amount of the entity'sfuture cash flowsis expected to
changeasaresult of the contract); and

(e) itisprobablethat the entity will collect the consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for the goods or
servicesthat will betransferred to the customer. In eval uating whether collectability of an amount of considerationis
probable, an entity shall consider only the customer'sability and intention to pay that amount of considerationwhen
it isdue. The amount of consideration to which the entity will be entitled may be less than the price stated in the
contract if theconsiderationisvariablebecause the entity may offer the customer aprice concession.

M easur ement

When (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, company recognize as revenue the amount of the transaction price
(whichexcludesestimates of variableconsideration that are constrained) that isall ocated to that performanceobligation.

Thetransaction priceisthe amount that the entity expectsto be entitled to in exchangefor transferring promised goods or
services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, some taxeson sales). The
consideration promised may includefixed amounts, variableamounts, or both.

Saleof goods

Revenueisrecognised upontransfer of control of promised goodsto customersin an amount that reflectsthe consideration
which the Company expectsto receive in exchange for those goods. Revenue from the sale of goodsis recognised at the
point in time when control is transferred to the customer which is usualy on dispatch / delivery of goods, based on
contractswith the customers. Revenueis measured based on the transaction price, whichisthe consideration, adjusted for
volume discounts, price concessions, incentives, and returns, if any, as specified in the contracts with the customers.
Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the government. Further, the revenue amount is adjusted
for thetimevalue of money if that contract containsasignificant financing component.

Revenue from sale of power isrecognised when delivered and measured based on contractual arrangements after giving
allowancesfor wheelingand transmission|oss.

Interest and Dividend

Interest incomeisrecognized on accrual basisusing the effectiveinterest method. Dividend incomeisrecognised in profit
or lossonthedate onwhich the company'sright to receive payment isestablished.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, except scrap is valued at net realisable value. Cost of
inventory is arrived at by using FIFO Method. Cost of inventory generaly comprises of cost of purchase, cost of
conversionand other cost incurredin bringing theinventory to their present location and condition.

Property, Plant and Equipment Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses (if any). Freeholdlandismeasured at costs.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, acquisition or construction cost including
borrowing costs, any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management and the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and
removing theitemandrestoringthesiteonwhichitislocated.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as
separateitems (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Buildings constructed on leasehold land are depreciated based on the useful life specified in schedulell to the Companies
Act, 2013, where the lease period of land is beyond the life of the building (or rights to continue exist). In other cases,
buildings constructed on leasehold lands are amortized over the primary lease period of the lands. Gains and losses on
disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts. These are included in the statement of Profit and
Loss.
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Vi.

Vii.

viii.

Subsequent expenditure

Subseguent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditurewill flow to the company and costs of item can bemeasured reliably.

Capital work in progress
Assets under erection/installation are shown as "Capital work in progress', Expenditure during construction period are
shownas" pre-operativeexpenses' to be capitalized on erection/instal | ationsof the assets.

Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line method as per the useful life of theassetsinthe
manner as specified in Schedule |1 to the CompaniesAct, 2013. The estimated useful life of assets and estimated residual
valueistaken asprescribed under Schedulell tothe CompaniesAct, 2013.
Depreciation on additions during the year is provided on pro rata basis with reference to date of addition/installation.
Depreciation on assetsdisposed /discarded i scharged up to the date on which such asset issol d.

Theestimated useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each balance sheet date, any
changestherein are considered aschangesin estimate and accordingly accounted for prospectively.

IntangibleAssets

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will
flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangibl e asset are measured asthe difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
arerecognisedinthestatement of profit andlosswhen the asset isderecogni zed.

Recognition and measur ement
Intangible assets are held at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses. |ntangible assets developed or

acquired with finite useful life are amortized on straight line basis over the useful life of asset. Computer softwares have
finiteuseful livesand aremeasured at cost | essaccumul ated amorti zation and any accumul ated impai rment | osses.

Subsequent expenditure

Subseguent expenditureiscapitalized only whenitis probabl ethat future economic benefits attributabl eto asset will flow
tothe company costs of which can be measured reliably or when the devel opment stageisachieved. All other expenditure,
including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, when incurred is recognised in statement of profit or
loss.

Amortisation

Amortisation is cal culated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful livesand isgenerally recognised in statement of profit or loss. Computer software
areamortised over their estimated useful lifeof 3years.

Amortisation methods, useful livesand residual valuesarereviewed at each reporting dateand adjusted, if required.
Employeebenefits
Short term employeebenefits

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered by
employeesisrecognized during the period when the employees renders the services. These benefitsinclude compensated
absencealso.

Defined benefit plans

The company pays gratuity to the employees who have completed 5 Years of service with company at the time when the
employeeleavesthecompany asper the payment of gratuity act 1972.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the actuarial valuation on projected unit
credit method made at theend of eachfinancial year.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gainsand |osses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amountsincludedin
net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amountsincluded in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability
(asset) recognisedin other comprehensiveincomeshall not bereclassified to profit or lossin asubsequent period.
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The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of
profitandloss:

. Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs; and
. Net interest expense or income
Other employeebenefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee
renderstherelated servicesarerecognized asaliability at the present value of obligation asat the Bal ance sheet date determined
based onanactuarial valuation.

Defined Contribution Plan

The company's paymentsto the defined contribution plans are recognized as expenses during the period in which the employees
perform the servicesthat payment covers. Defined contribution plan comprise of contribution to the employees' provident fund
with government, Employees Statelnsuranceand Pension Scheme.

iX. IncomeTax

Incometax expense comprisescurrent and deferred tax. It isrecognisedin profit or lossexcept to the extent that it rel atesto
abusinesscombination, or itemsrecognised directly inequity orin OCI.

Current tax

Current income-tax expense or credit is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation authorities in
accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at thereporting date. Current tax al soincludesany tax arising fromdividends.

Current incometax rel ating to itemsrecogni sed outside profit or lossisrecogni sed outside profit or loss(eitherin OCl or in
equity). Current tax itemsarerecognisedin correl ation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly inequity.

Current tax assetsand liabilitiesareoffset only if, the Company:

a) hasalegally enforceableright to set off therecognised amounts; and

b) intendseithertosettleonanet basis, or to realisethe asset and settletheliability simultaneously.
Deferred tax

Deferred tax isrecognised ontemporary differences between the carrying amounts of assetsand liabilitiesinthefinancia
statementsand the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilitiesare generally
recognisedfor all taxabletemporary differences. Deferred tax assetsare generally recognised for all deductibletemporary
differencestothe extent that it is probabl e that taxabl e profitswill be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
fromtheinitial recognition of assetsand liabilitiesin atransaction that affects neither thetaxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Thecarrying amount of deferred tax assetsisreviewed at theend of each reporting period and reduced to theextent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recogni sed to the extent that it has become
probablethat futuretaxable profitswill allow thedeferred tax asset to berecovered.

Deferred tax liabilitiesand assetsare measured at thetax ratesthat are expected to apply in the period inwhich theliability
issettled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax |aws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of thereporting period.

Deferred tax assetsand liabilities are off set when they rel ate to income taxes|evied by the same taxation authority and the
relevant entity intendsto settleitscurrent tax assetsandliabilitieson anet basis.

Deferred tax assetsinclude MinimumAlternative Tax (MAT) paidin accordancewiththetax lawsinIndia, whichislikely
to givefuture economic benefitsintheform of availability of set off against futureincometax liability. Accordingly, MAT
isrecognised as deferred tax asset in the bal ance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the
futureeconomic benefit associated with the asset will berealised.

Deferredtax assetsandliabilitiesare offset only if:
a) theentity hasalegally enforceableright to set off deferred tax assetsagainst deferred tax liabilities; and

b) thedeferred tax assetsand the deferred tax liabilitiesrel ate to income taxes | evied by the sametaxation authority on
thesametaxabl eentity.

98




SIGNET INDUSTRIES LIMITED & ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

X.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

Foreign currencytrandation

(i)  All transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the rates of the exchange prevailing on the dates when the
relevant transactionstook place; any gain/ losson account of thefluctuationsin therate of exchangeisrecognizedin
thestatement of Profit and L oss.

(i) Monetary itemsintheform of loans, current assetsand current liabilitiesin foreign currencies at the close of theyear
areconverted inthelndian currency at the appropriaterate of exchange prevailing on the dates of the Balance Sheet.
Resultant gain or loss on account of fluctuation in the rate of exchange isrecognized in the statement of Profit and
Loss.

(iif) Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated in to
functional currency at theexchangeratewhenthefair valuewas determined. Non-monetary itemsthat are measured
intermsof historical costinaforeign currency arenot transl ated.

(iv) Inrespect of the Forward Exchange Contracts entered into to hedge foreign currency risks, the difference between
theForward Rateand Exchange Rate at theinception of the contract isrecognized asincome or expense.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying asset that necessarily
takes asubstantial period of timeto get ready for itsintended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All
other borrowing costsare expensed intheperiodinwhich they occur.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of
borrowed funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing costs.

Cash and Cash Equivalent

The Company considersall highly liquid financial instruments, which arereadily convertibleinto known amounts of cash
that are subject to an insignificant risk of changein value and having original maturities of three months or less from the
date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalent includesthe cash and Cheguesin hand, bank balances,
demand depositswith bank and other short term highly liquid investmentsand bal ances with bankswhich are unrestricted
for withdrawal and usage.

Bank overdraft areshownwithin borrowingsin current liabilitiesin the balance sheet and formspart of financing activities
inthe cashflow statement. Book overdraft are shown within other financial liabilitiesinthe balance sheet and formspart of
operating activitiesinthecash flow statement.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flowsarereported using theindirect method, where by profit beforetax isadjusted for the effects of transactionsof a
non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or
expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activitiesof the Company aresegregated.

EarningsPer Share

Basic earnings per equity shareiscomputed by dividing the net profit attributabl e to the equity holders of the company by
theweighted average number of equity sharesoutstanding duringtheperiod.

Diluted earnings per equity shareis computed by dividing the net profit attributabl e to the equity holders of the company
by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of al dilutive potential equity
shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually
issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are
deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unlessissued at alater date. Potential ordinary shares shall betreated
asdilutivewhen, and only when, their conversionto ordinary shareswould decrease earningsper share or increaselossper
sharefrom continuing operations.

Dilutivepotential equity sharesaredeterminedindependently for each period presented.

Thenumber of equity sharesand potentially dilutive equity sharesareadjusted retrospectively for al periods presented for
any share splitsand bonus sharesissuesincluding for changes effected prior to the approval of thefinancial statementsby
theBoard of Directors.

Segment Accounting Policies
(i) Thecompany hasdisclosed business segment asthe primary segment. Based onthe criteriamentionedin IndAS 108
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(i)

XVi.

XVii.

"Operating Segment” thecompany hasidentified itsreportable segments.

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) eval uatesthe company's performance and all ocates resources based
on an analysis of various performance indicators by operating segments. The CODM reviews revenue and gross
profit as performance indicator for al of the operating segments. The various segment identified by the company
comprised asunder: -

Nameof Segment Comprised of

Manufacturing - Manufacturing of Irrigation and Plastic Products
Wind Power Unit - Wind Turbine Power Unit

Trading - Merchant Trading of VariousProducts

Segment revenue, segment results, segment assets and segment liabilities include respective amounts directly identified
with the segment and al so an all ocation on reasonabl e basi s of amountsnot directly identified. The expenseswhich arenot
directly relatable to the business segment are shown as unallocated corporate cost. Assets and liabilities that cannot be
allocated between the segmentsare shown asun-allocable corporateassetsand liabilitiesrespectively.

Provisions, Contingent L iabilitiesand Contingent Assets

Provisionsarerecognised whenthereisapresentlegal or constructiveobligation asaresult of past eventsanditisprobable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefitswill be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisionsare not recognized for future operating | osses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present valueisapre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of thetimevalue of money and therisks specifictotheliability. Theincreaseinthe
provision dueto the passage of timeisrecognised asinterest expense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. The Company does not
recognizeacontingent liability but disclosesitsexistenceinthefinancial statements

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.
Contingent assetsare not recognized, but itsexistenceisdisclosedinthefinancial statements

Lease

A contractis, or contains, aleaseif the contract conveystheright to control theuse of anidentified asset for aperiod of time
inexchangefor consideration.

As per the requirements of Ind AS 116 the company evaluates whether an arrangement qualifies to be a lease. In
identifying aleasethe company usessignificant judgment in ng theleaseterm (including anticipated renewal s) and
theapplicablediscount rate.

The Company determinesthelease term asthe non-cancellable period of alease, together with both periods covered by an
option to extent the leaseif the company isreasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an optionto
terminatetheleaseif the Company isreasonably certain not to exercise that option. The Company revisestheleasetermif
thereisachangeinthenon-cancellableperiod of alease.

Company asalessee

The Company accountsfor each |ease component within the contract as alease separately from non-lease components of
the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each |ease component on the basis of therel ative stand-alone
priceof theleasecomponent and the aggregate stand-al one price of the non-lease components.

Right of UseAssets

The Company recogni ses right-of-use asset representing itsright to use the underlying asset for theleaseterm at the lease
commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of theinitial
measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any |ease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received, plus any initia direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or siteonwhichitislocated.
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XViii.

XiX.

The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment
losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the
straight-line method from the commencement date over the lease term. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment
whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable and impairment loss, if any, is
recognisedinthe statement of profit andloss.

L easeholdlandsare amortized over the period of lease.

LeaseLiability

The Company measurestheleaseliability at the present value of thelease paymentsthat are not paid at the commencement
date of the lease. Thelease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incrementa borrowing rate. For leases with

reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on alease by leasebasis, may adopt either theincremental borrowingrate
specifictotheleaseor theincremental borrowing ratefor theportfolioasawhole.

The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability,
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications. The company recogni ses the amount of the re-measurement of leaseliability dueto
modification as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature of
modification. Wherethe carrying amount of the right-of-use asset isreduced to zero and thereisafurther reductioninthe
measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of
profitandloss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 L easesto short-term leases of all assetsthat havea
lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The |ease payments associated
withtheseleasesarerecognized asan expenseon astraight-linebasisover theleaseterm.

Operatingleases

The Company has also used the practical expedient provided by the standard when applying Ind AS 116 to leases
previoudy classified as operating leases under Ind AS 17 and therefore, has not reassessed whether a contract, is or
containsalease, at thedate of initial application, relied onitsassessment of whether leasesare onerous, applying IndAS37
immediately before the date of initial application as an alternative to performing an impairment review, excluded initial
direct costsfrom measuring theright-of-use asset at the date of initial application and used hindsight when determining the
leasetermif the contract contains optionsto extend or terminate the lease. The Company has used asingle discount rateto
aportfolioof leaseswith similar characteristics.

On transition, the Company recognised alease liability measured at the present value of the remaining | ease payments.
Theright-of-use asset isrecognised at its carrying amount asif the standard had been applied since the commencement of
thelease, but discounted using thel essee'sincremental borrowing rateasat April 1, 2019.

Impair ment of Non-Financial Assets

The company assesses at each reporting date whether thereis any objective evidence that anon-financial asset or agroup
of non-financial assets areimpaired. If any such indication exists, the company estimates the amount of impairment loss.
For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assetsis considered as cash
generating unit. If any suchindication exists, an estimate of the recoverableamount of theindividual asset/cash generating
unitismade.

Animpairment lossiscal culated asthe difference between an asset's carrying amount and recoverable amount. Lossesare
recognized in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the company considersthat thereareno realistic
prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment |oss subseguently
decreases and the decrease can be rel ated objectively to an event occurring after theimpairment was recognized, then the
previoudly recognizedimpairment lossisreversed through profit or loss.

When animpairment | oss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or acash-generating unit) isincreased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been in place had there been no impairment | oss been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of animpairment lossisrecognizedimmediately in Statement of Profit and L oss, takinginto
account thenormal depreciation/amortization.

Financial | nstruments
A financia instrument is any contract that gives rise to afinancial asset of one entity and afinancia liability or equity
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instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts such as foreign currency foreign
exchangeforward contracts, interest rate swapsand currency options; and embedded derivativesin the host contract.

Financial assets
Classification

The Company shall classify financial assets and subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensiveincome (FVOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) on the basis of its business model for
managing thefinancial assetsand the contractual cashflow characteristicsof thefinancial asset.

I nitial recognition and measur ement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction coststhat are attributable to the acquisition of
thefinancial asset isadjustedto thefair value, in the case of financial assetsnot recorded at fair value through profit
or loss. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on thetrade date, i.e., the date that
thecompany commitsto purchaseor sell theasset.

Financial Assetsmeasured at amortised cost
Afinancial assetismeasured at theamortised cost if both thefollowing conditionsaremet:

a) Theassetisheld within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

b)  Contractua termsof the asset giverise on specified datesto cash flowsthat are solely payments of principal
andinterest (SPPI) onthe principa amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effectiveinterest
rate (EIR) method. Amortised costiscal culated by takinginto account any discount or premium on acquisition and feesor
coststhat areanintegral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation isincluded in financeincomein the statement of profit and
loss. Thelosses arising fromimpairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Thiscategory generally applies
totradeand other receivables.

Financial Asset measured at fair valuethrough other comprehensiveincome(FVOCI)
Afinancial assetismeasured at FV OCI if both of thefollowing criteriaaremet:

a)

b)

The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and

Theasset'scontractual cash flowsrepresent SPPI.

Financial assets included within the FV OCI category are measured initially aswell as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCl). However, the company
recognizesinterestincome, impairment losses& reversalsandforeign exchangegainor lossintheprofitandloss.
On derecognition of the non-derivative debt instruments designated at FV OCI, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Whereas onderecognition of the equity
instruments designated at FVOCI, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the
equity toretained earnings.

Interest earned whilst holding FV OCI debt instrument isreported asinterest incomeusing the EIR method.

Financial Asset measured at fair valuethrough profit and loss(FVTPL)

FVTPL isaresidua category for financial asset. Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteriafor categorization as at
amortized cost or asFVOCI, isclassifiedasat FVTPL.

In addition, the company may elect to classify afinancial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVOCI criteria, asat
FVTPL. However, such election isallowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates ameasurement or recognition inconsistency
(referred to as'accounting mismatch’).

Financial assetsincluded within the FV TPL category are measured at fair value with al changes recognized in the profit and

loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, apart of afinancia asset or part of acompany of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e. removed from thecompany'sbal ance sheet) when:

i Therightstoreceivecash flowsfromtheasset have expired, or
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ii.  Thecompany hastransferreditsrightsto receivecash flowsfromtheasset or hasassumed an obligation to pay thereceived
cashflowsinfull without material delay to athird party under a'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) thecompany has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially al therisksand rewards of theasset, but hastransferred control of the asset.

ili.  When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
company continuesto recognisethe transferred asset to the extent of the company's continuing involvement. In that case,
the company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basi sthat reflectstherightsand obligationsthat the company hasretained.

iv.  Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be required to
repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordancewith Ind-AS 109, the Company appliesexpected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition

of impairment losson thefollowing financial assetsand credit risk exposure:

a)  Financia assetsthat are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits,
and bank balance.

b)  Tradereceivables.

The Company follows'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment lossallowanceon:

i. Trade receivableswhich do not contain asignificant financing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss alowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

ii.  For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether therehasbeen asignificantincreasein thecredit risk sinceinitial recognition. If credit risk hasnot increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that
thereisno longer asignificant increasein credit risk sinceinitial recognition, then the entity revertsto recognising
impairment lossallowance based on 12-month ECL.

ii.  Financial liabilities
Classification

The Company classifiesall financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities

a fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently
messured at fair value.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initia recognition, as financia liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or asderivativesdesignated ashedging instrumentsin an effective hedge, asappropriate.

All financial liabilitiesarerecognised initially at fair value and, in the case of |oansand borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributabl etransaction costs.

The company'sfinancial liabilitiesinclude trade and other payables, loans and borrowingsincluding bank overdrafts, financial
guarantee contractsand derivativefinancial instruments.

Financial liabilitiesmeasured at fair valuethrough profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilitiesare classified asheld for trading if
they areincurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Gainsor losseson liabilitiesheld for trading arerecognised in theprofit or loss.
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
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recognition, and only if the criteriain Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gaing losses
attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gaing/loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L.
However, the company may transfer the cumulativegain or losswithin equity. All other changesinfair valueof suchliability are
recognised inthe statement of profit or loss.

L oansand borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is cal cul ated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and feesor coststhat are an integral
part of theEIR. The EIR amortisationisincluded asfinance costsinthestatement of profit andloss.

Thiscategory generally appliestointerest-bearing loansand borrowings.
Derecognition

A financia liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability isreplaced by another from the samelender on substantially different terms, or thetermsof an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification istreated asthe derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of anew liability. The difference in the respective carrying amountsis recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet when, and when the
company hasalegally enforceableright to set off theamount and it intends either to settlethem on net basisor to realizethe asset
and settletheliability simultaneously

xX. Derivativefinancial instruments

The company uses derivative financial instruments, such asforward currency contracts, interest rate swaps and forward
commaodity contracts, to hedgeitsforeign currency risks, interest rate risksand commodity pricerisks, respectively. Such
derivativefinancia instruments areinitially recognized at fair value on the date on which aderivative contract isentered
into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is
positiveand asfinancial liabilitieswhenthefair valueisnegative.

xxi. Measurement of fair values
The Company'saccounting policiesand disclosuresrequirethe measurement of fair valuesfor financial instruments.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The management
regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and vauation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker
quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the management assesses the evidence obtained from the
third partiesto support the conclusion that such val uations meet the requirements of IndAS, including thelevel inthefair
valuehierarchy inwhich such valuationsshould beclassified.

When measuring thefair value of an asset or aliability, the Company uses observable market dataasfar as possible. Fair
valuesare categorized into different levelsin afair val ue hierarchy based on theinputs used in the val uation techniques as
follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in activemarketsfor identical assetsor liabilities.

Level 2: inputsother than quoted pricesincluded in Level 1 that are observablefor the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.
asprices) orindirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3:inputsfor theasset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservableinputs).

If theinputs used to measurethefair value of an asset or aliability fall into different levelsof thefair value hierarchy, then
the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level
input that issignificant to the entiremeasurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during
whichthe changehasoccurred.

xxii. Mandatory exceptionsapplied - Standard I ssued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. Thereis no such
notification which would havebeen applicablefromApril 1, 2021.
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